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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TREMES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”), |
would like to hereby present the audited consolidated financial results
of China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2018 (“the Year”).

Over the last 12 months, the global economic climate has shifted from
upbeat to cautionary, due in large part to the trade dispute between
the United States of America (the “U.S.A.”) and the People’s Republic
of China ("PRC”) during the latter half year. Despite the increasingly
unpredictable climate, we have sought to maintain positive
momentum with respect to our principal business interests of
electronic manufacturing services (“EMS”) and marketing and
distribution of communications products (“Distribution of
Communications Products”), while at the same time make headway in
the securities and other assets investment (“Securities and Other
Assets Investment”) operation, with the view towards penetrating the
PRC healthcare and medical sector.

On the EMS and Distribution of Communications Products front, we
launched a number of new products during the Year in response to
changing market conditions and our commitment to maintaining a
product portfolio that is in step with consumption trends. At the same
time, we have continued to develop new products that align with the
aforementioned goals, and in particular, to the rising popularity of
smart-home appliances with loT, Wi-Fi and Bluetooth functionality. In
the face of rising costs, including for key electronic components, we
were able to mitigate the impact through effective cost management.

As for the Securities and Other Assets Investment operation, we
remain fully committed to seizing the tremendous opportunities
arising from the PRC healthcare sector. While this sector has been
expanding at a rapid rate, there remains tremendous room for growth.
One major reason behind this is a quickly aging population, which may
invariably have greater medical needs. It is quite clear that our interest
in this important sector is well founded.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TREMES

Though the global economic outlook for the coming year remains
clouded, we remain confident that with sound strategies in place,
healthy business operations and solid fundamentals — all underpinned
by experienced and far-sighted leadership, the Group is on track for a
brighter tomorrow.

On behalf of the Board and the management, | would like to extend
my gratitude to the entire workforce for their dedication and hard
work during the Year. | wish to also thank all of our shareholders,
investors, customers and business partners for their unwavering
support.

Gong Shaoxiang
Chairman
27 March 2019

1 https://www.forbes.com/sites/kenrapoza/2017/02/21/chinas-aging-population-
becoming-more-of-a-problem/#78657354140f
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Mrfﬁ njﬂﬁ& Tﬁ

During the Year, the Group has continued to expedite development of
the EMS and Distribution of Communication Products businesses. To
expand revenue streams, the Group has also strived to capture
opportunities arising from the healthcare and medical industry in the
PRC.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2018, the Group generated
total revenue of approximately HK$735.2 million (2017: HK$662.2
million). Gross profit amounted to HK$172.5 million (2017: HK$164.4
million), while loss attributable to owners of the Company narrowed to
HK$58.0 million (2017: HK$128.4 million).

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had bank and cash balances
totalling HK$354.2 million (2017: HK$479.4 million), thus remaining in
a healthy financial position.

The EMS and Distribution of Communication Products businesses
contributed revenue of HK$622.9 million (2017: HK$576.6 million) and
HK$43.7 million (2017: HK$71.1 million) respectively to the Group. In
respect of the former, the modest improvement in turnover can be
attributed to adjustments made to the product mix, with certain
obsolete products replaced with new counterparts during the Year.

The Group managed to have increasing contribution from these
businesses even though the businesses were affected by appreciation
of the cost of goods sold during the Year. The loss on disposal of
various loss-making subsidiaries of the Group in the preceding
financial year no longer affected the profit margin of the EMS segment.
Furthermore, we were able to derive a profit from the disposal of
subsidiaries in this year, as well as benefit from a decline in the share
of net loss owing to the disposal of the aforementioned subsidiaries.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE R am M AT

Securities and Other Assets Investment

Indicative of its relatively brief period of operation, having been
established in 2016, the Securities and Other Assets Investment
business contributed revenue of HK$68.6 million (2017: HK$14.5
million) to the Group during the Year, primarily through the sale of
medical equipments in the PRC.

In view of the immense potential of the healthcare and medical
industry in the PRC, the Group will continue to build on its beachhead
in the country, while at the same time develop the Securities and
Other Assets Investment operation. In this way, the Group will lay the
groundwork for deriving greater revenue going forward.

Geographical Analysis

Revenue by Country
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Revenue from the major European countries (the United Kingdom,
Switzerland, Poland and France) totalled HK$271.3 million (2017:
HK$206.4 million), and accounted for 36.9% (2017: 31.2%) of the
Group’s total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2018. The U.S.A.
market contributed HK$129.9 million (2017: HK$155.8 million) in
revenue and accounted for 17.7% (2017: 23.5%) of the Group’s total
revenue. The PRC (including Hong Kong) and other countries
accounted for HK$173.8 million (2017: HK$97.5 million) and HK$160.2
million (2017: HK$202.5 million) respectively, representing 23.6% (2017:
14.7%) and 21.8% (2017; 30.6%) of the Group’s total revenue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Mrfﬁ njﬂﬁ& Tﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded total
revenue of HK$735.2 million (2017: HK$662.2 million).

The Group’s reporting segments are strategic business units that offer
different products and services. There are three broad groups of
business units for segment accounting purpose, EMS, Distribution of
Communications Products and the Securities and Other Assets
Investment. In EMS segment, there are also two main groups of
products, namely communications and non-communications products
whereas non-communications products mainly include appliances and
appliances control products and multimedia products. Distribution of
Communications Products segment represents the marketing and
distribution of communications products. The function of the
Securities and Other Assets Investment segment is to carry out
effective financial management.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the revenue from EMS segment
increased by 8.0% to HK$622.9 million (2017: HK$576.6 million),
whereas the revenue from Distribution of Communications Products
segment decreased by 38.5% to HK$43.7 million (2017: HK$71.1
million). The Securities and Other Assets Investment segment
contributed revenue of approximately HK$68.6 million (2017: HK$14.5
million).

The increase in the revenue of EMS segment was mainly resulted from
the increase in the business of appliance and appliances control
products of HK$63.6 million, offset by the decrease in sales of beauty
care product of HK$26.9 million. The decrease in revenue of
Distribution of Communications Products segment was caused by the
decline in overall demand in business phone sector.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE R am M AT

Cost of sales increased by 13.0% from HK$497.8 million in 2017 to
HK$562.7 million in 2018 corresponded to the level of revenue of the
Year.

Gross profit increased by 4.9% from HK$164.4 million to HK$172.5
million, with gross profit margin of 23.5% (2017: 24.8%). The increase in
gross profit was mainly due to surge in the sales of medical
equipments in the PRC, whilst the decline in gross profit margin is
arising from higher material and labor cost.

The other income increased from HK$19.5 million to HK$27.1 million
comparing with last year. The major components of the other income
are represented by the exchange gains of HK$5.7 million, consultancy
fee income of HK$2.5 million, reversal of impairment losses on trade
receivables of HK$3.2 million, gain on disposal of subsidiaries of
HK$2.7 million and interest income on loans to employees and other
parties of HK$8.2 million.

Selling and distribution expenses of HK$29.3 million (2017: HK$45.6
million) accounted for approximately 4.0% in 2018 and 6.9% in 2017 of
the Group’s revenue. The decrease is mainly caused by the decrease in
staff cost of approximately HK$1.9 million and decline in promotion
and advertising expenses of HK$10.2 million (after the adoption effect
of HKFRS 15) comparing with last year.

Administrative expenses of HK$185.0 million (2017: HK$151.9 million)
marked an increment of HK$33.1 million, mainly contributed by the
increase in human resources cost of HK$13.5 million, rental expenses
of HK$20.2 million, consultancy fee of HK$1.3 million and legal and
professional fees of HK$3.7 million offset by the decline in
entertainment expenses of HK$10.6 million. The administrative
expenses accounted for approximately 25.2% in 2018 and 22.9% in
2017 of the Group’s revenue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Mrfﬁ njﬂﬁ& Tﬁ

Other operating expenses decreased by 73.5% from HK$94.8 million in
2017 to HK$25.1 million in 2018. The decrease was mainly attributable
to the absence of the disposal loss and impairment loss regarding the
equity investments amounting to HK$20.3 million and HK$28.1 million
respectively, together with the decrease in loss on disposal of
subsidiaries of HK$19.1 million.

The Group’s finance costs mainly comprise the interest on loans from
an independent third party and related companies. The Group’s
finance costs were approximately HK$4.7 million in 2018 and HK$13.0
million in 2017, representing approximately 0.6% and 2.0% of the
revenue in 2018 and 2017, respectively. The drop is largely due to the
absence of imputed interest on loans from a substantial shareholder
after repayment, amounting to HK$10.3 million.

The Group’s income tax expense represents amounts of income tax
paid by the Group, at the applicable tax rates in accordance with the
relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong, PRC and U.S.A.. The
Group had no tax payable in other jurisdictions during the years ended
31 December 2018 and 2017.

The loss attributable to owners of the Company is of HK$58.0 million
(2017: HK$128.4 million). The Group’s net loss margin attributable to
owners of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018 was
-7.9% (2017: -19.4%).

Profit for the year attributable to non-controlling interests amounted
to HK$8.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Loss of
HK$2.9 million). The emerged profit attributable to the non-controlling
interests mainly contributed by the sales of medical equipments in the
PRC.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE R am M AT

The Group generally finances its operations and capital expenditure by
internally generated cashflows, the proceeds from the Company’s
initial public offering in January 2011 and borrowings.

As at 31 December 2018, the bank and cash balances amounted to
HK$354.2 million (2017: HK$479.4 million), representing an decrease
of HK$125.2 million from 2017. Respective sum of 8.0%, 15.7% and
73.7% of the bank and cash balances was denominated in RMB, USD
and HKD respectively.

The Group’s current ratio remains in a healthy position at 2.15 times
(2017: 2.8 times).

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amounts of the loans from
related companies and loan from an independent third party are
HK$20.3 million and HK$20.0 million, respectively. As at 31 December
2017, the borrowings represented the loans from related companies
and loan from an independent third party of HK$23.1 million and
HK$20.0 million, respectively.

In 2018, HK$95.8 million was used in the operating activities, whilst
HK$43.4 million and HK$1.8 million were used in investing activities
and financing activities respectively. Net cash outflow from financing
activities was related to the net borrowings repayment. Net cash
outflow from investing activities was mainly sourced from the
purchase of equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI) of HK$40.9 million, increase in cash
in margin accounts of brokerage firms of HK$14.1 million and purchase
of property, plant and equipment of HK$41.1 million, being offset by
the cash inflow arising from the disposal of subsidiaries of HK$30.3
million and decrease in loans to employees and other parties of
HK$20.3 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Mrfﬁ njﬂﬁ& Tﬁ

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures arise
from the business operations in the PRC and Hong Kong denominated
in RMB and USD respectively. As at 31 December 2018, the Group had
minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as most of its business
transactions, assets and liabilities were principally denominated in the
respective functional currencies, i.e. RMB and USD, used by the
respective group entities, or in USD for the respective group entities
with HKD being the functional currency. As HKD is pegged to USD, the
Group considers the risk of movements in exchange rates between
HKD and USD to be insignificant for transactions denominated in USD.
The RMB is not freely convertible into other foreign currencies and
conversion of the RMB into foreign currencies is subject to rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government. As at 31 December 2018, the Group does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy in respect of its foreign currency
assets and liabilities. The Group had no investment in any financial
derivatives, foreign exchange contracts, interest or currency swaps,
hedging or other financial arrangements for hedging purposes to
reduce any currency risk nor made any over-the-counter contingent
forward transactions. The Group will closely monitor its foreign
currency exposure and will consider using hedging instruments in
respect of significant foreign currency exposure as and when
appropriate.

Capital expenditure for 2018 amounted to HK$41.1 million and capital
commitments as at 31 December 2018 amounted to HK$0.3 million.
Both the capital expenditure and capital commitments were mainly
related to the acquisition of plant and machinery as well as leasehold
improvements.

As at 31 December 2018, bank deposits of HK$1.3 million (2017: HK$1.9
million) were pledged to banks for securing banking facilities and also
certain shares of subsidiaries have been pledged to an independent
third party to secure a loan facility available to the Group.
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(i)

As at 31 December 2017 and 2018, the Group had an outstanding
guarantee (“the Guarantee”) to one of the suppliers of an
overseas subsidiary (“Disposed Subsidiary”), which was disposed
on 7 October 2015, for payment in relation to a sum of US$2.6
million (equivalent to approximately HK$20.3 million)
representing a trade balance under dispute between the
Disposed Subsidiary and the supplier. The supplier subsequently
sold the trade balance to a third party.

During 2017, the Disposed Subsidiary had agreed with the third
party for a final settlement by instalment of US$650,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$5.1 million). In this regard, as at
31 December 2018, the Group had an outstanding guarantee of
the sum limited to US$650,000 subject to the full payment of
the final settlement effected by the Disposed Subsidiary.

The Disposed Subsidiary had issued counter guarantee to the
Company to indemnify the Company for any loss in relation to
the Guarantee.

During the Year, a lawsuit was lodged against a subsidiary of the
Company, Guangzhou Telefield Limited. The plaintiff seeks
compensation of approximately RMB1 million. Having sought
legal advices, the directors are of the view that the above
compensation shall be disclosed as contingent liabilities.

Apart from the above, the Group and the Company did not have any
significant contingent liabilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Significant investments EREE
As at 31 December 2018, the Group was holding listed equity RZE—NF+-A=+—H AEEHARQ

investments at fair value of approximately HK$27.2 million (2017:
HK$12.0 million), which were classified as equity investments at
FVTOCI (2017: available-for-sale financial assets). Due to the
downward movements of the share prices, fair value change in respect
of such investments of approximately HK$25.7 million (2017: HK$40.4
million) was recorded in other comprehensive income. No dividend
income was received during the year ended 31 December 2018 in
respect of these investments.

Apart from the aforesaid transactions, there were no other material
investment by the Group that should be notified to the Shareholders
of the Company.

Significant equity investments measured at FVTOCI held as at 31
December 2018 are as below:

S {F 49 527,200,000 T( = T — £ £
12,000,000 7T) By Em IR AR E - BEKRE
DS RIE AT EF AEME ER R RER
B(ZE2—+tF : fHESREE) - ARR
BETY WBAZSRENATEEZHNA
25,700,000 7t (= F —+ 4 : 40,400,000
L) BRTAHMEENE - BHE_T—\&F
+ZA=+—HALFE ~EEHEESHH
ZERBOEMPMBURA °

B EaiZ BN AREBBEE MBS AAR
JREREAKE -
R-E—NE+ZA=+—HEAUAFET
AEM2ERETENEARELENT ¢

% of total

Unrealised asset of
losses on Fairvalue  the Group
fair value asat asat Reasons for unrealised
change for Costof 31December 31December losses on fair value
theyear  acquisition 2018 2018 change for the year
HAZER
“E-N\f
RZB-N\E T
Sia]
ZBEE FARBEBATELE
ZEMM 2AERERZER

Stock Number of % of
Principal activities

Company name code sharesheld shareholdings

FRER

2¥E =

R LS & ki  =t-8

ARER & i RE Z0YE
HK$000 HK$000  HKS$'000

TEL TR TER

1 KPMHolding Limited 8027 Design, fabrication, installation 118,400,000 3T 6,650 40,103 5,328 0.6% Downward movements
ERERERAA and maintenance of signage of share price
and related products RET#
Rt kR RERGEE
REBER
2 Imperial Pacific 1076 Gaming and resort business 412,440,000 0.3% 19,086 40,945 21859 2.3%  Downward movements
International By RERNER of share price
Holdings Limited RETH
BEXTEERER
BRAF

5,716 81,048 21,181
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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As at 31 December 2018, the Group had approximately 1,600
employees in various operating units located in Hong Kong, U.S.A. and
PRC. In order to attract and retain high quality talents to ensure
smooth operation and cater for the Group’s constant expansion, it
offers competitive remuneration packages, with reference to market
conditions, individual qualifications and experience.

There is no outstanding share option as at 31 December 2018 and 2017.
In addition, no share option was granted, cancelled or lapsed during
the year ended 31 December 2018.

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to maintaining
the highest environmental and social standards to ensure sustainable
development of its business. The Group has complied with all relevant
laws and regulations in relation to its business including health and
safety, workplace conditions, employment and the environment. The
Group understands a better future depends on everyone’s
participation and contribution. It has encouraged employees,
customers, suppliers and other stakeholders to participate in
environmental and social activities which benefit the community as a
whole. The Group maintains strong relationships with its employees,
has enhanced cooperation with its suppliers and has provided high
quality products and services to its customers so as to ensure
sustainable development. The details of such are set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance report on pages 34 to 56 of this
annual report.

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in the mainland China while the Company itself is listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
Our establishment and operations accordingly shall comply with
relevant laws and regulations in the mainland China and Hong Kong.
During the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the date of this
report, we have complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in
the mainland China and Hong Kong.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Our Group’s financial condition, results of operations, and business
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties
directly or indirectly pertaining to our Group’s businesses. The
followings are the key risks and uncertainties identified by our Group.
There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those shown
below which are not known to our Group or which may not be material
now but could turn out to be material in the future.

Market risk is the risk that deteriorates profitability or affects ability to
meet business objectives arising from the movement in market prices,
like foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices. The
management of our Group manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

As our Group’s transactions were mainly conducted in HKD, USD, RMB
and Euro ("EUR”), exposing to the potential RMB and EUR exchange
rate fluctuations. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of other foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. However, the Group monitors its
foreign currency exposure closely and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

For interest-sensitive products and investments, our Group analyses
its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis and considers managing
this risk in a cost-effective manner when appropriate, through variety
of means.

Liquidity risk is the potential that our Group will be unable to meet its
obligations when they fall due because of an inability to obtain
adequate funding or liquidate assets. In managing liquidity risk, our
Group monitors cash flows and maintains an adequate level of cash
and cash equivalent to ensure the ability to finance the Group’s
operations and reduce the effects of fluctuation in cash flows.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed
internal processes, people and systems or from external events.
Responsibility for managing operational risks basically rests with every
function at divisional and departmental levels. Key functions in our
Group are guided by their standard operating procedures, limits of
authority and reporting framework. Our management will identify and
assess key operational exposures regularly so that appropriate risk
response can be taken.

Our Group may face the risk of not being able to attract and retain key
personnel and talents with appropriate and required skills, experience
and competence which would meet the business objectives of our
Group. Our Group will provide attractive remuneration package to
suitable candidates and personnel.

Even though the global economy achieved above average growth in
2018, the World Bank forecasts global growth to decelerate in 2019
and 2020 as major central banks begin removing policy
accommodations. Also, with trade talks between the U.S.A. and PRC
continuing with no immediate resolution, consumer sentiment will
invariably be lacklustre.

While the aforementioned developments are not to be ignored, the
Group’s EMS business has performed encouragingly, although
customers have become more cautious due to the ongoing trade talks.
The Group will continue to vigorously pursue fresh opportunities. At
the same time, it will be vigilant for potential risks to its profit margin,
such as appreciation of the RMB and rise in component costs, and take
prompt and appropriate actions. Moreover, the Group will direct
resources towards research and development so that new products of
higher margin are subsequently launched, including loT, Wi-Fi and
Bluetooth enabled smart-home appliances that give fresh impetus for
the development of the EMS segment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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With regard to the Securities and Other Assets Investment operation,
the Group will continue to focus principally on leveraging the
burgeoning PRC healthcare market. As the PRC government has been
supportive of advancing healthcare, as outlined in the 13th Five-Year
Plan (2015-2020) and “Healthy China 2030”, the Group will seize
opportunities that emerge through relevant investments and
partnerships.

With 2019 set to be a year of both immense challenges and
opportunities, the Group will take a decidedly cautious approach in
developing its principal business interests. That does not, however,
preclude the Group from taking action aimed at furthering its long-
term growth. Leveraging its depth of experience, core competencies
and sound fundamentals, the Group will make the necessary
preparations for an eventual upturn.
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The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance to protect the interests of the shareholders of
the Company.

The Directors are of the opinion that the Company has complied with
the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“Code”) under Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended 31
December 2018, except for the deviation from code provision A.1.1 and
A.2.1 of the Code as described below.

Under code provision A.1.1 of the Code, the Board should meet
regularly and board meeting should be held at least four times a year
at approximately quarterly intervals. During the Year, only two regular
board meetings were held to review and discuss the annual and
interim results. The Company does not announce its quarterly results
and hence does not consider the holding of quarterly meetings as
necessary and this is deviated from the code provision A.1.1 of the
Code.

Under code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separated and should not be performed by
the same individual. The Company does not have any officer with the
title of “chief executive officer” and this is deviated from the code
provision A.2.1 of the Code.

Mr. Gong Shaoxiang, who acts as the Chairman and an executive
Director of the Company since 4 November 2015, is also responsible
for overseeing the general operations of the Group. The Board will
meet regularly to consider major matters affecting the operations of
the Group. The Board considers that this structure will not impair the
balance of power and authority between the Board and the
management of the Group. The roles of the respective executive
directors and senior management, who are in charge of different
functions complement the role of the chairman and chief executive
officer. The Board believes that this structure is conducive to strong
and consistent leadership enabling the Group to operate efficiently.
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The Company understands the importance to comply with the
code provision A.2.1 and will continue to consider the feasibility to
comply with the said code provision. If compliance with the said
provision is determined, appropriate persons will be nominated to
assume the different roles of chairman and chief executive officer.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code”) as the required standard for securities
transactions by the directors. The Company has made specific
enquiries of all Directors and all Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code and
its code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions
throughout the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the date of
this annual report.

The Board currently comprises three Executive Directors, one Non-
executive Director and three Independent Non-executive Directors.
The three Independent Non-executive Directors account for more than
one-third of the Board. The composition of the Board is set out as
follows:

Executive Directors..

Mr. Gong Shaoxiang (Chairman)
Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua

Mr. Duan Chuanhong

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Cao Yuyun

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Bao Jingiao

Mr. Wong Chun Hung

Mr. Leung Pok Man
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The biographical details of the Directors are disclosed in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors” on pages 32 to 33 in this
annual report. The composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills
and experiences appropriate to the requirements of the businesses of
the Group and to exercise of independence and is well balanced. Each
of the Directors has relevant expertise and extensive corporate and
strategic planning experiences that may contribute to the business of
the Group. The Company has complied with the requirements under
Rule 3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing Rules since the Listing Date. All
Independent Non- executive Directors also meet the guidelines for
assessment of their independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

The Board supervises the management of the business and affairs of
the Company. The Board’s primary duty is to ensure the viability of the
Company and to ensure that it is managed in the best interests of the
shareholders as a whole while taking into account the interests of
other stakeholders. The Group has adopted internal guidelines in
setting forth matters that require the Board’s approval. Apart from its
statutory responsibilities, the Board approves the Group’s strategic
plans, key operational initiatives, major investments and funding
decisions. It also reviews the Group’s financial performance, identifies
principal risks of the Group’s business and ensures implementation of
appropriate systems to manage these risks. Daily business operations
and administrative functions of the Group are delegated to the
management.

Board members were provided with complete, adeguate and timely
information to allow them to fulfill their duties properly. In compliance
with code provision A.1.3 of the Code, at least 14 days’ notice has been
given for a regular Board meeting to give all Directors an opportunity
to attend. Notice, agenda and board papers of regular Board meetings
are sent to all Directors within reasonable time and at least 3 days
prior to the meetings. Directors are free to contribute and share their
views at meetings and major decisions will only be taken after
deliberation at Board meetings. Directors who are considered having
conflict of interests or material interests in the proposed transactions
or issues to be discussed will not be counted in the quorum of meeting
and will abstain from voting on the relevant resolutions. Full minutes
are prepared after the meetings and the draft minutes are sent to all
Directors for their comment on the final version of which are endorsed
in the subsequent Board meeting.
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All Independent Non-executive Directors have been appointed for a
fixed term. Every Director is subject to re-election on retirement by
rotation in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company. The Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and still considers the
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent as at the
date of this annual report.

ERBUFNTEENEGHEREEEN - R
BARANAKERMA  BREFHERE
TRYEEEF - AARIERESBULIFNTT
EERBLTRAUBIBREINFEER
T HREBIUE - ARBRANFRB D
CRIFITESEF LI -

Number of meetings attended/

held
HESZRHME BHRERYE
Annual general Board
meeting meeting
Name of member BRBFERE EEgER
Executive Directors: BITESE
Mr. Gong Shaoxiang (Chairman) O AE (F)E) 1/1 20/20
Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua TRESE 171 20/20
Mr. Duan Chuanhong BT a il 20/20
Mr. Shi Xinbiao (resigned on 31 January 2019) FHIREE(RZZE—NF
—A=Z+—H8&H1D) 11 20/20
Non-executive Director: HHITESE -
Mr. Cao Yuyun BR=LE 11 20/20
Independent Non-executive Directors: BB ITESE -
Mr. Bao Jingiao ST E 171 16/16
Mr. Wong Chun Hung =S A 1/1 20/20
Mr. Leung Pok Man RIFSEAE 1/1 20/20

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Newly appointed Directors are provided with necessary induction and
information to ensure that they have a proper understanding of the
Company’s business and operations, as well as awareness of Director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
regulatory requirements.
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Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the Code, the Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills, so as to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The
Directors committed to participating in appropriate continuous
professional development activities by way of attending training or
reading materials relevant to the Company’s business or to the
Directors’ duties and responsibilities. During the year ended 31
December 2018, the Directors have been provided with regular
updates on the Company’s performance, position and prospects to
enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their
duties. The Directors are also briefed on the latest development and
changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory
requirements from time to time. All directors are encouraged to
participate in continuous professional development programmes to
develop and refresh their professional knowledge and skills. All the
existing Directors confirmed that they have had suitable directors’
training through attendance of training courses and seminars; or
reading materials to refresh their knowledge and skills during the Year.

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy™),
pursuant to which the Company may declare and distribute dividends
to the shareholders of the Company to allow shareholders of the
Company to share the Company’s profits and for the Company to
retain adequate reserves for future growth.

The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves the
right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the Dividend Policy at any time, and the Dividend Policy shall
in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company
that dividends will be paid in any particular amount and/or in no way
obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any time or from time
to time.

There is no service contract between the Company and each of the
Directors. Mr. Cao Yuyun, Mr. Bao Jingiao, Mr. Wong Chun Hung and
Mr. Leung Pok Man are renewed for a fixed term of three years
commencing on 4 November 2018.
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In accordance with Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association of the
Company, at each annual general meeting, at least one third of the
Directors are required to retire from office by rotation. Each Director
shall retire from office at least once every three years and shall include
those who have been longest in office since their last election or re-
election.

In accordance with Article 112 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, new Directors appointed by the Board during the year shall
retire and submit themselves for re-election at the annual general
meeting immediately following their appointments.

The Board has established specific committees, namely the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee,
with written terms of reference to assist them in the efficient
implementation of their functions. Specific responsibilities have been
delegated to the above committees.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expenses.

The Board shall establish other committees for specific purposes from
time to time to facilitate the Company’s operations.

The Company established the Audit Committee on 31 December 2010.
The Audit Committee had three members comprising three
Independent Non- executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Chun Hung
(Chairman), Mr. Bao Jingiao and Mr. Leung Pok Man. Throughout the
year ended 31 December 2018, the composition and members of the
Audit Committee complies with the requirements under Rules 3.21 of
the Listed Rules.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are mainly to review and
supervise the financial reporting process and internal control system
of the Group. The written terms of reference which describes the
authority and duties of the Audit Committee have been revised by the
Board on 24 February 2016 to conform to the provisions of the
Revised Code, a copy of which is posted to the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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The works performed by the Audit Committee in 2018 included the
following:

. to review the financial results and reports;

. to review the reports from external auditor, management letters
and management response;

. to review the matters in relation to internal audit and the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management

system;

. to review the Group’s compliance with statutory and regulatory
requirements;

. to review corporate governance matters; and
. to review the re-appointment of the external auditor.

The details of meetings held by the Audit Committee during 2018 and
the individual attendance of each member is set out below:

Name of member

Mr. Wong Chun Hung (Chairman) SRS E (FE)
Mr. Bao Jingiao S E
Mr. Leung Pok Man REXSE

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2018
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 31 December 2010.
The Remuneration Committee had three members comprising three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Bao Jingiao
(Chairman) , Mr. Wong Chun Hung and Mr. Leung Pok Man.

The Remuneration Committee is governed by its terms of reference,
which have been revised by the Board on 30 March 2012 pursuant to
the Revised Code. The terms of reference are currently available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are mainly to
review and determine the terms of remuneration packages, bonuses
and other compensation payable to the Directors and senior
management and to make recommendation to the Board on the
Group’s policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and
senior management. No Director shall participate in any discussion
about his or her own remuneration. The remuneration of the Directors
was determined with reference to their respective experience,
responsibilities with the Group and general market conditions.

Two meetings of the Remuneration Committee were held during the
year ended 31 December 2018 to review the remuneration package of
the Directors and senior management. The individual attendance of
each member is set out below.

Name of member

Mr. Bao Jingiao (Chairman) ST E (FE)
Mr. Wong Chun Hung HEM AL
Mr. Leung Pok Man P

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 31 December
2010 with written terms of reference which are in compliance with the
code provision of the Code. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee include the making of recommendations to the Board on
appointment of Directors and succession planning for the Directors.
The specific terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
currently available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

The following is a summary of the work of the Nomination Committee
during the year ended 31 December 2018:

. review the structure, size and composition (including but without
limitation, the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board;

. review the retirement of Directors by rotation and the re-
appointment of the retiring Directors at the 2018 Annual General
Meeting;

. review the reappointment of Directors during the year; and

. assess the independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors.
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The Nomination Committee consisted of three members, comprising
three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Bao Jingiao
(Chairman), Mr. Wong Chun Hung and Mr. Leung Pok Man.

One Nomination Committee meeting was held and the individual
attendance of each member is set out below.

Name of member

Mr. Bao Jingiao (Chairman) ST A (F/E)
Mr. Wong Chun Hung EEM A
Mr. Leung Pok Man PEEAE

Board diversity policy

The Company recognises that the Board with a reasonable balance of
skills and experience and sufficient diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the business and operation of the Group would be
beneficial to the Company and its shareholders as a whole and
enhance the quality of its performance.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (“Board Diversity
Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity
on the Board.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Company seeks to achieve
Board diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, educational background,
professional experience and qualifications, relevant industry
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate
decision will be made according to the merits of candidates and their
contribution to the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises seven Directors.
Three of them are independent non-executive Directors, thereby
promoting critical review and control of the management process. The
Board is also characterised by significant diversity, whether considered
in terms of gender, age, educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
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The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of
the financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows for that period.

The statement by the auditor of the Company about its responsibilities
for the financial statements is set out in the independent auditor’s
report contained in the Annual Report. There are no material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The Company engaged RSM Hong Kong as its external auditor for the
Year. Analysis of the remuneration in respect of audit services
provided by the external auditor is included in note 13 to the financial
statements in the Annual Report. For the Year, the total fee paid in
respect of the non- audit services is approximately HK$0.21 million.

The Board is responsible for maintaining and reviewing the
effectiveness of system of internal controls and risk management
within the Group. The system is set up to address key business risks of
failure to meet corporate objectives and to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss. The
purpose of such system is to manage and control risks properly, but
not eliminate it.

The Board has through the Audit Committee reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal controls and risk
management, including financial, operational and compliance controls
on annual basis. The Board considered the system is effective and
adequate. The review has also considered the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff in respect of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget. The Board ensures the existing resources,
qualifications and experience of staff and their training programmes
and budget should be adequate in respect of the Group’s accounting
and financial reporting function.
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In view of the size, nature and complexity of the business of the Group,
the Board has appointed external independent professionals to
perform internal audit functions. As approved by the Audit Committee,
the external independent professionals made assessment on various
business and operation risks of the Group. The Audit Committee
reviewed the findings from the external independent professionals
periodically and discussed the recommended actions needed to be
taken to develop and improve the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control system. The Board will continue to improve the Group’s
internal control and risk management systems through periodic
reviews and recommendations from the external auditors and external
independent professionals during their audit.

Regarding the procedures and internal control for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company is aware of its
disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules and Part XIVA of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“Inside Information Provisions”),
and any information required to be disclosed under Rule 13.09 of the
Listing Rules or any inside information required to be disclosed under
the Inside Information Provisions should be announced immediately.

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year. Each
general meeting, other than an annual general meeting is referred to
as an extraordinary general meeting.

According to article 64 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
the Board may, whenever it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary
general meeting. Extraordinary general meetings shall also be
convened on the requisition of one or more shareholders holding, at
the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at general
meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
Secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within 2
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such
deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited 2 E @ A ¥ EEER AT

ERAKEER AR HERERE B

RIRSINBBILEEALTEITABEZR
Bt RBERZEGIAE  INEBYEEALE
AEBESBEBREERBRIELE - F%E
SgTHEMINEBIER ALEZ LA
R UIHEEREAAEEANMEZERTAR
W2 ZRERIEL AR - EESHEBTENR
o ML INIE A BB BRSNS SE ST BB 2 A TR
BRI ERRENE A EE 2 NS

ZREREEIE o

FRERIE N BEMAREEZERF AT
| ARBEHEER ETRUARFE S KB
ERGIEXIVAR([ARE BB T2 #
BAEME MEMAERE EWRAEZ095ER
iE T LABEE 2 BRI SRR ZARE AR HBIEX
BT T LAREE 2 NBH BB BNREH A -

ARBWBRRASRHEHEERRLESTSH
TTAE - AR EBFRT - RERBAFAEG -
BRI SE K & UM & ERCR K & 1 R IR
BIRE -

@?‘Fﬁ’\ﬁiﬂ%%ﬁﬁﬂ”%64ﬂ§'
TERBBERARKRRER RS - RER
REINEFE— %Yﬁ%ﬂxﬁx*ﬁsﬂ ZE
%EAL%%A HAFBETPRTH2—AR
Tﬁ%)ﬁf‘ﬂx%ﬁ’c\ihmﬁ’]%ﬂlﬂﬂxﬁ ° B%JH
BREEUEEFAMESSIWERSE -
FEFSARBRREIAE WEEBBEFEX
ERREANEMEE - ZABERNZEBRE
E2EMEARNET - WREBEZE2H
N EE2FARBELMAZAE  AREZ2FRKEN
ATAIBTERAXBRARE - RAREE
BEEFRENATRESSRELABHE
EMEANFBEEER -

E=gq



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

_\LI/_/\—/‘\—\
1FE 3= /Dﬁlf&:l

Shareholders who wish to move a resolution at general meetings may
follow the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

In order to keep shareholders well informed of the business activities
and direction of the Group, information about the Group has been
provided to the shareholders through financial reports and
announcements. The Company has established its own corporate
website www.chinahealthcare.com.hk as a channel to facilitate
effective communication with its shareholders and the public. The
Company will continue to enhance communications and relationships
with its shareholders and investors.

Shareholders, investors and interested parties can make enquiries
directly to the Company through the following e-mail: enquiry@1143.
com.hk.

During 2018, the Company has not made any changes to its
Memorandum and Articles of Association.
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Mr. Gong Shaoxiang, aged 45, has ample experience in corporate
operation and management. He was a director of Hubei Landing
Holding Co., Limited (currently known as Gosun Holding Co. Ltd.)
(shares of which are listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code:
000971 (“Landing Holding™) from August 2012 to December 2014. Mr.
Gong has been the chairman and general manager of a local property
developing company in the PRC since May 2014.

Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua, aged 46, is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lee has
extensive experience in the fields of auditing, accounting and
financing. Mr. Lee currently serves as an independent non-executive
director of Hao Tian Development Group Limited (stock code: 474),
Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited
(formerly known as Clear Lift Holdings Limited) (stock code: 1341) and
Fujian Nuogi Co. Ltd. (stock code: 1353), which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, and China Fortune Investments
(Holding) Limited (stock code: 8116), Code Agriculture (Holdings)
Limited (stock code: 8153) and Cornerstone Financial Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Focus Media Network Limited) (stock code: 8112),
which are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange. He was an independent non-executive director of Teamway
International Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as Jin Bao Bao
Holdings Limited) (stock code: 1239) from March 2015 to August 2017.

Mr. Duan Chuanhong, aged 31, had worked in different industries for
over 10 years. Mr. Duan has ample experience in corporate planning,
management and execution.

Mr. Cao Yuyun, aged 57, had worked in various positions, including
deputy general manager of head office sales department, deputy
branch manager and general manager of operation center, at
Agricultural Development Bank of China for over 10 years until May
2011. He then joined Anhui Landing Holding Group Co., Ltd. (Z#E &
IR EBEA R AR (“Anhui Landing”) in May 201 and currently he is
a director and vice president of Anhui Landing. Mr. Cao was also a
director and the chairman of Landing Holding from October 2013 to
December 2014.
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Mr. Bao Jingiao, aged 53, was graduated from Anhui University with
research study in Civil Law in 1988 and obtained a Master Degree in
Law from Shanghai Academy of Social Sciences. He is a lawyer
qualified to practise in the PRC. Mr. Bao is the founder and partner of
Anhui Chengyi Law Firm since 2000. Mr. Bao was an independent
director of Anhui Kouzi Distillery Co., Ltd. which is listed on the A-share
market on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 603589) until
April 2017. He is currently an independent non-executive director of
Landing International Development Limited (“Landing”) which is listed
on the Main board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 582).

Mr. Wong Chun Hung, aged 45, was graduated from Hong Kong
Baptist University with a bachelor degree in accounting. He is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and has over 20 years’ experience in accounting, auditing and
consulting. Mr. Wong has been the director of B&C Finance and
Corporate Advisory Limited since December 2005. He is also an
independent non-executive director of Asia Pacific Silk Road
Investment Company Limited (formerly known as Pacific Plywood
Holdings Limited) (stock code: 767) and Landing which are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He was also an executive
director and member of executive committee of China Environmental
Energy Investment Limited (stock code: 986) from April 2018 to May
2018.

Mr. Leung Pok Man, aged 50, was graduated from York University in
Toronto, Canada with a bachelor degree in business studies. He has
over 16 years’ experience in sales management & business
development in the industry relating to information technology and
audio visual systems. He is currently the sales and business
development consultant of a trading company of information
technology and network products and mobile accessories. In addition,
he also acts as an executive director of PacRay International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1010) which is listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange.

Since November 2015, Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua was the company
secretary of the Company. His biographical details are set out in the
sub-section headed “Directors” in this section.
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The Board is pleased to present Environmental Social and Governance
(ESG) Report to demonstrate the efforts toward sustainable
development. The report has been prepared in accordance with the
standards set forth by the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
in its Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide, which
covers the subject areas of environmental protection, workplace
quality, operating practices and community investment. During the
Year, the Group is achieving and benchmarking with well-recognized
International Guidelines and protocols of Sustainable development.
The major areas to be reporting are (1) Environmental Protection and
(I Social Commitment.

The principal activities of the Group are primarily manufacturing
consumer electronic products through offering one-stop solutions to a
number of international brand owners. The Group’s headquarter office
is located in Hong Kong and its operation location in PRC with its
diversified customer base covering Japan, Asia-Pacific region, America
and Europe.

Unless otherwise specified, this report covered the Group progress
and performance on ESG issues from 1 January 2018 to 31 December
2018, focusing on the EMS business conducted by the subsidiaries with
the manufacturing plant located in Guangzhou (“Guangzhou
Factory™).

The Group strives to create positive values to shareholders and
believes that the interests of all stakeholders must be taken in account
in order to strengthen relationship with our shareholders, employees,
suppliers, customers, government authorities and the society as a
whole.
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Our approach to stakeholder engagement is designed to ensure that — FRFILTEMD E I F T EERR A D T B
our stakeholders’ perspectives and expectations are fully understood &R RE R EIE - #E L HBIHIFTIRE M AR
to help define our current and future sustainability strategies. R A5 B R SRR -

The Group proactively engaged with the key stakeholder groups ina ANEBUZETATHERE TS EEE -
variety of ways to ensure effective communication of our objective  LAEIRBEIA TR T FEAREERMN B E KL
and progress in relation to the following areas of concern. HEE o

Major Stakeholder

Major Communication Channels Major Concerns

FERFHE FEFERR FTEXEEIE
Shareholders and Investors Press release, Corporate Profitability
RERRIEEE Announcements and Circulars B HIge
MERE  DELERBE Financial Stability
Annual and Interim Reports B EE
FERFP RS Information Disclosure &
Annual General Meetings Transparency
ERBFERE AR ERFERE
Employees Trainings and Team Building Compensation & Benefits
==l Activities e R AR A
=3I RIS E BB E R Career Development and Training
Business Meetings and Briefings Opportunities
EgR LA BEERIMEIIKE
Performance Appraisals Health & Safety Work Environment
BT % RERLZETIERE
Suppliers Phone Calls, Conferences, Emails Cooperation on Fair Terms
HrEn BE g% BF BRAFEREE
Customers Customer Complaint Hotlines Quality Products and services
LS BPRFEER B Em KRS
Meetings and Correspondences Privacy Protection
e 53R FLERIREE

Public Community
NHEME

Charitable and Volunteering
Activities

Corporate Social Responsibilities

MEFEEE) Community Investment and
Community Interactions Charitable Activities
HEEH) (R EREEEE)

ESG Reporting
RIE g kER
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Major Stakeholder Major Communication Channels
FERGE FTEHERR
Government and Supervisory * Major Meeting and Policy
Institutions Consultation
BT KBS B s BEEHRECRHEN
* Information Disclosures
BRHE
* Institutional Visits
MR R

During the Year,through a wide range of communication channels, we
found that ESG compliance and environmental emissions are the main
focuses of our stakeholders.

A, ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

To demonstrate the Group’s commitments to sustainable
development and compliance with applicable Regional Laws and
Regulations relating to environmental protection, we endeavor
to maintain green manufacturing processes and office
operational practices in order to minimize the adverse
environmental impacts of our business activities. Achieving the
balance among another two pillars of society and economy of
the sustainable development, the Group is dedicated to
contribute to the environmental, the third pillar of the
sustainability and following these principles to minimize our
adverse impacts on the environment:

. Complying with all the applicable Regional Laws and
Regulations from all levels and functions of the
organization

. Assuring needs, expectations and/or applicable legal
requirements (if any) of the relevant interested parties; the
person or organization that can affect, be affected by, like
shareholders and/or stakeholders including customers,
suppliers, communities, regulators, non-governmental
organizations, investors and employees relating to
environmental protection being communicated and
understood
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. Employing ISO-14001 Environmental Management System
to adopt systematic approach to effectively protect the
environment and respond to changing environmental
conditions in balance with socio-economic needs

. Ensuring sufficient investments and resources for the
environmental-friendly facilities, equipments and
instruments that are operating safely, effectively and more
efficient

. Reinforcing promotion of conservation commitments,
educational training, and enhancing staff’s environmental
protection awareness

. Incorporating environmental targets and objectives into
our business strategic visions and competitive implication
by aligning them with business priorities and decision
making

The Group acts as a responsible corporate citizen by complying
with all the applicable Regional Laws and Regulations for our
business activities in PRC, maintaining the Guangzhou Factory
are 1ISO-14001 Environmental & OHSAS-18001 Occupational
Health & Safety management system certified since 2009 & 2010
respectively. It is the Group’s ambition to sustain compliance
obligation, safe production, resources conservation, pollution
mitigation, wastes reduction, accident-free as well as packaging
materials recycling. The Group is continuously incorporating
environmental targets into business decision making, we believe
that protecting the environment is always the crucial concerns
for our manufacturing nature business. During the Year, the
Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with
relevant standards, rules and regulations in relation to
environmental protection in respect of our business activities.

The Group attaches great importance to mitigate the possible
adverse impact of its EMS business on the environmental, and
considers environmental protection mindset an important
obligation during its production and operating activities. The
Group’s major environmental aspects mainly related to energy
consumptions and wastes generation, nevertheless, the impact
to natural resources is minimal due to our business nature.
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KPI A1.1 The type of emissions and respective emissions data
Emission from gaseous fuel consumption

During our operation, the factory’s canteen used Liquefied
petroleum gas (LPG) as the cooking fuel. The burning of LPG
generated nitrogen oxides (NOx) and sulphur oxides (SOx) to
the environment nearby. The approximate amount of NOx and
SOx produced from our operation in Guangzhou were shown in
the table below:

BREXESRANGRYEREREBH
BB

BB INFDBFEE L B PEIL

RELHE THROREERRIAH
RAERZEEME - RIEB A MR E R
FERFZHRAACYRRELD - F
MEMNEBEENRAALLY RRAID
VBB B TR

Increase/

(decrease)

in percentage

B2 LiE

Region (China) # & (P E) /ORA)
Total NOx emissions (kg) REAWBERE (TR) 5,398,924.32 7,114,981.92 (24.12%)
Total SOx emissions (kg) et masimE (F%) 26,860.32 35,397.92 (24.12%)

The total LPG consumption amounted to 29,196 liters in fiscal
year 2018, it represented a decrease of approximately 24%
comparing to 2017. It was attributed to change of operation right
for one of the staff canteen, the respective canteen had stopped
operation during January to April 2018 which resulted the drop
of the burning of liquefied petroleum gas for the canteen of the
factory.

Emissions from Vehicles

During our operation, the usage of light good vehicles generated
the emission of nitrogen oxides (NOx), particular matters (PM)
and sulphur oxides (SOx) to the environment nearby. The
approximate amount of NOx, PM and SOx produced from our
operation in Guangzhou were shown in the table below:

Region (China) E (PE)
Total NOx emissions (g) REWBEERE (=)
Total PM emissions (g) By EEERE ()

Total SOx emissions (g) mEwBEERE (=)
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38,599.73
3,652.26
73.38 89.15 (18%)

RZZE—N\FHBEERCARAFRE
FR#BE/29196H BT —+FFALL -
BAH24% - WTHERREFR—HETL
RELEESF MEBREN_-Z
—N\F—RAENAFEILEE SHIMK
REREARRMEE T o

B

ERMANELBRET  ERRLESES
AEAERSHBRASRLCY  FRMER
maEly - HRMEMNEBELHRAL
Y BROE RSB HEEN
TNRATUR -

Increase/
(decrease) in

percentage
ERzlrd: il
/GA)

46,981.67 (18%)
4,437.48 (18%)



The total NOx, PM and SOx emissions resulted 18% drop in fiscal
year 2018 comparing to 2017, it attributed to the better planning
and much efficient use of vehicles.

Emissions from production

Volatile organic compounds (VOCs), is the major organic waste
which is air pollutant being produced during the paint spraying
process for our products. Therefore, the governance of industrial
waste gases containing VOCs is the main focus and control area
for our product fabrication processes. Besides VOCs discharges,
benzene, toluene and xylene are also the air pollutant being
produced during our production process. During the review
period, a licensed party was outsourced for the Group to carry
out an inspection assessment regarding to the average density
and speed of waste gases emissions from our factory. The
assessment confirmed by the licensed party concluding that our
waste gases emission has met the standard discharge limit of the
relevant environmental regulations in the PRC and the density
and speed were shown in the following tables:
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H-T—+Fi - N\FHRF
EHNRELY  FRYERFSRYE
PERE T 18% - I SRR E TR ASE
REIRFEAEMATEFRAE -

FERHK

BEUEARLCAMRIZNERESR
W ZERSRMELBERNERSB
e Rl REBSEREAREAY
MIXBERARMEMREBENER
ERRIEG R - REREERLEY
BEDON  HPIMAEERRETEELZER
ARME S FRR_FR REEH
A NEE R — R INAER -
B THmERNEN FHEEMEE
HEITRERE - T B HERRT
ft > FER I PIMERBERN &+ B AE R
RIBASGEEHRE  BELEREH
SRR

Average density (mg/m?)
FPHRE(BR/LAK)

Volatile
organic

compounds
Xylene (vocC)

Benzene Toluene

Assessment
Report No.
BREE ey

Sampling
Waste gases of emissions E#M4  collection date
EER HERR 2F:S —HE B#teYw BEAW

Organic waste gas emission 0.258 0.182 0.213 242 5th June 2018 Environment
from old factory production “E-)N\F assessment
unit NARA (2018)

REEBIMEEEMABE No0.06050
FERBER o

(2018)
No0.06050

Waste gas emission exhaust port N/A N/A N/A 16.1  8th May 2018 EDD49K000193
from spray paint production T TEA TEA —T-N\F
before waste gas treatment A ANH

BEREEANEREENER
b 35qm
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Average density (mg/m?®)
FHRE(BR,/LHK)
Volatile
organic
compounds
Benzene  Toluene Xylene (VOC) sampling Assassment
Waste gases of emissions E#M4 collection date  Report No.
BERBERK F3 “HE BRLEY BEHEH RREE ey
Waste gas emission exhaust port N/A N/A N/A 6.03  8thMay 2018 EDD49K000193
from spray paint production TEAR AEA TNEA —E-N\F
after waste gas treatment HANH
BRIGEEEREENER
bz 4|
Waste gas emission exhaust port N/A N/A N/A 9.6  8th May 2018 EDD49K000193
from assembly wave TEA S AEA TNEA —E-N\F
soldering before waste gas AANH
treatment
BEREEAAEREENER
71354
Waste gas emission exhaust port N/A N/A N/A 382 8thMay 2018 EDD49K000193
from assembly wave TEAR S AEA TNES —ZE-N\F
soldering after waste gas HANH
treatment
BEREREREBMARRIEEN
FERBER R
Standard Discharge limit <12 <40 <70 <60 - -
RAELERIRRR
Results Pass Pass Pass Pass - -
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Benzene

Waste gases of emission
BERHERL

Organic waste gas emission
from old factory production
unit

REEAEIREEEMHNEH
FERHER

N/A
TER

Waste gas emission exhaust port
from spray paint production
before waste gas treatment

BEREEAEREENER
A

N/A
TER

Waste gas emission exhaust port
from spray paint production
after waste gas treatment

BEREEEEREENER
A

N/A
TiE M

Waste gas emission exhaust port
from assembly wave
soldering before waste gas
treatment

FERBRIR AR B A SR IR EE 6
FERBER O

Average speed (kg/h)
FHRE (DT /IE)

Toluene

N/A
TER

N/A
TER

N/A
M

Xylene

—HX

2.81x10-3

N/A
TER

N/A
TER

N/A
M

Volatile
organic
compounds
(voC)

ER
BRILEY

3.19%10-2

0.046

0.057

0.18

Sampling
collection date
E# B H#

5th June 2018
—E-N\F
~NAEA

8th May 2018
—E-N\F
HANR

8th May 2018
—E-N\F
HANH

8th May 2018
—E-N\F
AANH

Assessment
Report No.
RREE ey

Environment
assessment
(2018)
No0.06050

BRIRRHE (2018)
No.06050

EDD49K000193

EDD49K000193

EDD49K000193
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Average speed (kg/h)
FHER (D)
Volatile
organic
compounds
Benzene  Toluene Xylene (voC) sampling Assassment
Waste gases of emission E#M4 collection date  Report No.
EER R “HE A#RLEEY HEBRH TERE RS
Waste gas emission exhaust port N/A N/A N/A 0.068  8th May 2018 EDD49K000193
from assembly wave g i@ g —E-N\F
soldering after waste gas HANH
treatment
BEREREALRIREN
FER PR A
Standard Discharge limit <0.42 <25 <0.84 <36 - —
R RR R
Results Pass Pass Pass Pass — —
In line with the promotion of VOCs tackling strategy “One REGEMNTIRERBDEMOET [ —0
Enterprise One Plan” as issued by the Guangzhou Bureau of X —HE | BREER A YITERE
Environment Protection, the Group has equipped and installed a AEBERZZE-N\EFE=FERER
VOC exhaust gas treatment system during the 3rd quarter of LTREBEEERCESYERRERS
2018. During the review period, a licensed party was outsourced REBEBE NEBER—BFRTINA
for the Group to carry out an assessment in December 2018 2B RZE-N\FT_AYERES
regarding to the amount of VOCs emissions. It was concluded AL SR EEITE - WHEREM
that the VOCs emission for our factory in Guangzhou amounted BEMNIHN = — \FmEE a1’
to 0.52 tonnes in 2018 comparing to 1.375 tonnes in 2017, it (LEMENE BO52ME - BB - T —+4
represented a decrease of approximately 62%. 1375 MEAELL - A1 62% o
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KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emission

The greenhouse gas emission produced by the Group is mainly
due to Indirect emissions (Scope 2) from purchased electricity
for the production factory. In addition, we also had Direct
emission (Scope 1) principally resulted from the consumptions of
liquefied petroleum gas for running the canteens of the factory,
burning of diesel fuel by the power generators and usages of
factory vehicles. There were Carbon-dioxide equivalent Scope 1
Direct and Scope 2 Indirect emissions figures tabulated as below:

BREMEEALZEERBHK

AEEMBEREBHREIERBLEET
FRIEE E R BER (E 2) © thoh -
BT AEEBER(EBED)  TBRET
BREERBICAHER - BHERIRES
HIARER TRER - —AiE 28
ENEERNEEREERERBRI TR
P51 -

Increase/
(decrease)

in percentage
ERasd: -yl

Emission type E2 35 & il /ORA)
Direct emission (Scope 1) —  EHIZEHEK (EE1) —

Total carbon dioxide —SEbiREEE (NE)

generated equivalent

(tonnes) 129.46 279.94 (54%)
Indirect emission (Scope 2) — FEEHER (SE2) —

Total carbon dioxide —&fthixBE = ()

generated equivalent

(tonnes) 7,536.02 6,372.08 18%
Total emission (tonnes) = (8) 7,665.48 6,652.02 15%

Intensity analysis

Total production of finished FXfh4EES (BAI)

Increase/
(decrease)

in percentage
Epzlsa: il
/ OR)

goods (unit) 39,504,447 39,415,352 0.23%
Intensity for total greenhouse X MHEELIE ERES4AR

gas emission (tonne) per HIMEHZHE (BE)

unit of finished good 0.000194063 0.000168833 15%
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The carbon dioxide generated equivalent from direct emission
(Scope 1) amounted to 129.46 tonnes in fiscal year 2018, it
represented a decrease of 54% comparing to 2017 and it was
mainly attributed to the change of operation right for one of the
staff canteen, the respective canteen had stopped operation
during January to April 2018 which resulted the drop of the
burning of liquefied petroleum gas for the canteen of the factory.

Regarding to the carbon dioxide generated equivalent from
indirect emission (Scope 2), it amounted to approximately 7,536
tonnes in fiscal year 2018, it represented a slight increase of 18%
comparing to 2017. The attributor was the increase of indirect
electricity consumption from the full automation of the capacity
of several newly developed products in 2018. The development
process involved semi-product production and inspection,
product function testing which required much indirect electricity
consumption and resulting the increase of carbon dioxide
generated equivalent from indirect emission (Scope 2).

As the Paris Agreement sends a clear signal that the shift to a
low-carbon economy is inevitable and everyone must play their
part as a corporate citizen. In order to facilitate such transition,
the Group has continued participation to the CDP (Carbon
Disclosure Project) Supply Chain program which helps CDP to
highlight and spur meaningful action on tackling climate change
by capturing vital data on climate change in order to improve
collaboration and encourage transparency. Our greenhouse gas
emission is reported on the platform in July on an annual basis.

KPI A1.3 Hazardous waste emission

The Group is dedicated to managing waste in a responsible way
and strives to optimize the use of resources. The Guangzhou
Factory has established a comprehensive hazardous waste
management system and carries out disposal of hazardous
waste in accordance with relevant laws and regulations. Our
hazardous waste mainly included waste activated carbon with
organic matters, banana oil polluted waste fabrics, waste
lubricant and engine oil, waste emulsion oil, waste paint and
paint residual. There is a storage area in the factory for storing
hazardous solid waste. Our factory also works with institutions
which are qualified to dispose of hazardous waste. During the
review period, we recorded the following hazardous waste
emission figures and they were all collected by qualified
institutions.
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Waste type BEE Y EE
Total hazardous waste EEEEYES
(tonnes) (mg)

BEDH

Intensity analysis

Total production of finished iR E S (BEAL)
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Increase/
(decrease)

in percentage
ERaisa-yil
/O A)

2.60 2.03 28.08%

Increase/
(decrease)

in percentage
Epziza:-4i
/ ORA)

goods (unit) 39,504,447 39,415,352 0.23%
Intensity for hazardous waste FGhELI B EEEY

emission (tonne) per unit HMENZE (H8)

of finished good 0.0000000658 0.0000000515 27.77%

The total hazardous waste emission amounted to 2.60 tonnes in
fiscal year 2018, it represented an increase of approximately 28%
comparing to 2017 and it was attributed to the full automation of
the capacity of several newly developed products in 2018. The
development process involved semi-product production and
inspection, product function testing which produces much
hazardous waste emission.

KPI A1.4 Non-hazardous waste emission

Our Non-hazardous waste from the Guangzhou Factory
operation mainly attributed to scrap, wasted packaging
materials, waste residual from sewer and filter tank as well as
other domestic waste. Packaging materials mainly include
cardboard boxes for product wrap up. We have been
considering the principle of environmental friendly in our
packaging design, and select more eco- friendly packaging
materials and reducing the weight of materials used for our
products. During the review period, we recorded the following
non-hazardous waste emission figures.

RZE-—NFUHREE  EEEEVE
BEMEB260M BT —FE My
28% AR ZE—N\FETHHAEE
mHEEREZEAEE BEEERRES
KA AR R - ERNEAR -
EERNEBEREREY -

BRENERAMESERNHER

BENBEFEXTNESEZMEIERS
BERL - BEEEME - TRKERBIEM
BEEAREMETEN R -  BEMH TR
BREBEMTENARRME - RMAERE
RAFE—HEEERRRA - AWEEE
R R A ) B R R PRAR TR P P
RMENESE - REEMSRE - HIME
TATEEEZMIREUR -
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Scrap and wasted packaging  BEREI R EZEBEME (AT)
materials (kg)
Waste residual from sewer

and filter tank (kg)

TNKE BB EEE (R T)

Intensity analysis

Total production of finished
goods (unit)

Intensity for Scrap and SR ShEALEER N EEE
wasted packaging BEMEEEREE (RT)

materials emission (kg)
per unit of finished good
Intensity for Waste residual &K Sh BT T~ 7K3E KB B
from sewer and filter tank BEE(AT)
(k@) per unit of finished
good

The total non-hazardous waste emission including scrap and
wasted packaging materials as well as waste residual from sewer
and filter tank resulted a decrease of approximately 23% and
75% respectively in fiscal year 2018. The dropping figure was
attributed to the much efficient and accurate use of packaging
materials Also, due to the change of operation right for one of
the staff canteen, the respective canteen had stopped operation
during January to April 2018 which resulted the vast drop of
waste residual from sewer and filter tank. In addition, the kitchen
waste was also properly treated and the treatment through the
filter slag pool was also reduced.
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In addition, the Group continues to practice paper saving
initiatives, such as default double-sided printing, reminder for
staff to have environmentally friendly photocopying habit, and
separated collection of waste paper for effective recycling.
Waste paper recycling bins are placed in office to regularly
recycle used paper, and employees are encouraged to read and
send files electronically to reduce printing.

Use of Resources

The Group adheres to the concept of energy conservation and
emission reduction for green production. The major resources
used by the Group are principally attributed to electricity, water
and packaging materials consumed at the factory in Guangzhou.
We aim to improve our energy utilization efficiency to achieve
low-carbon practices and emission reduction throughout our
production and operation, and strive to save the resources. The
Group’s electricity, water and packaging materials were shown
in the following tables:

KPI A2.1 Indirect electricity consumption

Guangzhou’s factory electricity EMN LR EE (T ELEF)
consumption (Kwh)

BREDH

Intensity analysis

Total production of finished R eh AR E S (B8L)
goods (unit)

Intensity for indirect BENKREERERE
electricity consumption (FTEE)
(Kwh) per unit of finished

good

11,166,528

39,504,447
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The total indirect electricity consumption amounted to 11,166,528
kwh in fiscal year 2018, it represented an increase of 19.6%
comparing to 2017 and it was attributed to the full automation of
the capacity of several newly developed products in 2018. The
development process involved semi-product production and
inspection, product function testing which required much
indirect electricity consumption.

KPI A2.2 Water consumption

B TR ARk (WR)

Guangzhou’s factory water
consumption (tonnes)

Intensity analysis

Total production of finished
goods (unit)

Intensity for water
consumption (tonne) per
unit of finished good

BEMKmAKEE (BE)

The total water consumption amounted to 105,670 tonnes in
fiscal year 2018, it represented a significant increase of 114%
comparing to 2017, it was attributed to the full automation of the
capacity of several newly developed products in 2018. The
development process involved semi- product production and
inspection, product function testing which required much water
consumption. In addition, it is always the Group’s mission to
reduce the impact of VOC emission which is the major organic
waste during the production process. During 3rd quarter of 2018,
a VOC exhaust gas treatment system was installed and applied,
the treatment process requires water consumption in order to
purify the VOC emission. Hence, it resulted the increase of water
consumption.
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The Group has implemented guidelines and policies for energy
saving management which include in-house rules and regulations
for both office and factory employees to follow. The
implementation of policy is the follow-up plan after the Third-
party Certifications upon the 1ISO-14001 and OHSAS-18001
management Standards. An environmental management team is
developed and authorized to set up the targets, indices for
emissions level as well as developing management programmes.
General affairs department is responsible for carrying out the
monitoring work for effective uses of resources.

We have implemented a range of measures designed to reduce
emissions and cut down its consumption of energy and natural
resources. We also promote a paperless office and encourage
staff to reduce electricity and water usage in their daily work to
create a green office. To reduce remarkably the consumption of
electrical energy, the Guangzhou factory has gradually replaced
the traditional lighting tubes with energy-saving tubes that enjoy
higher efficiency and longer life cycle. The factory has applied
push-button taps instead of screwdriver faucet in order to
reduce water wastage. We have established a maintenance and
conservation policy for production and non-production
equipment which aims at enhancing the optimal use of
machineries and equipments. Hence, achieving the least
electricity consumption and greenhouse gas emissions.

In addition, a number of energy conservation promotional
banners and posters were post up in various places to remind
workers. Through catchy slogan and posters, everyone paid high
attention to environmental protection and resource
conservation.

The Group has a strong focus on the water conservation, and
therefore tries to prevent water pollution which is mainly
generated from workers’ living activities. The Guangzhou Factory
promotes sewage bio-chemical treatment facility and water
reuse, so as to reduce the amount of water consumption and
ensure water is used sustainably. We build our own sewage
treatment facilities in the factory to undertake sewage treatment
before discharging, the water from reclaimed water tank is used
for irrigation in staff living quarters.
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KPI A2.5 Packaging materials used for finished products

Our packaging materials for each finished goods include label,
paper packing materials such as cardboard box, plastic bag and
Styrofoam. During the review period, the packaging materials
consumption was shown in the following table:

Type of packaging material &% EER
Label (piece) 2% ()

Paper packing material (piece) #&B MK (1)
Plastic bag (piece) R ()
Foam (piece) SRR (1)
Total (piece) BE (1)

Intensity analysis

Total production of finished — pkSa4EES (B4L)
goods (unit)

Intensity for usage of GBERIK@BBEME
packaging materials (piece)  {EHAZE (1F)

per unit of finished good

The total usage of packaging materials amounted to
approximately 98,894 thousand pieces in fiscal year 2018, it
represented an increase of 26% comparing to 2017. The
increasing figure was attributed to the full automation of the
capacity of several newly developed products in 2018. The
development process of new products involved several
packaging testing.

The Group is dedicated to consume the least packaging materials
as possible. It is the Group’s practice to implement production
planning in a timely basis so as to assess the least amount of
packaging materials needed. The Group is also committed to
source recyclable packaging materials from suppliers with eco-
friendly practice and engagement.
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Quiality talents are the Group’s valuable assets for maintaining
business sustainability. The Group has implemented practices
and adopted “Staff Handbook” with respect to: (i) compensation
and dismissal; (i) recruitment and promotion; (iii) working hours;
(iv) rest periods; (v) equal opportunity; (vi) diversity; (vii) anti-
discrimination; and (viii) welfare and other benefits that all
information and procedures are complied with the Labor law of
the People’s Republic of China, Labor Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China and other relevant laws and
regulations.

The Group strictly complies with International Labour Standards
and the government’s “Provision on the Prohibition of Using
Child Labor” {Z£ |F1# FHZ T #R £ ). No juveniles under 16 years
old are being recruited.

In order to maintain harmonious labour relationships, the Group
firmly eradicates any forced labour, employment discrimination
and occupational discrimination. The Group protects the rights
of staff in terms of providing rest and leave days according to
relevant governmental laws and regulations.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group was
complying sustainably with laws and regulations relating to
employment and labour practices.

The Group rigorously comply with the “Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Work Safety” ((AZE AR EXMBEI L 2 4 &
7A)) and other relevant laws and regulations in order to maintain
health and safety working environment. Employment safety
rules is included in the Group “Staff Handbook” for regulating
occupational health and safety and on-the-job training is
provided for the employees in order to minimize the potential
risk of accidents, injuries and exposure in relation to health risks.
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The Guangzhou factory had obtained Quality Management
System Certification (ISO9001) and Environmental Management
System Certification (ISO14001) formulated by the International
Organisation for Standardisation (“ISO”) and they were certified,
thus effectively guaranteeing the establishment of a healthy, safe
and stable working environment. Daily operations are inspected
by relevant departments, according to the occupational health
and safety requirements of the respective company. Any non-
compliance will also be identified and rectified on a timely basis.
Furthermore, the Guangzhou factory has designed several safety
requirements so as to avoid fire and industrial accidents, such as:

. Fire-fighting facilities like fire extinguishers are well
equipped.

. Designated staff conducts inspection from time to time so
as to ensure the exit passageway clear and unblocked.

. Fire drills are organized twice per year.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group did not
receive any non-compliance with the health and safety laws and
regulations.

The Group places strong emphasis on the career development of
individual employees. Employees are encouraged to keep
abreast of the changing world and pursue continuing educations,
so as to cope with the rapidly changing society and meet the
evolving corporate development needs. The Group encourages
its employees to participate in individual continuing education
programs which are related to their job duties, with a view to
strengthening the professional career training of its staff teams,
promoting professional expertise of management teams and
stimulating the potential abilities of employees. In addition, in
order to enable new staff to fit into the Company and
comprehend the company policy and corporate culture as soon
as possible, the Group provides basic orientation training for all
the new staff and provides its management personnel and
employees with on-the-job education, training and other
opportunities to improve their skills and knowledge. The Group
continues to intensify its efforts to promote staff training
programmes. This helps provide the necessary protection for
talent reserves for corporate development.
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The principal raw materials and components used in Guangzhou
factory production include ICs, PCBs, plastic, motor and battery.
At present, the majorities of manufacturing materials are
purchased domestically. The factory typically procures raw
materials and components upon receipt of purchase orders from
its customers. In order to ensure that the raw materials and
components procured are of the requisite standards, The
Purchasing Department is responsible of procurement of raw
materials, and manages sourcing for our supply chain. An
approved vendor list is maintained for each of its principal raw
materials and components and the vendor list is reviewed
periodically.

To enhance supply chain management, the Group has
formulated management systems and regulates the supplier
selection process to systematically evaluate and qualify new
suppliers. This enables top notch suppliers to enter its supply
system and become its qualified suppliers, thereby facilitating its
stable procurement development. According to the Group’s
“Standard Operating Procedure” and quality management
system relating to the supplier management process, the Group
carefully manage and select qualified suppliers and carry out
regular evaluations to safeguard the quality of its materials and
to ensure its product delivery schedules, establishing a
foundation for providing quality products to our customers.
Customers are becoming more concerned about environmental
issues, and stress us the importance of using environmental-
friendly materials. We will continue to communicate these
demands to our suppliers, strengthen our cooperation with
suppliers regarding their ability to deliver environmental-friendly
materials, coordinate with them in sampling trials, and work with
them to produce societal benefits.

The Group is committed to supplying quality products and
providing quality services that consistently meet or even exceed
our customers’ expectations. The Group has placed a strong
emphasis on quality assurance and has adopted stringent quality
assurance procedures at different stages of its business
operation including the pre-production process, the
procurement of raw materials and components and the
monitoring of production processes and the inspections of
finished products to ensure the qualities of its products.
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The Group’s production facilities have been successfully transited
to new version of 1ISO-9001:2015 and that of IATF-16949:206
Certified for Automotive products since 2017. In addition,
Guangzhou was ISO-13485 Certified for Medical Devices.

The Guangzhou Factory has a team who is responsible for
quality control and quality assurance. It also has an independent
quality assurance department that reports directly to the top
management on product quality matters. Quality assurance
functions are performed throughout the production processes
from the raw materials and components procurement stages to
product delivery stages to ensure that the products can meet
the required national standards and certain industry standards
applicable to such products. Industry standards for products
adopted by the factory including:

(i) IPC-A-610F Acceptability of Electronics Assemblies for
PCBA workmanship requirements;

(i) RoHS (Restriction of Hazardous Substances Directives
2002/95/EC); and

(ii) REACH (Registration, Evaluation, Authorisation and
Restriction of Chemical substances).

Our products are also in compliance with various international
safety standards including:

(i) FCC standards — product standards which are applicable
to telephone and IT;

(i) UL standards — standards for product safety;

(i) CSA standards — standards for product safety and
performance;

(iv) China Compulsory Certification — a mandatory certification

system concerning product safety in China; and

(v) CE — European Union consumer safety, health or
environmental requirements.
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Intellectual property

Our legal department is in charge of protecting our intellectual
property. In addition to highlighting and protecting intellectual
property and ensuring we respect the intellectual property of
others, we protect the fair competition environment, and comply
with industry standards and criteria. During the year, the Group
had not experienced any infringement of its intellectual property
rights by third parties. Also, the Group was not involved in any
material litigation or legal proceedings for violation of intellectual
property rights and there was no material violation of the same.

Customer relationship management

Customer satisfaction is the foundation of an enterprise’s
competitiveness, and the Group continuously tries to improve on
this aspect. The Group has a customer-oriented focus and strives to
provide quality products and services by continuously hearing what
its customers are looking for. A policy “Communication and Service
with Customers Manual” ( £ 88 % 83 38 K AR 7515 #1132 /7)) has
set to standardize the procedure for customers” communication in
order to promote operation consistency and increased
responsiveness to customers’ changing needs. The Group collects
customers’ feedbacks relating to its manufactured products which
are used as important references in its constant efforts to improve
product quality and promote customer satisfaction. The Group is
always trying to improve, and address complaints or feedback
quickly to resolve any issues. A Customer Services Department has
set up to maintain ongoing communication with customers and
ensure the Group can provide excellent service. The Group put
great emphasis on protecting customer privacy, and implement
stringent internal management for marketing activities to safeguard
customer information security.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group did not
receive any non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations
related to product responsibility.
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As corruption is detrimental to fair competition and corporate
integrity, anti-corruption has become one of the main corporate
business ethics principles for many of the world’s premier
enterprises. We advocate honest operation and fair competition,
and require that our staff comply with the national laws and
regulations, as well as the Group’s regulations and systems. To
promote compliance in the workplace, we also focus on
anticorruption and anti-bribery principles for staff.

As part of the Group efforts to make anticorruption an important
corporate management activity, it sets up whistle blowing
channels to help prevent irregularities. All staff must comply with
the Group’s business code of conduct, which aims to prevent
corruption from a system perspective. The Group also continues
to improve its internal control and monitoring system. If
problems are identified, the Group takes immediate action, and
has a zero tolerance approach to corruption in order to prevent
irregularities.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group did not
receive any non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations
related to anti-corruption.

In terms of community involvement, the Group continues to run
a corporate social responsibility program, in which it encourages
employees to participate in community services and contribute
to care needs of the community. As part of its efforts to promote
education, one of the subsidiaries of the Group established the
“migrant workers’ child education subsidize program” to support
the education of the worker’s children. During the year ended 31
December 2018, with 181 migrant workers are benefited and a
total amount of RMB90,000 is subsidized.
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The Board is pleased to present their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of
the principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group’s principal activities during the Year.

Details of (i) business review (ii) principal risks and uncertainties and
(ii) future development of the Group’s business are set out
respectively in the “Business overview”, “Key risks and uncertainties”
and “Prospects” sections under “Management Discussion and Analysis”
of the annual report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year using financial
key performance indicators is set out in the Group’s Five-year Financial
Summary on pages 222 to 223 of this annual report.

The Group understands the success of the Group’s business depends
on the support from its key stakeholders, including employees,
customers, suppliers, banks, regulators and shareholders. The Group
will continue to ensure effective communication and maintain good
relationship with each of its key stakeholders.

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December 2018 and the Group’s
financial position at that date are set out in the audited consolidated
financial statements on pages 78 to 8.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).
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A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements is set out
on pages 222 to 223. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year amounted to
approximately HK$861,000 (2017: HK$485,000).

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the Year
are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements in this
annual report.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, the jurisdiction
in which the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s listed
securities by the Company or any of the subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the loss attributable to
shareholders of the Company amounted to HK$58.0 million. The
Company’s reserves available for distribution comprise share premium
and accumulated losses/retained profits. Under the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands and the provisions of the Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Company, the Company’s share premium
account may be applied by the Company in paying distributions or
dividend to shareholders of the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the distribution or dividend is proposed to
be paid, the Company shall be able to pay its debts as they fall due in
the ordinary course of business.

As at 31 December 2018, the Company has no distributable reserve
that was available for distribution to the shareholders.
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Related parties transactions of the Group during the Year are disclosed
in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report.

During the Year, the Company and the Group had the following
connected and continuing connected transactions, certain details of
which are disclosed in compliance with the requirements of Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

On 1 August 2018, Telefield Limited (the “Vendor”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company entered into the sales and purchase
agreement (“S&P Agreement”) with Dragon Fortune International
Limited (the “Purchaser”), pursuant to which the Vendor agreed to sell
and the Purchaser agreed to purchase the entire issued share capital
of Circuit Development Limited (“Disposal Company”) and
shareholder’s loan owing by the Disposal Company to the Vendor as
at the date of the S&P Agreement at the consideration of HK$32
million (the “Disposal”).

The Purchaser is owned as to 53.30% by Century Win Industrial
Limited (“Century Win”), as to 8.64% by Mr. Ng Kim Yuen, as to 6.50%
by Ms. Fok Pui Yin, as to 8.64% by Mr. Lee Kai Bon and as to 22.92% by
other independent third parties. Century Win is owned as to 53.68%
by Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve and as to 46.32% by Ms. Ma Mei Han
Elitte, spouse of Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve.

Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve and Ms. Fok Pui Yin are the directors of
both the Vendor and the Disposal Company whereas Mr. Ng Kim Yuen
and Mr. Lee Kai Bon are the directors of the Vendor. As such, the
Purchaser is a connected person at the subsidiary level of the
Company.

As such, the Disposal constitutes a connected transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing rules. Details can be found
from the Company’s announcements dated 1 August 2018.

Apart from the foregoing, there was no transaction which need to be
disclosed as connected transaction pursuant to Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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On 21 December 2017, an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, Telefield Holdings Limited (“Telefield”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Telefield Group”) and Noble Treasure Holdings
Limited (“Noble Treasure”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Noble
Treasure Group”) entered into a master sale agreement (the
“Agreement 1), pursuant to which Telefield Group agreed to supply to
Noble Treasure Group and Noble Treasure Group agreed to purchase
from Telefield Group the EMS products for a period commencing from
the 5th business days from the date of the Agreement 1 or such other
day as may be agreed between the parties to 31 December 2018 (both
days inclusive).

In addition, on 24 December 2018, Telefield further entered into a
master sale agreement (“Agreement 2”) with Noble Treasure pursuant
to which Telefield Group agreed to supply to Noble Treasure Group
and Noble Treasure Group agreed to purchase from Telefield Group
the EMS products for a period commencing from the 5th business
days from the date of the Agreement 2 or such other day as may be
agreed between the parties to 31 December 2020 (both days
inclusive).

Details can be found from the Company’s announcements dated 24
December 2018 and 6 March 2019.
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During the Year, the Telefield Group has entered into the sales of
goods transaction with the Noble Treasure Group as follows:

KEFNA - Telefield EEE M B EE B FT A
THEERRS :

HK$

BT
Maestro Wireless Solutions Limited BEEBERHEBR AT 14,465,693
Able Trend Technology Limited LBEHAR AR 1,443,312
MarkAudio Loudspeakers Limited MarkAudio Loudspeakers Limited 790,247
Telefield Medical Imaging Limited FREREREEREA T 985,071
B. Kettner Products Hong Kong Limited EEBYH B ERA A 458,434
Sota Acoustics Limited HEZSEERAA 111,080
Total P 18,253,837*
* The transaction amount exceeded the approved annual cap of HK$6 million (as defined RS E BB EFE _FPR 6,000,000 T (EEAEA

in the announcement of the Company dated 6 March 2019).

The Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed the
abovementioned continuing connected transactions and have
confirmed that such transactions were entered into:

. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

. on normal commercial terms and on terms no less favourable to
the Group than terms available from independent third parties;
and

. in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The Company’s auditor has issued their letter containing
their findings and qualified conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group in this annual report in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
auditors’ letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.
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The auditor’s letter confirms that, in respect of the above-mentioned
continuing connected transactions, except for the total sales of goods
transaction with the Noble Treasure Group have exceeded the annual
cap of HK$6 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 determined
by the Company as disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 6 March 2019:

a. nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the above-mentioned continuing
connected transactions have not been approved by the
Company’s Board of Directors.

b.  nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the above-mentioned continuing
connected transactions were not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
such transactions.

C. nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the transactions were not, in all material
respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group.

During the Year, total sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for 68.5% of the Group’s sales for the Year and sales to the
largest customer included therein amounted to 41.7%. Total purchases
from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for 16.0% of the
Group’s purchases.

None of Directors, their associates or any substantial shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the
listed issuers share capital) has any interest in the Group’s five largest
suppliers and customers.
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The Remuneration Committee was established for reviewing the
Group’s emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the
Directors and senior management of the Group, having regard to the
Group’s operating results, individual performance and comparable
market practices.

The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of
this report are:

Mr. Gong Shaoxiang (Chairman)

Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua

Mr. Duan Chuanhong

Mr. Shi Xinbiao (resigned on 31 January 2019)

Mr. Cao Yuyun

Mr. Bao Jingiao
Mr. Wong Chun Hung
Mr. Leung Pok Man

With effect from 31 January 2019, Mr. Shi Xinbiao (“Mr. Shi”) resigned
as an executive Director of the Company due to his other personal
business developments. Mr. Shi has confirmed that he has no
disagreement with the Board and there is no matter in respect of his
resignation that need to be brought to the attention of the
shareholders of the Company.

In accordance with Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association of the
Company and code provision A.4 of the Code under Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules, Mr. Cao Yuyun, Mr. Bao Jingiao and Mr. Leung Pok
Man will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting
and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from Mr. Bao Jingiao, Mr. Wong Chun Hung and Mr. Leung Pok Man,
and as at the date of this annual report, the Company still considers
them to be independent.
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Biographical details of the Directors of the Group are set out on pages
32 to 33 of this annual report.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group subsisted at the
end of the Year or at any time during the Year to which the Company,
its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party.

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.

Under Articles of Association 191 of the Company’s articles, the
directors shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets
and profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them
shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or
supposed duty, in their respective offices, provided that this indemnity
shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty
which may attached to any of them. Such permitted indemnity
provision is currently in force and was in force throughout the financial
year.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE DIRECTORS
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2018, no interests and short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) were held by the Directors
and chief executives of the Company which are required (i) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); (ii) pursuant to section 352 of part XV of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein; or (iii) pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of the Company contained in
the Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

As at 31 December 2018, none of the Director is a director or employee
of a company which has an interest or a short position in the shares of
the Company (the “Shares”) or the underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

INTEREST AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2018, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of Part XV of the
SFO shows the following shareholders had notified the Company of
relevant interests, being 5% or more of the issued share capital of the
Company.
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Mr. Yang Zhihui (“Mr. Yang”) (Note 1)
PR ZEA ([P E D (M)

Ms. Xu Ning (“Ms. Xu”) (Note 2)
Tzt (R (Miz2)

Keywan Global Limited (Note 3)
Keywan Global Limited (#15F 3)

Mr. He Xiaoming (Note 3)
AR & (K7 3)

Mr. Cao Longbing (Note 4)
BEEEA (HiF4)

Hearts Capital (Asia) Limited (Note 4)
Hearts Capital (Asia) Limited (#f5%4)

Hearts Capital SPC — Hearts SP2
(Note 4)

Hearts Capital SPC — Hearts SP2
(Btat4)

Long Asia Asset Management (HK)
Limited (“Long Asia”) (Note 4)
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China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited EEZFEE X2 E=EHE AT

Capacity

)

Held by controlled
corporation
RXESEEEE

Interest of spouse
Y £

Beneficial Owner
BEmlEAA

Held by controlled
corporation
R EHEEEE

Beneficial Owner
BEmlEaA

Held by controlled
corporation
RS EEFE

Beneficial Owner
BEmlEa A

Investment manager
wEKE

Number of
shares held

RO BE

1,516,340,000

1,516,340,000

990,000,000

990,000,000

727,160,000

718,600,000

718,600,000

718,600,000

Long or
short position

HREKA

Long
2

Long

e

Long
A

Long
e
Long
e
Long

e

Long
gE

Long
e

Percentage of
issued Share
Capital of the
Company
HAERT BT
BEBD L

25.50%

25.50%

16.65%

16.65%

12.23%

12.09%

12.09%

12.09%



ReR@RIEE [HIEDIRECTORS
FESHE

Notes:

1. 1,516,340,000 ordinary shares are held by Power Port, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands whose entire issued share capital is held by Mr. Yang.

2. Ms. Xu is the spouse of Mr. Yang. Under the SFO, Ms. Xu is deemed to be interested in

the same number of Shares in which Mr. Yang is interested.

3. 990,000,000 ordinary shares are held by Keywan Global Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands whose entire issued share capital is held by Mr.
He Xiaoming.

4. Long Asia is the investment manager of Hearts Capital SPC — Hearts SP2 and is
therefore deemed to be interested in the shares owned by Hearts Capital SPC — Hearts
SP2 under the SFO. 718,600,000 ordinary shares are held by Hearts Capital SPC —
Hearts SP2, a company incorporated in Cayman Islands whose entire issued share
capital is held by Hearts Capital (Asia) Limited, which in turn is 70% controlled by Mr.
Cao Longbing who is also interested in 8,560,000 ordinary shares.

At no time during the Year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to
any Director or their respective associates, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

During the Year, none of the Directors or controlling shareholders of
the Company nor their respective associates is considered to have
interests in a business that competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group other than
those businesses where the Directors have been appointed or were
appointed as Directors to represent the interests of the Company.
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As to attract and retain the eligible persons, to provide additional
incentive to them and to promote the success of the business of the
Group, the Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) on 31 December 2010 whereby the Board are authorised, at
their absolute discretion and subject to the terms of the Scheme, to
grant options to subscribe for the Shares to, inter alia, any employees
(full-time or part-time), Directors, consultants, advisers, distributors,
contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business partners or service
providers of the Group. The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of ten years commencing from the date on which the Scheme
was adopted, subject to the early termination provisions contained in
the Scheme.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within seven days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The amount
payable by the grantee of an option to the Company on acceptance of
the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.00. The subscription price
of a Share in respect of any particular option granted under the
Scheme shall be a price solely determined by the Board and notified
to a participant and shall be at least the highest of: (i) the closing price
of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
on the date of grant of the option; (ii) the average of the closing prices
of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets
for the 5 trading days immediately preceding the date of grant of the
option; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share on the date of grant of
the option provided always that for the purpose of calculating the
subscription price, where the Company has been listed on the Stock
Exchange for less than 5 trading days, the issue price shall be used as
the closing price for any trading day fall within the period before the
Listing Date.

The Company shall be entitled to issue options, provided that the total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Scheme does not exceed 10% of the shares in
issue from the Listing Date. The Company may at any time refresh
such limit, subject to the shareholders’ approval and issue of a circular
in compliance with the Listing Rules, provided that the total number of
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under all the share option schemes of
the Company does not exceed 30% of the shares in issue at the time.
An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme at any time during a period as the Board may determine
which shall not exceed ten years from the date of grant subject to the
provisions of early termination thereof.
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There is no outstanding share option as at 31 December 2018 and 31
December 2017. In addition, no share option was granted, cancelled or
lapsed during the year ended 31 December 2018.

The Company has applied the code provisions set out in the Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. Since its listing on the
Stock Exchange, the Company has complied with the code provisions
of the Code, save for the exceptions explained in the Corporate
Governance Report in this annual report.

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this
annual report.

Up to the date of this report, there was no significant events relevant
to the business or financial performance of the Group that come to the
attention of the Directors since 31 December 2018.

At the last annual general meeting of the Company, RSM Hong Kong
was re-appointed as the auditor of the Company. On 22 November
2018, the auditor of the Company changed its Chinese practicing name

to "X FTRNEIAT".
The consolidated financial statements have been audited by RSM

Hong Kong who retires and, being eligible, offers themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Gong Shaoxiang
Chairman

Hong Kong
27 March 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B AN S

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA HEALTHCARE ENTERPRISE GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited (the “Company”)and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 78 to 221, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA™)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B AN RS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. The key audit matters we identified
are:

1. Impairment assessment of Catering Services Cash Generating
Unit ("CGU”)

2. Impairment of loans to employees and other parties
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Key Audit Matter

HARETER

1.

Impairment assessment of Catering Services CGU

Refer to notes 21 and 39(a) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Pride Review Group was acquired in previous year and
has been engaging in provision of catering services. As
at the end of reporting period, the Catering Services
CGU had goodwill of HK$18,814,000.

The Group’s management has performed an
impairment assessment at the reporting date and
determined that there was no impairment loss for the
goodwill allocated to the Catering Services CGU.

The impairment assessment was based on a value in
use model which was dependent upon certain key
assumptions that require significant management
judgement and estimation.

BERRERSEASEVRENG
2R3 A PSRRI 5 21 s 39a) °

Pride Review EEE M EFHWEEW —HIE FIRHEZE R
RIE - MIMEHR  BHRRBERCELEUNEFE
/318,814,000 7T °

EEEEREECDNWE B HETRERN G - LHEE
DEEERRGREELEMNHELEBERE

WER G DENERBEELNGE  ZRVEURT
REHERBFHEAAE LR S TR R -

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPETETRNEERESETTEE

Our procedures in relation to management’s
assessment of impairment for the Catering Services
CGU included:

—  Evaluating the independent external valuer’s
competence, capabilities and objectivity;

—  Assessing the integrity of the valuation model;

— Assessment of the reasonableness of key
assumptions based on our knowledge of the
business and industry;

— Reconciliation of input data to supporting
evidence including approved budgets and
considering the historical accuracy of
management’s budgets; and

—  Assessing the appropriateness of the discount
rate used with the assistance of our internal
valuation specialists.
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Key Audit Matter

HARETER

2.

Impairment of loans to employees and other parties

Refer to note 28 of the consolidated financial
statements

Loans to employees and other parties represent a
significant portion of the Group’s assets.

The Group adopted HKFRS 9 in the current financial
year. The standard introduces a new impairment
model for financial assets based on expected credit
losses (“ECL").

A loss allowance for 12-month ECL is made on all loans.
Management is required to assess whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition of the loans and, if so, recognise a loss
allowance for lifetime ECL.

Management is required to exercise significant
judgement in determining whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition and in estimating 12-month and lifetime
ECL on the loans. Accordingly, this area is considered
as a key audit matter.

EESREMALREHANETRE
2R B MK FE28
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPETETRNEERESETTEE

— Evaluating management’s assessment of
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition of material
loans.

—  Evaluating the independent external valuer’s
competence, capabilities and objectivity.

—  With the assistance of our internal valuation
specialists: assessing the appropriateness of
the impairment models used by management
to estimate ECL; comparing the inputs to the
models to external data; and assessing the
appropriateness of any forward looking
adjustments in light of available information
about current and forecast future economic
conditions.
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The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The Other
Information comprises all of the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of the Other Information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited 2 E @ A ¥ EEER AT

- HEFERARELESTERMNNBRER
R - WIRBAERNETRE
BERAFEESHEIBABENEXN
THEEM  EMA SRy BHEEN
FERERNEEEREE - HMEMA
REEEATHEEN  ABLEERK
B &R IRF I BE A M B HER T A
BMIBEEN - WEBREERTRE - Al
ERHFER - RAWEHHEREE
ZBEN RS B B P AU R BT ERAE
AW RRBELBAAEEN EE
BEAFHEKE -

¢ HERAMBHmMRNOBEIEBOA &
BRAT BREEEEN URGEEH
BHREREETHERRBABEIZMER -

B ERERERAEBEHNUBE
HERR - BENETRE  UEY
FAEMBEHRAERER - RMAEEHE
B EEMATEEE - RAESRK
PMEEA B RAESE -

BMBEEZZEGART (HhaiE) tains
AHEREEZY  EXEFBRRSZER 8
ERFIEE BB A RSN T E
RERK e

BRI REZZESRIBH  FHARMSN
EEBBELIENERERENR  YRFEEER
AR EMER RS ERMBE LN AR
BEREMEE - ARAABHHEGE(ER) -
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Wong Tak Man, Stephen.

RSM Hong Kong

Certified Public Accountants
29th Floor, Lee Garden Two
28 Yun Ping Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

27 March 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BiLEZ —E—F+=-A=+—HILFEF

2018 2017
—E—N\F —EF—tF
HK$°000 HK$000
FHT T
Revenue WA 8 735,184 662,208
Cost of sales SHE RN (562,695) (497,793)
Gross profit EX 172,489 164,415
Other income E A 10 27,100 19,524
Selling and distribution expenses SHE R (29,260) (45,578)
Administrative expenses 1TEREH (185,037) (151,934)
Other operating expenses HgEsm (25,095) (94,789)
Loss from operations KEER (39,803) (108,362)
Finance costs BB KA 11 (4,652) (13,049)
Loss before tax KRB ATEE (44,455) (121,411
Income tax expense FriafFiFEx 12 (4,845) (9,898)
Loss for the year FEEE 13 (49,300) (131,309)
Attributable to: DT &FHEA -
Owners of the Company ViN/NETEZZ SN (57,984) (128,428)
Non-controlling interests JEPE I i 8,684 (2,881)
(49,300) (131,309)
Loss per share SREE 17
Basic (cents per share) HIR (FREHAL) (0.975) (2.508)
Diluted (cents per share) B (FRBWL) N/A i N/A 73 A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

reBEnlEMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z—F—N\F+-A=+—HI-FE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+t%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FaT FHIT
Loss for the year FEEEB (49,300) (131,309)
Other comprehensive income: Hit 2wk :
Items that will not be reclassified to BT eEHHERERIER -
profit or loss:
Gain on property revaluation Y E W= 18 3,687 3,752
Deferred tax charge from gain on Y3 E (RS AR T
property revaluation s 35 (495) (445)
Fair value changes of equity BAFEGFAEMEE
investments at fair value through et (B AFESFAEMER
other comprehensive W) MR E A FE
income (FVTOCI) b= 24 (25,716) -
(22,524) 3,307
Items that may be reclassified to AEH S EEEmmER -
profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating BREGINEBHIER =5
foreign operations 352 266
Exchange difference reclassified to HEHBATBENSES
profit or loss on disposal of B AE AR
subsidiaries 39(c), (e) - (429)
Fair value changes of available-for-sale At &S REER
financial assets NEEEEF) - (40,427)
Reclassification adjustment for loss Bt HESREEMRZ
recognised in respect of EBEEN D ERAE
available-for-sale financial assets
— Loss on disposal — HEEIE - 20,339
— Impairment loss — REEIE - 28,145
352 7,894
Other comprehensive income FEHMZ2AEWE - NRFHIE
for the year, net of tax (22,172) 11,201
Total comprehensive income FEZERSAE
for the year (71,472) (120,108)
Attributable to: DR EF L :
Owners of the Company ZiN/NEIEZE N (80,020) (117,302)
Non-controlling interests FEFERR RS 8,548 (2,806)
(71,472) (120,108)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AR RO R

As at 31 December 2018 R=ZE—\E+=HA=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+t5F
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#&T FAET
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENMERE 18 51,904 57,876
Investment properties "EME 19 30,000 30,000
Prepaid lease payments S RIE 20 1,288 2,034
Goodwill EES 21 18,814 18,814
Intangible assets mEE 22 - -
Rental deposits Heke 10,894 2,235
Loans to employees and other parties MEE RHMALTER 28 44,797 -
Equity investments at FVTOCI BATEFAEMEERED
ferEz & 24 21,859 -
Deferred tax assets EEFIAE E 35 1,938 2,032
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 181,494 112,991
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 25 113,962 85,164
Trade receivables FEUE SRR 26 155,761 116,806
Prepayments, deposits, other FERRIE - e - HiEl
receivables and other assets RENHEMEE 27 85,039 55,730
Loans to employees and other parties MEE RHMATER 28 30,631 94,993
Amount due from a related company [ U — &1 B A~ 71 )08 320D 1,274 1,257
Loan to a non-controlling m—RERBARIZ—%
shareholder of a subsidiary IR R E R 32(ii) 1,731 120
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESRERE 24 - 11,958
Equity investments at FVTOCI BAFEF ARG EERED
A & 24 5,328 -
Current tax assets BVERT I8 & B 183 340
Pledged bank deposits BRI TER 29() 1,250 1,850
Bank and cash balances SRITRIB 8 29(i1) 354,209 479,379
Total current assets REBEERAE 749,368 847,597
TOTAL ASSETS WEE 930,862 960,588
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AR e RO R

As at 31 December 2018 R =ZE—NF+=-A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$000
THET FA&TT
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EENEE
Equity B
Equity attributable to owners of KAREE NEGER
the Company
Share capital A& A 36 5,945 5,945
Reserves & 38 566,859 648,600
572,804 654,545
Non-controlling interests FEIERS 10,028 (543)
Total equity A 582,832 654,002
LIABILITIES aE
Non-current liabilities kRBES
Deferred tax liabilities FEFIEAE 35 - 4,198
Total non-current liabilities kRBEBEEE - 4,198
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade payables JENE SRR 30 76,474 74,829
Accruals and other payables TEIRE A N E b e FIE 31 215,463 169,169
Amount due to a non-controlling BN —FENB ARz —%
shareholder of a subsidiary FEFE AR A B FRIE 32() - 535
Borrowings == 33 40,267 43,139
License rights payable B ER R 4,108 6,184
Product warranty provisions E MR AR 34 2,498 3,336
Current tax liabilities BNEAR B A S 9,220 5,196
Total current liabilities REBEEAE 348,030 302,388
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ERhEasaE 930,862 960,588

Approved by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2019 and are signed EEERN_ZF-NF=A-+LAEIAT

on its behalf by: WATREESR :
Gong Shaoxiang Lee Chi Hwa Joshua
ZOH THEE
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o oE D e TEMENT OF CRANGES IN EQUITY
A EREER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =—F—\F+=A=+—HI-FE

Attributable to owners of the Company
FATREAEE

Foreign Equity  Retained
Share currency Property Investment  Investments profits/ Non-
Share  premium Merger  translation  revaluation  Contributed  Statutory Capital Capital ~ revaluation  at FVTOCI (accumulated controlling
capital account reserve reserve reserve surplus reserve teserve  contribution reserve reserve losses) Total interests
RAYE
AR

2EREN
REEfS  WERE
i e

At L January 207 RZF-t5-A-8 495 307,740 511 13,703 20990 18298 2502 383 1280 (8,057) - %429 474847 (11,210) 463,637
Total comprehensive ncome~ FE2EHE#E
for the year - - (238) 3307 - - - - 8057 - (128428) (730D (2806) (120108
Shares issued upon subscription - REZEBEARA 90 296,010 - - - - - - - - - 297,000 - 297,000
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR
(note 39(c), (f)) (W#390) - (0) - - - - - - - - - - - - - nat 1
Acouisition of a subsiclary B -EHEAT
(note 39(b) (Wat39m) - - - - - - - - - - - - - 206 206
Changes inequity for the year ~ EFEZEE 99 29,010 - (28) 3307 - - - - 8,057 - (L1848 179,69 10,667 190,365
At 31 December 2017 RE-t%
TZA=1-8 5945 603,750 Ry 13,465 2291 1829 250 38% 11280 - - (31,999 654,545 (54 054,002

Adjustments on Iniia BREREANERE

aoplication of EE|Z 0% 5E

—HKFRS 9 (note 3) (Hit3) - - - - - - - - - - (28,145) 26424 (1,721) - (1,720
Restated balance &t RIZ-N\E-F-8H

1 January 2018 Ex(EF5) 5,945 603,750 3m 13,465 24297 18,298 2502 3836 11,280 - (28,145) (5,575) 652,824 (543) 652,281
Total comprehensive income ~ £E 2 AR EHE

for the year - - - 488 3192 - - - - - (25,716) (57,984) (80,020) 8548 (11,472)
Disposal of subsiaiaries HERBAR - - - - (27,489) - - 439 - - - 21,050 - 203 2003
Changes inequity for the year ~ £FEX2H - - - 488 (24,297 - - 439 - - (25,716) (30,934) (80,020) 10571 (69,449)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE
TZA=+-8 5,945 603,750 3m 13,953 - 18,298 2502 4275 11,280 - (53,861) (36,509) 572,804 10,028 562,832
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@@ O IDATED STATEMENT O CASFFEOWS

meEREeRER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z—F—N\F+A=+—HI-FE

Note
KtaE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING KRETHRESRE

ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax BRIERIEE
Adjustments for: T
Impairment losses for trade R E 5 ERFORBEEIRF5E
receivables, net 26
Impairment losses for loans to mMEMATERZ
other parties, net REE R FRE
Reversal of allowance on FEREREFE
inventories, net
Bad debt written off in RIENE 5 8RR
trade receivables 2 AR
Depreciation e 18
Fair value gain on "EYE L NFE
investment properties e 19
Finance costs A& R AR 11
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEW B QA W 10
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary — — &I B 2 B8 5
2 E518
Gain on bargain purchase from REBREHRE
business combination Wi 2 Wz 10
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - KE R
plant and equipment H W 10
Impairment loss on receivables for HERRLBR S 2 BRI
factoring business RIEREE R
Impairment loss on available-for- AtEESMEE L
sale financial assets REEE
Interest income on loans to mfE B REMA LT
employees and others parties BB UA
Bank interest income and bank fixed BT F B A K $R 1T E Hf
deposit interest income ERFEHA 10
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR ZER 13
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale ~ HER[HHESREE
financial assets 2 &8
Waive of license rights payable BIrRENRER R 10
Provision on product warranty EmirAEE 34

2018
—E-N\F

HK$’000
FET

(44,455)

148

4,982

(2,419)

141
17,488

4,652
(2,699)

50

(88)

(8,196)

(439)
52

(1,857)
2,498

2017

—E—+tF

HK$'000
THET

(121,411)

2,827

(12,269)

4
15,775

(2,157)

13,049
(4,402)

(2,354)

15

28,145

(3,659)

(941)
19,231

20,339

3,336

Annual Report F ik 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mEREMER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =—F—\F+=A=+—HI-FE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF
HK$7000 HK$000
FET FHET
Operating loss before working LEESEHA
capital changes K EE (30,142) (44,472)
Payment of license fee payables FFET R 3R (504) (1,434)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEOEMm . m (26,379) 23,151
(Increase)/decrease in JEWE SR
trade receivables (3ghn) Fi b (40,437) 14,922
Increase in prepayments, deposits, TEMHIE -~ e - HaEk
other receivables and other assets FRIA T2 EoAh & S AN (38,030) (36,719)
Increase in amount due from a FEUS —FRI A& A RIFRIE
related company 0 (17) -
Increase in loan to a non-controlling m—HEfBAR .z —%
shareholder of a subsidiary FEEAR AR R B FRIE N (1,611) -
Decrease in amount due to a e —R& &R EFTIBR D
joint venture - (67)
(Decrease)/increase in amount E—EMB ARz —%
due to a non-controlling FEFE A% I BR FIE
shareholder of a subsidiary CRLA), /& (535) 208
Increase in receivables for H AR LB TS < FEUWIR
factoring business b2hil - (7.569)
Increase/(decrease) in FERT 8B SERFIG I, (R d)
trade payables 1,965 (8,133)
Increase in accruals TEIRE A R H A FET FRIE
and other payables 0 52,710 30,814
Decrease in product EmRARER
warranty provisions (3,336) (3,800)
Cash used in operations KEFTAR G (86,316) (33,099)
Cash used in operations KETAR S (86,316) (33,099)
Income tax paid EX TS (5,108) (973)
Finance costs paid EXIRERAR (4,367) (2,142)
Net cash used in operating activities & EBIAT IR & 558 (95,791) (36,214)
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@@ O IDATED STATEMENT O CASFFEOWS

meEREeRER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z—F—N\F+A=+—HI-FE

2018
—E-N\F

HK$’000
FET

2017

—E—+F

HK$'000
THET

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHHRERE

ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of subsidiaries s B8 BT 8 A B 39¢a), (b) - (20,795)
(Increase)/decrease in cash in KRTRESERRPZ

margin account of brokerage firms W (), SEd (14,059) 67
Decrease in prepaid lease payments T & FIE R 20 624 607
Disposal of subsidiaries (net of HEMBAR

cash and cash equivalents (MrerEzHe Rk

disposed of) ReEEY) 39(0)-(k) 30,346 7,272
Decrease/(increase) in pledged BIRAIRITER

bank deposits R (38 00) 600 (1,850)
Interest received 2 E 439 941
Loans to employees and other parties  [AlfE 8 R E b A+ E (72,461) (91,363)
Repayment from loans to employees  [A{EE & Hith A+

and other parties BEREIER 92,805 -
Purchase of equity investments at BER AT EFT AHAM

FVTOCI P E WS RERE (40,945) -
Purchase of investment properties BEXREWE 19 - (27,843)
Purchases of property, BEVE BELRR

plant and equipment 18 (41,139) (6,007)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BEMEHEZ

plant and equipment Fr1S 5008 404 139
Net proceeds from disposal of HEAHEESREEZ

available-for-sale financial assets FriS kI8 558 - 77,839
Refundable deposit refunded from TEUEBIZEBATRE

proposed acquisition of a ZARER S

target group - 140,000
Net cash (used in)/generated B EE (FTA),/

from investing activities FT{SIR & 558 (43,386) 79,007
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mEREMER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =—F—\F+=A=+—HI-FE

2018
—E-N\F

Note HK$’000
HiaF TET

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHRERE

2017

—E—+F

HK$'000
THET

ACTIVITIES
Borrowings raised EEEEE - 53,842
Proceeds from subscription of shares 3R {7 FT{S 5018 360) - 297,000
Repayment of borrowings EiEE 39() (1,780) (121,988)
Net cash (used in)/generated from mEEE (), s

financing activities R /F5E (1,780) 228,854
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN BERRLEEY

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CR2) g (140,957) 271,647
Effect of foreign exchange rate [EREE)rE

changes 1,728 (494)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—A—HMEERK

AT 1 JANUARY REZEY 479,379 208,226
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R+=ZB=+—H®W

AT 31 DECEMBER ReERREEEY 29(ii) 340,150 479,379
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z—F—N\F+A=+—HI-FE

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Law as an exempted company with limited liability
on 18 May 2010. The address of its registered office is Clifton
House, 75 Fort Street, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108,
Cayman Islands and principal place of business is Suites 5815-
5816, 58/F., Two International Finance Centre, No. 8 Finance
Street, Central, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). HKFRSs comprise
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards; Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKAS”); and Interpretations. These
consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange
and with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed in note 4.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are
first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides information on
any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

ARARZZE—ZTFHRHATNABRER
AEEREREAMKIAEREER
A E GE A S &R b bk & Clifton
House, 75 Fort Street, PO Box 1350, Grand
Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands © & &
EEMBAAETEPRSMATSHR R
@ EhA O B 581 5815-5816 % © KA R
BROEBEBBERXIABR AR (B
ATl EMR BT o

ARABRARRAT - EHBRT
RN AT B WRN 23 -

HZEFAMBRRDBEEEGTA
g((HEQMAg ) B ZAEER
FEEMBHRELEN(EEMHREE
AR - AR BREENBERE
MigmERER - A EN(EESR
AR R - REREMHHRERT
HEBR RS EMAR EmRRL)
#0308 PR B R R S R B 8 AR (55 622
BINBERTE  ARERMIEESS
BORAMIFE4 T -

BERMASTRME T REE
RIEEVHEHmEEN  RFEANAE
EASTHEERERKAHERK
e tRAKEEH BENEXER
S HHR] MARIEET 2 2RI AT 5| B0 A I
BESFHEZETHRNEMERE
EREESEVBERRARR  BRE
FLERFIRAPRES ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M At

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z —ZF— N\F+_-_A=+—HILF&E

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018. Of these, the following
developments are relevant to the Group’s consolidated
financial statements:

(i) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments; and

(i) HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of HKAS 39 that relate to
the recognition, classification and measurement of financial
assets and financial liabilities, derecognition of financial
instruments, impairment of financial assets and hedge
accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the
transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied the
classification and measurement requirements
retrospectively to instruments that have not been
derecognised as at 1 January 2018 (date of initial
application) and has not applied the requirements to
instruments that have already been derecognised as at 1
January 2018. The difference between carrying amounts as
at 31 December 2017 and the carrying amounts as at 1
January 2018 are recognised in the opening accumulated
losses and other components of equity, without restating
comparative information.

China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited 2 E @ A ¥ EEER AT

BEGFMASCRMEZER_-F
—NF-A—BHEZ2BRABZFE
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BRANEERAVEREERH

(i BAEAYBHRELEANEIRS
MTE: &

(i BEUHREERFSHRIEF
BEPAAMEA

ERUYBHERENEIREMTA

BAMBRELENEIRARES
S EREIRABER - 28
FrESRMEERESBMAE &I
EREMTE SREERERY
HEETRRIZHRI o

AEBEREEBMEHRELERE

9K FTE R IR R E R BB
HMEREBFEIH  H T —N\F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IN=NEvE e

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B ZE —ZF—N\F+_-A=+—HIFF/F

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared
under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement.

The adoption of HKFRS 9 resulted in the following changes
to the Group’s accounting policies.

(@) Classification

From 1 January 2018, the Group classifies its financial
assets in the following measurement categories:

. those to be measured subsequently at FVTOCI,
and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at
FVTOCI.

ERVBREEAFIREMIA
(%)
At - BT HRER KRB RRE
HEEEREIRE R T A :
REGTEMREN LB ERMEL
L& -

RABEMBEREEREIRER
AEEGHBRRLRTINES -
(@ %

BE-_ZE—NF—H—Hi"
AEEBESMEED AN

TEEMR -
. RERATEIAL
2EREHE R

© REEKAGE -

DEIRRASEEE SR
BEMNEBEARRESRE
BB KGR

MR AFEFENEEM
5 WakEEHRIERE
Hit 2EWamH AR SR
WHFEEENRATAR
& AEERVGERE S
A A R A R F R R
B AFEFAEMEERK
BmAR e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M At

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =—F—\F+=A=+—HI-FE

ERVBREEAFIREMIA
(%)

(b) Measurement b) FE

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

At initial recognition, the Group measures financial
assets at its fair value plus, in the case of financial
assets not at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVTPL
are expensed in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the
asset. There are three measurement categories into
which the Group can classify its debt instruments:

. Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in other income
using the effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains/(losses), together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are not presented as separate line item in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss as
the amounts are not material.

China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited 2 E @ A ¥ EEER AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B ZE —ZF—N\F+_-A=+—HIFF/F

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Measurement (Continued)

FVTOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVTOCI. Movements
in the carrying amount are taken through other
comprehensive income, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest revenue and foreign exchange gains
and losses which are recognised in profit or loss.
When the financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and recognised in
other gains/(losses). Interest income from these
financial assets is included in other income
using the effective interest rate method.
Foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in other gains/(losses) and
impairment losses are presented as separate
line item in the statement of profit or loss.

FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at
FVTPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment that
is subsequently measured at FVTPL is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net
within other gains/(losses) in the period in
which it arises.

(%)

ERNBHELEAFEIRERMITA

(b) FrE(E)

BATFEFAEMEE
Was - s ERmEE &
Eﬁi//lbi&ﬁ%'\%%ﬂﬁ
ENEEMS ' MEFH
SRS RS - Bl
’Aﬂ?ﬁ?r)\ﬁi\ﬂﬂi\ﬁ%z

et E o BREEEE
FFAEM K -
8 2 T R AR E IS
SRR - FLEWA LA K
b 5 s RIS ER N o
RIERERMEER
%HlJﬁéEﬁﬂiEH&/\ﬁE

RE) R A kB 1B B
% SEMOEEER
W E e (E1E)
R KEZEEHE
ERF B AR E R F
EIEFTAHAMMA o [
HE RIBERE MY
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M At

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z —ZF— N\F+_-_A=+—HILF&E

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

®)

©)

Measurement (Continued)

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit
or loss following the derecognition of the investment.
Dividends from such investments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income when the
Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVTPL
are recognised in other gains/(losses) in the
statement of profit or loss as applicable. Impairment
losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at FVTOCI are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.

Impairment

From 1 January 2018, the Group assesses on a forward
looking basis the expected credit losses (“ECL”)
associated with its debt instruments carried at
amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables.
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ERNBHELEAFEIRERMITA

()
(b)

(©

& (&)

AEBEMARBIRERRR
ANFEFE - WAKREHERE
BEEREMEmEKEZS
RIERE A FEYRERE
B ARRIEERRER
NP ESE &Eﬁ?ﬂﬁi\@%Tﬁ
B BERZD - EAKHE
WS BRUASS 3K Y HE R e LB - b
BRENREEENBART
HERBEMUA

BRAFEFABRENERE
ENAFEZHNERRD
HAblss, /(B8 R (@
FH) BAFEFAREMEE
Wart Em B RENRE
BiE (R E R R B ) I &
BEMAFEZHTEFZ
-

BT N\F—H—H®E-
ANEBIR AT IE B ETHIR
BT ERNEB AN
HEEREERBB([EHE
EEBE] - IRARESE
BRI EERBRETBEELIN
fE °

HRBWRE SRR ANEE
REREMBRELENFEI
SEAT R RFENRETE - &
ERE TR HE R R BB R
B A HE R FE WK TR RERR, o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MF SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z—F—N\F+A=+—HI-FE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3.
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

(©) Impairment (Continued)

For loans to other parties, the Group applies the
general approach of HKFRS 9, which requires an
amount equal to 12-month ECL to be recognised as
the loss allowance if the credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, and expected
lifetime losses to be recognised if the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition.

Set out below is the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9 on

RNFTE] MBI BB RS &

B (&)

(@) A REEBEIEBUIEMELE
a1l (%)

ERVBREEAFIREMIA
(&)

(© JpifE (%)

BHEMALTERME @ &
EEEABRBYBREER
FORM—MAE WMEE
BB B W18 SR 12 I R K&
#Zm- AEERER2EAR
%EH;W%ES#EE’J%%EEE%
EBIERE mMMZEERR
B Y114 MR 12 R gan - R
R8RS A AR o

TXHIERB BN EREERE

the Group. IOmEAEBMTE -
The following table summaries the impact on the Group’s TEREBEAN—ZE—N\F—HA 8%
opening accumulated losses as at 1 January 2018: REBHYRFTBENTE
Note HK$000
Bt FHETT
Reclassify non-trading equity investments  #43E3x 5 14 8B R AE % & | A
from available-for-sale financial assets TECREESETHE
to equity investments of FVTOCI EERAFEFAREMEZE
WS & 28,145
Increase in impairment allowance on: AT S IB R E RGN
— trade receivables — EUNE SR (i) T774)
— loans to other parties —AEMALTER (i) (947)
Reduction of accumulated losses KARHEEAERRZZ—N\F
attributable to owners of the Company —A—H %Mi&%ﬂﬁ%aﬁﬁ%
for the adoption of HKFRS 9 on AERIE ISR M EE R Rt
1 January 2018 EER 26,424
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BmRM

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =—F—\F+=A=+—HI-FE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

The following table and the accompanying notes below
explain the original measurement categories under HKAS
39 and the new measurement categories under HKFRS 9
for each class of the Group’s financial assets as at 1 January
2018.

Classification
under
Financial assets HKAS 39

BEFBEHER
THEE E39HRHIE

Equity investments () Available-for-sale

fRiEIE & e

Loans to employees and (i Loans and receivables
other parties

m{E 8 REMALTER B R EWGRIR

Trade receivables (i Loans and receivables

EWE SRR BRI

Deposits and other receivables (i) Loans and receivables

e REAMEIGIE BRI

Loan to a non-controlling (i) Loans and receivables
shareholder of a subsidiary

R—ERBRARZ—% B R EWGRIR
FEIERR R B

Amount due from (i) - Loans and receivables
a related company

FEW— R R RIFR B R EWGIR

Pledged bank deposits (i) - Loans and receivables

BEIRRITER B R EWGIR

Bank and cash balances (i) - Loans and receivables

RITRIRE 5 ER e GRIE

China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited EEZFEE X2 E=EHE AT

3. BREVETR] MEIERI E M SR E %

A(%&)

(@) MR REETRBMBREE
8 (%)
BERMBRELEUEIFNEMIA
(&)

TRETXEHMEFHA—FT N
F-A—BAAKEREEREER
EEB G ERE IR RAE
BRI RRBE B IRE LR
ERebidiobiE bl

Classification Carrying Carrying
under amount under amount under
HKFRS 9 HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
RERE REFREGS REBBUHK
Bt iR 2E R 2R|H395 MEEAFIR
FENSH HEREE HEREE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHBT
FVTOCI 11,958 11,958
BRAFETA
Hih 2wz
Amortised cost 94,993 94,046
IR AR
Amortised cost 116,806 116,032
IR AR
Amortised cost 7,143 7,143
IR AR
Amortised cost 120 120
IR AR
Amortised cost 1,257 1,257
IR AR
Amortised cost 1,850 1,850
IR AR
Amortised cost 479,379 479,379
IR AR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR I A

wiINE] s

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z—F—N\F+A=+—HI-FE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

The impact of these changes on the Group’s equity is as

follows:

Opening balance — HKAS 39

HitNsEeR — BB G R

BT RAS I T B S TR
Bl ()

FERFE] REERT BB MBS 2

(a)

8 (%)

BERMBRELEUEIFNEMIA

(&)

ZEEPHAEERZNZEN

™

Effect on
FVTOCI
reserve

HEDFE

FTAEAE
2HEKEN
EENRE

HK$000
TAET

Effect on
accumulated
losses

HRTT
BRNE
HK$000
TAET

(audited) 3958 (K FEZ) - (31,999)
Reclassify non-trading equity 143 21 E R ER & B

investments from AEEE SR EESN

available-for-sale financial SEERATEF AHM

assets to equity investments EEREHRERE

at FVTOCI 0] (28,145) 28,145
Impairment losses for trade FEWE 5 BR TR EE 1B

receivables (0 - (774)
Impairment losses for loans mEAMA TERARE

to other parties E1E (i) - 947)
Total impact FEbZ (28,145) 26,424
Opening balance — HKFRS 9 HitaEe: — BAEMT

(restated) REAERIZE 95 (KL FET) (28,145) (5,575)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR I A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =—F—\F+=A=+—HI-FE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. ERANFTET REMEFT BB B WmE%E
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued) A (&)
(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued) (@ ERHMIREEEIEBMGmESE
8l (&)
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued) ERMKREERNFEIREMTA
(4&)
For assets in scope of the HKFRS 9 impairment model, MEBREAVBREERE IR
impairment losses are generally expected to increase and ERABEANEEMS @ — KRB
become more volatile. The Group has determined that the HREBERENRESE AR
application of HKFRS 9 impairment model requirements at g AEBEEETN _E—NF—
1 January 2018 results in an additional impairment losses as A—BEREBVB®RELERZEO
follows: SR ERE R E B INREE R
I

HK$'000

TAET

Impairment allowance for trade receivables RIEFH B & +¥EH]F 3953
at 31 December 2017 under HKAS 39 R-_E—+F+-_A=+—H

(audited) PLIEWE Z R FEHERR E R
(feEZ) 2,827
Additional impairment losses MATEER _T—)\F
recognised at 1 January 2018 for: —A—BRERWRBEINFEEE
— Trade receivables as at —R-E—+F
31 December 2017 +=-—A=+—H
FEUE SR (i) 774
— Loans to other parties as at —RZE—+F
31 December 2017 +=—A=+—H
mEAMALER D) 947
Impairment allowance at IBIEE B RS LRI IR
1 January 2018 under HKFRS 9 —E-N\F-A—BHRERE
(restated) (geE:51) 4,548
Impairment losses related to trade receivables and loans to HEWE ZBER R EEMATER
other parties are not presented separately in the statement BHEKREEERSEL ~EAMm
of profit or loss as the amounts are not material. ARBEREBIIR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Are S R M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z—F—N\F+A=+—HI-FE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

Note:

@

@i

(D]

These equity investments represent investments that the Group intends
to hold for long term strategic purposes. As permitted by HKFRS 9, the
Group has designated these investments at the date of initial application
as measured at FVTOCI. As a result, these equity investments with a fair
value of HK$11,958,000 were reclassified from available-for-sale financial
assets to equity investments at FVTOCI and fair value loss of
HK$28,145,000 was reclassified from accumulated losses to the FVTOCI
reserve on 1 January 2018. Unlike HKAS 39, the accumulated fair value
reserve related to these investments will never be reclassified to profit or
loss.

Trade receivables and loans to employees and other parties that were
classified as loans and receivables under HKAS 39 are now classified at
amortised cost. An increase of HK$1,721,000 in the impairment allowance
for these receivables was recognised in opening accumulated losses at 1
January 2018 on transition to HKFRS 9.

These financial assets were classified as loans and receivables under
HKAS 39 are now classified at amortised cost. No further impairment
loss was recognised in opening accumulated losses at 1 January 2018 on
transition to HKFRS 9.

BT A T BB R

A (%)

(a) FER ] R &IE5THR &Zf’ﬂig
k“‘g}’“li

ERVBREEAFIREMIA
(%)
Mt -

0} ZEBRRER A AR E BB B T
BWIRE - EEEUMBRE LI F R
ERFHERT  AEEERYFEAA
Wz S REEEREATEF AEM
EHEHKEFTE - AR =T N\F—A
—B - ZEATERN958000BTHIK
BRERTTHBESHEEENORE
EQ?@?AE@%EW%W%%E
& N F{EE1E28145000 % T B R 5T
BREFSEERATENARLMER
W E o BEB S ERFEIORT
Fl - EZERARBNRF AT ERS
TEEHDREREL -

(D) RIEEESEAEIRDEAER K
EWMEWKW%%EmM&HEE&
HATEFRAREREBHEKEASHE -
BEEESHGREENEIGE - 3
% 55 IR WK TE 45 0 & R (B 7 851,721,000
BER-ZT—N\FE—A— BRI R
EIBHER -

iy — REEBGERFEIORSBERR KL
ERFRNZE S RVE ERE B R
RADE - BEEBBUBHMEERSE
9E - MER-Z—-NE—-F—BH
B RS RRER M — P RERR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M At

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z —ZF— N\F+_-_A=+—HILF&E

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
recognising revenue and some costs from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 replaces HKAS 18 Revenue, which
covered revenue arising from sale of goods and rendering
of services, and HKAS 11 Construction contracts, which
specified the accounting for construction contracts.

The Group has elected to use the cumulative effect
transition method and has recognised the cumulative
effect of initial application as an adjustment to the opening
balance of equity at 1 January 2018. Therefore, comparative
information has not been restated and continues to be
reported under HKAS 11 and HKAS 18. As allowed by
HKFRS 15, the Group has applied the new requirements
only to contracts that were not completed before 1 January
2018.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 resulted in the following changes
to the Group’s accounting policies.

China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited 2 E @ A ¥ EEER AT

ERUBHEERNESRFEEREF
BHHEA

BB GIRE LR FESFIEL T HE
REAEF & HRARE TR
EHER - FEMBEREEAFDS
SRR AEB G ERE8IHBA(E
RIHE R m R IEH HEW?HFEH’]W
AN RBBEETENBENRERE
MFTHREEA ?’JE’]Q#J‘EEE
=) e

AEECDEEFRBRBRERBE
& WHER B RERNREREE
RYE-F—)\F— - BHBER
AERRHO IR - FUtL - FIELEE R
BB M AEE $ETF%5/9§ TR

MR REFEEEREBRTUZ
e EE/%EH%#&%EEIJ%BFH.#
AHER AREEHE-_F N
F—A—BZARTRHE LA
FIRTE °

RMEEHBRELERE5HEH
AEMGHRRE LN TR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B ZE —ZF—N\F+_-A=+—HIFF/F

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Accounting for revenue from sales of manufactured goods
and medical equipments

The Group manufactures and sells a range of electronic
products and medical equipments. Sales are recognised
when control of the products has transferred, being when
the products are delivered to the customer, the customer
has full discretion over the channel and price to sell the
products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could
affect the customer’s acceptance of the products. Delivery
occurs when the products have been shipped to the
specific location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have
been transferred to the customer.

No element of financing is deemed present as the sales are
made with credit terms ranged from 30 to 120 days.

The Group is required to pay for marketing promotion fees
for products sold in customers’ chain stores. These fees are
regarded as consideration payable to a customer and not
being distinct. These fees are therefore accounted for as a
reduction of transaction price.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered as
this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is required
before the payment is due.

Accounting for revenue from catering services

Revenue from catering service is recognised immediately
after the services are rendered.

ERUBHEERNESRFEEREF
BHNEA (&)

HERK G RE
BE R

$%%‘%3§&%E*§§U§E?E%

BRE - EEMMEHEER
HT(EHEDDE NTEP BRY
EmNHERBENERBRYERGE
- BfEAEETFRWERN
RAETEMER) ﬁ%ﬁﬁgﬁ%ﬁw°§?
B X BT A XA B &
X - E iR AR 2 B @rﬂﬂg
PAdgE -

RIGITIFIA

BMRHEENEEHRNTFI0E0
X ARRSTFERETLE °

AEBERNEPEHREHENE
mXNTMEHEE - ZEBRABA
ENEPORE  BIXERA - H
- ZEERARBRZZEROM

9\0

FEUGRIER R & mbs iR - [REA
A3 UL B T3 A8 B A B (6 1 B B )
B R REI R RTE BBE RS R
BRI MBS 3R

BERRIRFE PN B & 51 B FE

BERIE T BUIRA A LR AR TS 1£ RD
BERERR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BmRM

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =—F—\F+=A=+—HI-FE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 5

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Set out below is the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 15 on
the Group.

The following tables summarise the estimated impact of
adoption of HKFRS 15 on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2018, by
comparing the amounts reported under HKFRS 15 in these
consolidated financial statements with estimates of the
hypothetical amounts that would have been recognised
under HKAS 18 and HKAS 11 if those superseded standards
had continued to apply to 2018 instead of HKFRS 15. The
table shows only those line items impacted by the adoption
of HKFRS 15:

For the year ended E2-E-N\&E
31 December 2018 +=ZB=+—-HILEE
Note
izt
Consolidated statement of &R
profit or loss (extract) (F8)
Revenue WA (@
Selling and distribution HERDHEAL
expenses (@

The significant difference arise as a result of the changes in
accounting policies classified above.

(@) Marketing promotion fee now presented as a

reduction of revenue was previously presented in
selling and distribution expenses.

China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited EEZFEE X2 E=EHE AT

Hypothetical

RNATE] RAERT B AN B REE

Al (#&)

(@) MR REETEENBRES
(%)

ERMBREENFSHFEARS
BRBBA (8

TXBIRNE BB EERF 5
HHAEEZE -

TREBBLBBREFENBREE
AF SRR ALFRAVBREER
M RERBEE LG ERFE 18
REBEAERENRHBRESHE
st (HRFERERR=_F—N
FRERKBT BV HREERFS
%) B RN F B B 1S AR
FERBAKEBE_FT—/N\F
TA=t-RLEENGRENE
WRNEFTFE - WERBERTR
HERME BT B RS ERF 155 M
XEEMIAR ¢

Amounts

Estimated reported in
impact of accordance
adoption of with
HKFRS 15 HKFRS 15

amounts
under
HKASs 18
and 11

REEE R4 Rig

SEHER|
F18H R
ENHEH
BESE
HK$000
FHT

BERHE
28
E155EH
fhet g
HK$000
FAT

ERU%
HEER
F155 7
EHNeE
HK$:000
FAT

742,246 (7,062) 735,184

(36,322) 7,062 (29,260)
BREREAEXFAOBENEABR

BB -

(@ EINHEERIHMAXZT
BT 5 R B IR E R AT
k% -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A M BmRM

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z—F—N\F+A=+—HI-FE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied new and revised HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2018. These new and
revised HKFRSs include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

RN ET R AR 5] BB R IR 2

Al (%&)

(b) BEMIE M AREMR G REIEET
BRI BREER

AEEY BIEREACEMBRKR
RZZ-NF—A— AR IR
FREM G RGBT RARH
WELEA - Al REEAAREE AR 2
I RRERTEEMBREER BT
IAT&IA -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RUTHH

N2 EERZ

B EBEN
HKFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019
BAMBHREERE16RAE —E-NF—HA—H
HK(FRIC) 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 1 January 2019
BB (AR BHREREZE®) RBE 2 RAMENEE 2 THEM —E-NF—HA—H
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle 1 January 2019
BANBHRERN -G 2T —+FRACFELE —E-NF—HA—H
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures 1 January 2019
ARG ERE 28R ZBITNBE NI REELHE 2 RIIEZ —E-NF—HA—H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M At

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z —ZF— N\F+_-_A=+—HILF&E

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far
the Group has identified some aspects of HKFRS 16 which
may have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements. Further details of the expected impacts are
discussed below. While the assessment has been
substantially completed for HKFRS 16, the actual impacts
upon the initial adoption of the standards may differ as the
assessment completed to date is based on the information
currently available to the Group, and further impacts may
be identified before the standards are initially applied in the
Group’s interim financial report for the six months ending
30 June 2019. The Group may also change its accounting
policy elections, including the transition options, until the
standards are initially applied in that interim financial
report.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases and related
interpretations. The new standard introduces a single
accounting model for lessees. For lessees the distinction
between operating and finance leases is removed and
lessees will recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
for all leases (with optional exemptions for short-term
leases and leases of low value assets). HKFRS 16 carries
forward the accounting requirements for lessors in HKAS
17 substantially unchanged. Lessors will therefore continue
to classify leases as operating or financing leases.

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2019. The Group intends to apply the
simplified transition approach and will not restate
comparative amounts for the year prior to first adoption.
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R E R VA LB ER] MR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z—F—N\F+A=+—HI-FE

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Based on a preliminary assessment, the standard will affect
primarily the accounting for the Group’s operating leases.
The Group’s office, factories and staff quarters leases are
currently classified as operating leases and the lease
payments (net of any incentives received from the lessor)
are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Under HKFRS 16 the Group may need to
recognise and measure a liability at the present value of
the future minimum lease payments and recognise a
corresponding right-of-use asset for these leases. The
interest expense on the lease liability and depreciation on
the right-of-use asset will be recognised in profit or loss.
The Group’s assets and liabilities will increase and the
timing of expense recognition will also be impacted as a
result.

As disclosed in note 42, the Group’s future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases for its
staff quarters, factories and offices amounted to
HK$90,411,000 as at 31 December 2018. These leases are
expected to be recognised as lease liabilities, with
corresponding right-of-use assets, once HKFRS 16 is
adopted. The amounts will be adjusted for the effects of
discounting and the transition reliefs available to the
Group.

Other than the recognition of lease liabilities and right-of-
use assets, the Group expects that the transition
adjustments to be made upon the initial adoption of HKFRS
16 will not be material. However, the expected changes in
accounting policies as described above could have a
material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements from 2019 onwards.

ERUBHEERNE 16 REE (H)

RIBMFHE - ZEAEETERE
AEEZEHEZQHRE - A%
BzmAzE IHMEIESESE
AOBERZRENRE  BEMKE
NER #E A A WERPR 15 2 (T8
BORBEHAREREAERSH
Mo REFEMHREERE6
5 AEEFREFERZSFHEELKR
REEHRENRZRERRBRTE
AR WHERHEEAREE - M

FERNBETER - ARENE
ERAERBRENBFXER

RBRETEXITE -

MM Q2P #EE RZE—N\F
+ZA=+—H8  RBETTHEL
EHERAEEREETIRS K5
RN EANORREEREHKIE
790,411,000 7T c AL+ — B
MBSV ERERRE16 - ZF
HETEH G RBAECREEER
REHEBE FHSERITE
HERKNEETR 2 BELBHEDR

A

GEREEREREREEEI -
REBE BT RYE R E B ]|
EREAE 6 SR ERBRFHEIL A
EX R Ll et BERTER
FERREHAEER T NFRE
MM HRRELEATE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Are ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =—F—\F+=A=+—HI-FE

HK(IFRIC) 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The interpretation of HKAS 12 Income Taxes sets out how
to apply that standard when there is uncertainty about
income tax treatments. Entities are required to determine
whether uncertain tax treatments should be assessed
separately or as a group depending on which approach will
better predict the resolution of the uncertainties. Entities
will have to assess whether it is probable that a tax
authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. If yes, the
accounting treatment will be consistent with the entity’s
income tax filings. If not, however, entities are required to
account for the effects of the uncertainty using either the
most likely outcome or expected value method depending
on which method is expected to better predict its
resolution.

The Group is unable to estimate the impact of the
interpretation on the consolidated financial statements
until a more detailed assessment has been completed.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, unless mentioned otherwise
in the accounting policies below (e.g. land and building,
investment properties and certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair value.)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B ZE —ZF—N\F+_-A=+—HIFF/F

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up
to 31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. The Group
has power over an entity when the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s
returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties. A potential voting right is considered only if the
holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results
in a loss of control represents the difference between (i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair
value of any investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii)
the Company’s share of the net assets of that subsidiary
plus any remaining goodwill and any accumulated foreign
currency translation reserve relating to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M At

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z —ZF— N\F+_-_A=+—HILF&E

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the
Company. Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes in equity within equity.
Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between the non-controlling shareholders and
owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions with
owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying amounts
of the controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
loss, unless the investment is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B ZE —ZF—N\F+_-A=+—HIFF/F

The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination. The
consideration transferred in a business combination is
measured at the acquisition-date fair value of the assets
given, equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred and any
contingent consideration. Acquisition-related costs are
recognised as expenses in the periods in which the costs
are incurred and the services are received. Identifiable
assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in the acquisition are
measured at their acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as
goodwill. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the sum
of the consideration transferred is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase
which is attributed to the Group.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest in the subsidiary is
remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gain or loss is recognised in consolidated profit or
loss. The fair value is added to the sum of the consideration
transferred in a business combination to calculate the
goodwill.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially
measured at the non-controlling shareholders’
proportionate share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s
identifiable assets and liabilities at the acquisition date.

AEBRBUIEEREH A HEFI
BHELRIER - REBAHEE
FORENZAEEERN BB
Z YR - P T s TR KA
EEXZBEAREMRARER
& - WERBEKRAREBKRANESE
KEERGHRER R/ - R
BEMNBARZABNEERA
B GIRERNKE BBz 2 ER

=
E°

FEZEREBEASEREGEMER
AR #RIEER BB AT EEHE
ZERBDIEEE - NEBE DR
BRABERBBEZATEFELS
%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁZ%ﬁﬂﬁ%é%

ENERRREEEGRERE
Wz o

HROBEBOETT 2 EBEH - LAl
REST-PA) - PNCIPA:: S Pkti Lt
BRIz A FHESHE  MALE
HEZBENRABENER - 2F
BEEMAZEHEHEAERENR
BLBAHERE -

B ARz FRE R s ) PR 3F
ERBERDMEZMB A RN WEE
BzrA@pEERABZ AFESF
BZLPIFE -

Annual Report 3 2018



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M At

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z —ZF— N\F+_-_A=+—HILF&E

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs”) or groups of CGUs that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated represents
the lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill
impairment reviews are undertaken annually, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a
potential impairment. The carrying value of the CGU
containing the goodwill is compared to its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of value in use and the fair
value less costs of disposal. Any impairment is recognised
immediately as an expense and is not subsequently
reversed.

() Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”), which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

(i) Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using
the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange rates at the
end of each reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are recognised in
profit or loss.

China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited 2 E @ A ¥ EEER AT

VIFHERE - BERK AR ETR
BEEEFE - BREARTE - »©
EBeRB s EEo kL EEH
BRZEBEHNHRBERZE
ZEReELEEM(BReELASR
DR —ERESEEBAMN - EOR
FIENE B EMARN RN ER
BAFERE B NEEFNENRER
Bl o HEAEEHELNIBTRESA

BERENDR  AeGFE
PREMETTEERESEN B8
BHReELEMRMAESRE I
EESRBELE  JRESEAFERE
BEATFERHEN T2 RSE °
AFENRERAZILEAETER
B IERE o

(i) MWHERZIIEH

MAREBSEEYB®RE
WIEE DIREBEEEBH
EHITELERBENER
(T B DFTHE - 265
BHwEAB T HET] 2
5l o BITRARAM I BE
2HEE -

(i) REERBMEBERRZIXZR
ASNEETT 2 R B TIRH 2%
BARRKBAXZEHAZER
ERBERNEEE o LS
KitECEBEERBRETS
RASHREHRIEXKZ
o lﬁtlﬁ?ﬁ‘l%ﬁﬂl"*ﬁiﬁlz
Yegs I B 1R B s AR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B ZE —ZF—N\F+_-A=+—HIFF/F

(i)

(i)

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value
in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values are
determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in other comprehensive income, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different from
the Company’s presentation currency are translated
into the Company’s presentation currency as follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

— Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates for the period (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the exchange rates
on the transaction dates); and

— All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the foreign currency translation
reserve.

(i)

(iiii)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M At

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z —ZF— N\F+_-_A=+—HILF&E

(iii) Translation on consolidation (Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of monetary items that form part of
the net investment in foreign entities are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the foreign currency translation reserve. When a
foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences
are reclassified to consolidated profit or loss as part
of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.

Property, plant and equipment (other than land and
building), held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost, less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the
period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B ZE —ZF—N\F+_-A=+—HIFF/F

Land and building held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of
revaluation, less any subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity such
that the carrying amounts do not differ materially from
those that would be determined using fair values at the
end of each reporting period.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of such
land and building is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in property revaluation reserve,
except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease
for the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss, in
which case the increase is credited to profit or loss to the
extent of the decrease previously expensed. A decrease in
the carrying amount arising on the revaluation of such land
and building is recognised in profit or loss to the extent
that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the property
revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of
that asset.

Depreciation of revalued building is recognised in profit or
loss. On the subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued
property, the attributable revaluation surplus remaining in
the property revaluation reserve is transferred directly to
retained earnings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M At

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z —ZF— N\F+_-_A=+—HILF&E

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
at rates sufficient to write off their cost less their residual
values over the estimated useful lives on a straight-line
basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:

Leasehold land and building 4%
Leasehold improvements Over the lease term or
20%-25%

Plant, machinery, moulds and tools 10%-25%
Furniture and equipment 10%-20%
Motor vehicles 18%-33/:%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties are land and/or building held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation. An investment
property is measured initially at its cost including all direct
costs attributable to the property.

After initial recognition, the investment property is stated
at its fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in fair
value of the investment property are recognised in profit or
loss for the period in which they arise.

The gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the property, and is recognised in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B ZE —ZF—N\F+_-A=+—HIFF/F

License rights and customer relationship are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Useful lives are as follows:

License rights
Customer relationship

Over the license period
3-6 years

The Group as lessee

0]

(i)

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operating leases. Lease payments
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Prepaid lease payments are stated at cost and
subsequently amortised on the straight-line basis
over the remaining term of the lease.

Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group all the
risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as finance leases. At the
commencement of the lease term, a finance lease is
capitalised at the lower of the fair value of the leased
asset and the present value of the minimum lease
payments, each determined at the inception of the
lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z —ZF— N\F+_-_A=+—HILF&E

The Group as lessee (Continued)
(i) Finance leases (Continued)

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in
the statement of financial position as finance lease
payable. Lease payments are apportioned between
the finance charge and the reduction of the
outstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated
to each period during the lease term so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability.

Assets under finance leases are depreciated the same
as owned assets.

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. An internally
generated intangible asset arising from the Group’s
product development activity is recognised only if all of the
following conditions are met:

—  The technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

—  Management intends to complete the intangible asset
and use or sell it;

—  There is ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

— It can be demonstrated how the intangible asset will
generate probable future economic benefits;

—  Adequate technical, financial and other resources to
complete the development and to use or sell the

intangible asset are available;

—  The expenditure attributable to the intangible asset
during its development can be reliably measured.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B ZE —ZF—N\F+_-A=+—HIFF/F

Internally generated intangible assets are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. Where no internally generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-
out basis. The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of all production overhead expenditure, and
where appropriate, subcontracting charges. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =—F—\F+=A=+—HI-FE

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counterparty.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B ZE —ZF—N\F+_-A=+—HIFF/F

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace. All recognised financial assets are measured
subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost or
fair value, depending on the classification of the financial
assets.

Debt investments

Debt investments held by the Group are classified into one
of the following measurement categories:

— amortised cost, if the investment is held for the
collection of contractual cash flows which represent
solely payments of principal and interest. Interest
income from the investment is calculated using the
effective interest method.

—  FVTOCI — recycling, if the contractual cash flows of
the investment comprise solely payments of principal
and interest and the investment is held within a
business model whose objective is achieved by both
the collection of contractual cash flows and sale.
Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for the recognition in
profit or loss of ECL, interest income (calculated
using the effective interest method) and foreign
exchange gains and losses. When the investment is
derecognised, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled from equity to
profit or loss.

—  FVTPL if the investment does not meet the criteria
for being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI
(recycling). Changes in the fair value of the
investment (including interest) are recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M At

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z —ZF— N\F+_-_A=+—HILF&E

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition of the investment the
Company makes an election to designate the investment at
FVTOCI (non-recycling) such that subsequent changes in
fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis, but may only be made if the investment meets the
definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where
such an election is made, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income remains in the fair value reserve
(non-recycling) until the investment is disposed of. At the
time of disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to retained earnings.
It is not recycled through profit or loss. Dividends from an
investment in equity securities, irrespective of whether
classified as at FVTPL or FVTOCI, are recognised in profit
or loss as other income.

Policy prior to 1 January 2018

Investments in securities held for trading were classified as
financial assets measured at FVTPL. Any attributable
transaction costs were recognised in profit or loss as
incurred. At the end of each reporting period the fair value
was remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.

Dated debt securities that the group had the positive
ability and intention to hold to maturity were classified as
held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-maturity securities
were stated at amortised cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B ZE —ZF—N\F+_-A=+—HIFF/F

Equity investments (Continued)

Policy prior to 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Investments which did not fall into any of the above
categories were classified as available-for-sale financial
assets. At the end of each reporting period the fair value
was remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the fair value reserve
(recycling). Dividend income from equity investments and
interest income from debt securities calculated using the
effective interest method were recognised in profit or loss
respectively. Foreign exchange gains and losses arising
from debt securities were also recognised in profit or loss.
When the investments were derecognised or impaired, the
cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity was
reclassified to profit or loss.

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration is
due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount
is presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M At

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z —ZF— N\F+_-_A=+—HILF&E

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECL.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument under HKFRSs. An equity
instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
The accounting policies adopted for specific financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B ZE —ZF—N\F+_-A=+—HIFF/F

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected to
be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Revenue from the sale of electronic products and medical
equipments are recognised when control of the goods has
transferred, being when the goods have been shipped to
the customer’s specific location (delivery). Following
delivery, the customer has full discretion over the channel
and price to sell the goods, has the primary responsibility
when on selling the goods and bears the risks of
obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods. A receivable
is recognised by the Group when the goods are delivered
to the customer as this represents the point in time at
which the right to consideration becomes unconditional, as
only the passage of time is required before payment is due.

Revenue from catering service is recognised immediately
after the services are rendered.

Management fee, consultancy fee and commission are
recognised when the services are rendered.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured at
amortised cost, the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment are established.

S T RIEAEE AN EEENBRE AT
EABEREETHERBERNT
&4 - BARRIETHERTA
TR W B 18 SR IR B BT AK
ANECEE ©

WA E i S IR TS 0 12 Bl R IR AR &

EEMERERNAERESR
(TEERRE=ZTTWENTHE)E
BEZPRER - WMATNBREIEE
B EMFEER - WEMRERE
S0 o

KEEFEMMBEREHSOHK
)\Eﬁéiéi 2HEEEE (A8 M

L%}ET E B (A B ) B
R NRE - BEFAIZERBER
TEEMMHEERIERER - WAHAE
EEMMMNEIZEERERERER
BRER  RAEERERRIfME
EPREREY IR REZLR
RWERR BN R EE N —E
B R - IR R A AT R A I A
BE e

BRI UA TR SR AR 1% B

EHRE  BERELRASRRERRE
PRy a2 o

MBWARE £ R IZ B R A RA 1
R IREHEK A ENEREE
mE @ BERAMEARZEENKRT
#fE -

P B A T e 7 st R R A By
RN

Annual Report 3 2018



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M At

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z —ZF— N\F+_-_A=+—HILF&E

Policy prior to 1 January 2018

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is recognised when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Revenue from catering services is recognised when the
services are rendered and goods are sold to customers.

Revenue from the sales of manufactured goods is
recognised on the transfer of significant risks and rewards
of ownership, which generally coincides with the time
when the goods are delivered and the title has passed to
the customers.

Management fee, consultancy fee and commission are
recognised when the services are rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment are established.

() Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B ZE —ZF—N\F+_-A=+—HIFF/F

(ii) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the
Group and employees are calculated as a percentage
of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

(ili) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits, and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs and involves the
payment of termination benefits.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount
of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined
by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on
that asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average
of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the
Group that are outstanding during the period, other than
borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining
a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M At

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z —ZF— N\F+_-_A=+—HILF&E

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to it and that the grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period to match them
with the costs they are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to
the Group with no future related costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit
or loss because of items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B ZE —ZF—N\F+_-A=+—HIFF/F

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint arrangements, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
when it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to
be recovered through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held within a
business model of the Group whose business objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted, deferred
tax for such investment properties are measured based on
the expected manner as to how the properties will be
recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M At

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z —ZF— N\F+_-_A=+—HILF&E

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities
on a net basis.

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed
at each reporting date for indications of impairment and
where an asset is impaired, it is written down as an expense
through the consolidated statement of profit or loss to its
estimated recoverable amount unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation decrease. The recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.
If this is the case, recoverable amount is determined for the
CGU to which the asset belongs. Recoverable amount is
the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal of the individual asset or the CGU.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future
cash flows of the asset/CGU. Present values are computed
using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset/CGU whose
impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for CGU are allocated first against the
goodwill of the unit and then pro rata amongst the other
assets of the CGU. Subsequent increases in the recoverable
amount caused by changes in estimates are credited to
profit or loss to the extent that they reverse the impairment
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as
a revaluation increase.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B ZE —ZF—N\F+_-A=+—HIFF/F

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
investments in debt instruments that are measured at
amortised cost or at FVTOCI, trade receivables and loans
to other parties. The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition of the respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these financial assets are estimated
using a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time
value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit
risk on the financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures
the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events on a financial instrument that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date.
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Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting date
with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.
Forward-looking information considered includes the
future prospects of the industries in which the Group’s
debtors operate, obtained from economic expert reports,
financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-
tanks and other similar organisations, as well as
consideration of various external sources of actual and
forecast economic information that relate to the Group’s
core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

—  significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk for a particular financial instrument;

— existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B ZE —ZF—N\F+_-A=+—HIFF/F

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

— significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;

— an actual or expected significant adverse change in
the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due,
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A
financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

(i)  The financial instrument has a low risk of default,

(i) The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term,
and

(ii) Adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil
its contractual cash flow obligations.
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Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit
risk when the asset has external credit rating of
“investment grade” in accordance with the globally
understood definition or if an external rating is not
available, the asset has an internal rating of “performing”.
Performing means that the counterparty has a strong
financial position and there is no past due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not
recoverable.

— when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

— information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
180 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B ZE —ZF—N\F+_-A=+—HIFF/F

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

—  the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
counterparty a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider; or

— it is becoming probable that the counterparty will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

— The disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
including when the debtor has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or
in the case of trade receivables, when the amounts are over
two years past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where appropriate. Any
recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M At
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Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information as described above. As for the
exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented
by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
original effective interest rate.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the
previous reporting period, but determines at the current
reporting date that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no
longer met, the Group measures the loss allowance at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL at the current reporting
date, except for assets for which simplified approach was
used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.

Policy prior to 1 January 2018

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses
whether its financial assets (other than those at fair value
through profit or loss) are impaired, based on objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition, the estimated future
cash flows of the (group of) financial asset(s) have been
affected.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B ZE —ZF—N\F+_-A=+—HIFF/F

Policy prior to 1 January 2018 (Continued)

For available-for-sale equity instruments, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below
its cost is considered also to be objective evidence of
impairment.

In addition, for trade receivables that are assessed not to
be impaired individually, the Group assesses them
collectively for impairment, based on the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
delayed payments in the portfolio, observable changes in
economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables, etc.

Only for trade receivables, the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit
or loss.

For all other financial assets, the carrying amount is directly
reduced by the impairment loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if the
amount of the impairment loss decreases in a subsequent
period and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed (either
directly or by adjusting the allowance account for trade
receivables) through profit or loss. However, the reversal
must not result in a carrying amount that exceeds what the
amortised cost of the financial asset would have been had
the impairment not been recognised at the date the
impairment is reversed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z —ZF— N\F+_-_A=+—HILF&E

Policy prior to 1 January 2018 (Continued)

For available-for-sale debt securities, impairment losses are
subsequently reversed through profit or loss if an increase
in the fair value of the investment can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the recognition of the
impairment loss. In respect of available-for-sale equity
securities, an increase in fair value subsequent to an
impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in revaluation reserve;
impairment losses are not reversed through profit or loss.

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

When it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and are
reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Events
after the reporting period that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements when material.

China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited 2 E @ A ¥ EEER AT

RZF—NF—H—HARHE
(&)

ZRAHEEEERES  WRER
SAERYIE NN AT A BB 0 B i SRR (B
EEEEAEN—IEEHAER - AR
BEERRZFERIBRTARE - 5t
AHEERAEFLAMS - BRME
EEENATEEMNEMEEK
HERW R EHFEES R BE
B 1EN T E B e T AREE -

HASEEERC B 2 FIHRER
BresEEEE mMARTEE
AR R B e 2 it - AT
A SE 2 R - RIZAB T HEE R
BB AERREE - HWEEZ
RREEEEX - RIBE/E AT
BITEEZHBREIR -

i AR AT RS R A Bz 2 m ik
YA BERBEEL R
B EERERSKARE K
AR B e o 2 BT B 1 R R B BR
Hh e BARFRERASTARAREMNZ
BRERTBETEREREFE
AREEE TERBERIAEE
HEAS B R e it (2 R RE MR R B B
Gh o

REBBARENRE MR AN
BT ELEBRTERZEAM
ERNRERREAEIRHES
B UREEFBHRRARER - 3
TERAREH 2 RERRERNE
EXNAESES P B RRMEAR

E‘go



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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In the process of applying the accounting policies, the directors
have made the following judgements that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements (apart from those involving estimates, which
are dealt with below).

(a) Split of land and building elements
The Group determined that the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and building elements.
Accordingly the entire lease of land and buildings is
classified as a finance lease and included under property,
plant and equipment.

(b) Deferred tax for investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the directors have reviewed the Group’s investment
properties portfolios and concluded that the Group’s
investment properties are not held under a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, in
determining the Group’s deferred tax for investment
properties, the directors have adopted the presumption
that investment properties measured using the fair value
model are recovered through sale.
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Business model assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends
on the results of the SPPI and the business model test. The
Group determines the business model at a level that
reflects how groups of financial assets are managed
together to achieve a particular business objective. This
assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant
evidence including how the performance of the assets is
evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that
affect the performance of the assets and how these are
managed and how the managers of the assets are
compensated. The Group monitors financial assets
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI that are
derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the
reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are
consistent with the objective of the business for which the
asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Group’s continuous
assessment of whether the business model for which the
remaining financial assets are held continues to be
appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has
been a change in business model and so a prospective
change to the classification of those assets. No such
changes were required during the periods presented.

Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in note 3, ECL are measured as an allowance
equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for
stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when
its credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition. HKFRS 9 does not define what constitutes a
significant increase in credit risk. In assessing whether the
credit risk of an asset has significantly increased, the Group
takes into account qualitative and quantitative reasonable
and supportable forward looking information.
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The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(a)

(b)

Fair value of certain assets involve valuation technique

The fair values of certain land and building and investment
properties as set out in note 7(b), note 18 and note 19 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively involve
valuation technigues. When applying valuation techniques,
various assumptions and generally accepted
methodologies were used to derive the fair values. Any
changes in these assumptions can significantly affect the
estimate of the fair value of the underlying assets and
liabilities.

The carrying amount of land and building and investment
properties as at 31 December 2018 were approximately
HK$NIl (2017: HK$29,000,000) and HK$30,000,000 (2017:
HK$30,000,000), respectively.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for the Group’s
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based on
the historical experience of the actual useful lives and
residual values of property, plant and equipment of similar
nature and functions. The Group will revise the
depreciation charge where useful lives and residual values
are different to those previously estimated, or it will write-
off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment as
at 31 December 2018 was approximately HK$51,904,000
(2017: HK$57,876,000).
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(©

(d)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several

jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required in

determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such determination is
made. During the year, HK$4,845,000 (2017: HK$9,898,000)
of income tax was charged to profit or loss based on the
estimated profit.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the CGU to which goodwill
has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the CGU and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. The carrying amount of
goodwill at the end of the reporting period was
HK$18,814,000 and no impairment loss was recognised
during the year.
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(e)

Impairment of trade receivables and loans to employees
and other parties

Prior to the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018, the
management of the Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is any objective evidence
that trade receivables and loans to employees and other
parties are impaired. The provision policy for bad and
doubtful debts of the Group is based on the evaluation of
collectability and aging analysis of accounts and on
management’s judgement. A considerable amount of
judgement is required in assessing the ultimate realisation
of trade receivables and loans to employees and other
parties, including the current creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each customer. If the financial
conditions of customers of the Group were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, additional allowance may be required.

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of trade
receivables is HK$116,806,000 (net of allowance for trade
receivables of HK$2,827,000).

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of loans to
employees and other parties is HK$94,993,000 (net of
allowance for loans to employees and other parties of
HK$NID.

Since the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018, the
management of the Group estimates the amount of
impairment loss for ECL on trade receivables and loans to
employees and other parties based on the credit risk of
trade receivables and loans to employees and other parties.
The amount of the impairment loss based on ECL model is
measured as the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition. Where the future cash
flows are less than expected, or being revised downward
due to changes in facts and circumstances, a material
impairment loss may arise.
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(e)

)

(9)

Impairment of trade receivables and loans to employees
and other parties (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of trade
receivables is HK$155,761,000 (net of allowance for trade
receivables of HK$444,000).

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of loans to
employees and other parties is HK$75,428,000 (net of
allowance for loans to employees and other parties of
HK$5,929,000).

Allowance for slow-moving inventories

Allowance for slow-moving inventories is made based on
the ageing and estimated net realisable value of
inventories. The assessment of the allowance amount
involves judgement and estimates. Where the actual
outcome in future is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying value of inventories
and allowance charge/write-back in the period in which
such estimate has been changed.

As at 31 December 2018, accumulated allowance for slow-
moving inventories was approximately HK$13,088,000
(2017: HK$15,834,000).

Product warranty provisions

Product warranty provisions of the Group is recognised
based on past experience of level of repairs and returns,
discounted to their present value as appropriate.
Movement of the product warranty provisions during the
year is set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The carrying amount of product warranty provisions as at
31 December 2018 was approximately HK$2,498,000 (2017:
HK$3,336,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z—F—N\F+A=+—HI-FE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
interest rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(@) Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk as
most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in the functional currencies of the
Group entities. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group monitors its
foreign currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

The following table indicates the instantaneous change in
the Group’s loss for the year and equity that would have
been arisen if foreign exchange rates to which the Group
has significant exposure at the end of reporting period had
changed at that day, assuming all other risk variables
remained constant.

2018
—E-N\E¥
Foreign
currency

appreciate/

Foreign currency/ (depreciate)
functional currency HERTIREE by
INEFHE

(B2f&)

Renminbi (“RMB”)/ AREBTARE] R 5%
HKD BT (5%)

MR EE

AEBEREHEZ TR BRR 5D
KEk BRER-  FERR  RBHE
TRREAERRER - ARBENARER
BIEIAE FIRN S RM ST A FEA
REBNEEHAEETBERRNEED
Mg -

(@ HMNERMR

ARERAZETINERE - RE
RAMAEBRS BERAEE
ZUASEERZNEERIIE -
AR ER BRI R 5 A R A NS
R BERBENINGE K
R ARBEYEREINERR
FEBSEELHPEANINER

G o
A

RERPT A H b R R & B i T
AEENHRERRIAETZAR
MERRREMRMEES) - K%
4 2 B 1R Je i ot A) RE 3R RO BBy

2017
—E—+F
Foreign
currency
appreciate/
(depreciate)

HK$’000 HK$'000
THET ; FET
(5,419) 5% (5,461)

5,419 (5%) 5,461
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z —ZF— N\F+_-_A=+—HILF&E

The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly through
its investments in equity securities. The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risk and return profiles. The
Group’s equity price risk is mainly concentrated on equity
securities quoted on the Stock Exchange.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk at the end of the
reporting period.

If equity prices had been 10% higher/lower (2017: 10%
higher/lower), other comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 December 2018 would increase/decrease by
HK$2,719,000 (2017: increase/decrease by HK$1,196,000)
as a result of the changes in fair value of equity
investments at FVTOCI (2017: available-for-sale
investments).

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its
obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed
to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade
receivables) and from its financing activities, including
deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign
exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from cash and
cash equivalents is limited because the counterparties are
banks and financial institutions with high credit-rating
assigned by international credit-rating agencies, for which
the Group considers to have low credit risk.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B ZE —ZF—N\F+_-A=+—HIFF/F

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit
subject to the Group’s established policy, procedures and
control relating to customer credit risk management.
Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables are due within 30-
120 days from the date of billing. Debtors with balances
that are more than 3 months past due are requested to
settle all outstanding balances before any further credit is
granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit
loss experience does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the loss
allowance based on past due status is not further
distinguished between the Group’s different customer
bases.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =—F—\F+=A=+—HI-FE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. UEEREIE(E)
(c) Credit risk (Continued) © =R (E)
Trade receivables (Continued) EWE SRR (&)
The following table provides information about the Group’s TEREVNBEAEER T —NF
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables as at +_A=1+—HAEZENEERR KX
31 December 2018: EWE SERTBHREERENE
B
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHEEE ERE#AE EiE R
% HK$'000 HK$ 000
% TABTT FATT
Current (not past due) BIVHA (R0 HA) 0.07% 113,124 80
1-90 days past due BEA1IZE 90 H 0.78% 40,411 317
91-180 days past due #HEINE180 H 1.50% 313 5
More than 180 days past due #H1180 HIA 1.78% 2,357 42
156,205 444
Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience EEBEXRERBEMTNERS
over the past 2 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect BERETE - ZFLXRBBEH
differences between economic conditions during the B S B M AOE RN « BRI
period over which the historic data has been collected, RAGEBRAREUGIATART FHH
current conditions and the Group’s view of economic EOBEAR R 2 BT RR = R 1T
conditions over the expected lives of the receivables. o
The Group has certain concentration of credit risk, as the TEBAZAETEEETRRR @ R
Group’s largest three debtors account for 32.4% (2017: ARAKE=ZKEBAMEZ-Z
24.7%) of trade receivables as at 31 December 2018. —NF+ZA=+—HHNEKE S
BR R A324%( = T — + F:
24.7%) °

144 China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited ZEE@EE X EE AR A 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR I A

wiNE s

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z—F—N\F+A=+—HI-FE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HBERERE)
(c) Credit risk (Continued) © f=ERRE)
Trade receivables (Continued) EWE SRR (&)
Prior to 1 January 2018 RZFE—NF—H—HFI
Prior to 1 January 2018, an impairment loss was recognised RZZE—N\F—A—HBr " ~5E
only when there was objective evidence of impairment. At EEREEREERR T SHRM
31 December 2017, trade receivables of HK$2,827,000 was EEE - R_FT—+tF+=A
determined to be impaired. The aging analysis of trade =+—8  EWRE 5E2827,000
debtors that were not considered to be impaired was as BTETAERE - SATEREN
follows: FEUNE SERFMERE DT T
2017
—EFE—tF
HK$'000
FHEIT
Neither past due nor impaired RiER IR ARBE 95,802
Up to 3 months =% =18 A 15,799
Over 3 months HBiB=1EA 5,205
116,806
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired REETNARRE 2 BUGRIEE K &
related to a wide range of customers for whom there was THAY EE R RSN EREER -

no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related to 48 BB SRR (E ) FE R IB B AR &2
a number of independent customers that had a good track BZ2AE R EELHENBILE
record with the Group. Based on past experience, FEE - BEAEER  TEER
management believed that no impairment allowance was B ARZEERNEEERYE
necessary in respect of these balances as there had been BAEH - BESRDEAAEENK
no significant change in credit quality and the balances B W BARZ S ERIEL RE
were still considered fully recoverable. B -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =—F—\F+=A=+—HI-FE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. UEEREIE(E)
(c) Credit risk (Continued) © f=ERRE)
Trade receivables (Continued) EWE SRR (&)
Prior to 1 January 2018 (Continued) RZE—-NF—H—HF (&)
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade FA - REWRE SRIURERERER
receivables during the year is as follows: ZEBINT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T+tF
HK$7000 HK$'000
FHBxT FETT
At the beginning of year REH] 2,827 5,197
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 RINE B SRS 2R
(note 3) FOFEHRE (M5t 3) 774 -
At the beginning of year (restated) REF) (K EH) 3,601 5,197
Impairment losses for the year FRREEE 148 2,827
Bad debts written off R AR (141) (5,197)
Reversal # 0] (3,164) -
At the end of year REFR 444 2,827
The following significant changes in the gross carrying R-E—N\F UTEREZFEXR
amounts of trade receivables contributed to the increase in RERERERNE XN E) 5| BB &
the loss allowance during 2018: g
—  origination of new trade receivables net of those -  EAFERE SRR MG
settled resulted in an increase in loss allowance of S| BB B B 515 h1148,000 78
HK$148,000; TTRBE & EUE SR
— increase in days past due over 90 days resulted in an —  #HPO0 H LA LM REIE N3
increase in loss allowance of HK$148,000: and &S 18 £ & 18 HN148,000 7%
TT &
—  a write-off of trade receivables with a gross carrying —  ifEHER T 421E 141,000 T K
amount of HK$141,000 resulted in a decrease in loss JEWE 5 BR RS BB 1B &
allowance of HK$141,000. S 141,000 B TT ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z—F—N\F+A=+—HI-FE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(c) Credit risk (Continued)
Financial assets measured at amortised cost

All financial assets measured at amortised cost other than
loans to certain other parties are considered to have low
credit risk, and the loss allowance recognised during the
period was therefore limited to 12-month expected losses.
For loan to certain other parties, lifetime expected losses
were recognised if credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition.

The loss allowance for loans to other parties as at 31
December 2017 reconciles to the opening loss allowance
on 1January 2018 and to the closing loss allowance as at 31
December 2018 as follows:

At 31 December 2017 under HKAS 39

6.

R EIR (4)

©

EERR (&)
BBERATIRNERMEE

AEBIRE AT R A 8
BE (S EEMALTERRIN K
BREERRE  Bit - HASE
ROEBRBEBRE AT —EAES
BE-ptasEEMALTERM
5 WEEREREAARERIARK
tEIg - NREE eRHER 2 HEY
JE5i8 -

R-Z—+F+-_A=+—HEH
AT ERNEERER_T—N
F-A—BFYVEBEBERER=-F
—N\F+_A=+—BFEREERE
H2 EEERNT

Loans to
other parties

EEMmALER
HK$'000
TET

R_E—+tF+=-A=+—8H

REBBETERIE 395 -

Impact on initial application of HKFRS 9

BRERAEEMBEHREERE I

(note 3) V2 (M 3) 947
Adjusted balance at 1 January 2018 RZZE-NF—A—BLAEEH 947
Impairment losses for the year FRRAEERE 4,982
At 31 December 2018 RZE—NF+=-_A=+—H 5,929
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z —ZF— N\F+_-_A=+—HILF&E

Certain cash deposits and equity investments at FVTOCI

The Group has equity investment at FVTOCI and certain
cash deposits placed in the margin accounts of brokerage
firms. The brokerage firms are subsidiaries of Hong Kong
listed companies hence the directors consider the credit-
rating is acceptable. The margin account enables the
brokerage firm to re-pledge the Group’s securities
collateral (if any) in the margin account and use it as
collateral to secure borrowings for the brokerage firm’s
use. If the brokerage firm becomes insolvent, the banks
may liquidate the securities collateral re-pledged to it by
the brokerage firm in order to discharge the brokerage
firm’s indebtedness. As a result, the Group may not be able
to recover all the securities in the margin account. This is
commonly known as “pooling risk” associated with the
margin account. As at the end of reporting period, the
Group is not exposed to any pooling risk as the Group’s
investment securities and cash deposits held by the
brokerage firms have not been re-pledged.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z—F—N\F+A=+—HI-FE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(d) Ligquidity risk (Continued)

The maturity analysis based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows of the Group’s financial liabilities is as follows:

Less than

1 year and
on demand
1EUT

KRR
EXK
HK$'000
FAL

At 31 December 2018 R-ZE-N\F

6. MBEEREEE)

()

Between
land 2
years

NF
122%
HK$:000
THT

nBEERER (&)

AEEeRAGBNANIRRAS
MEIADHTLAT -

Between
2and 5
years

N
2E55  BESE it
HK$:000 HK$:000 HK$000
FET  FERL TER

+=A=+-H
Trade payables ERESER 76,474 - - - 76,474
Accruals and other payables TE{RB R RE M
AN 170,119 - - - 170,119
Borrowings Y= 43,157 - - - 43,157
License rights payable BTN 4,108 - - - 4,108
At 31 December 2017 R=B-t&
+=A=+-8H
Trade payables ERESER 74,829 - - - 74,829
Accruals and other payables TE1ZBFE R EM
B3R 169,169 - - - 169,169
Amount due to a non- EN—HERBAR
controlling shareholder —HIEERRFEHE
of a subsidiary 535 - - - 535
Borrowings EE 44257 - - - 44,257
License rights payable BN 6,469 - - - 6,469

(e) Interest rate risk

The Group’s loans to other parties and borrowings bear
interests at fixed interest rates and therefore are subject to
fair value interest rate risks.

The Group’s exposure to interest-rate risk arises from its
bank deposits. These deposits bear interests at variable
rates varied with the then prevailing market condition.

(e

RS
REEREMALTERRIEERE
EREEE - EiERA T ERE
Al o

AEEFRAZERITFROMERE

B o REFHRIFBN RS - F
RZERTRME °
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =—F—\F+=A=+—HI-FE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. UEEREIE(E)
(e) Interest rate risk (Continued) (e) FIEEP(E)

WoE—N\E+=A=+-8 &
PR BB TR OERT -
fEtRIE R 7/ (FHE) 100
B% - ARENFEBAREHE
D, () T -

At 31 December 2018, it is estimated that a general
increase/(decrease) of 100 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would have
decreased/(increased) the Group’s loss for the year and
accumulated losses as follows:

Increase/(decrease) 2018 2017
in interest rates FREHA (TE) —E—N\E&E —E— &
HK$°000 HK$'000

F#&xT T

100 basis points 100 &2 509 1,397
(100) basis points (100) E 2h (509) (1,397)

EXHREDMIIRBRERAN RES)
FEFEENBRARMS - 1M
HAKEFEEBRRERBRNT
E-nMihkeaFzR—EEE

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the impact on the
Group’s loss for the year and equity that would have arisen
assuming that there is an annualised impact on interest
income and expense by a change in interest rates. The

analysis has been performed on the same basis throughout 17 o
the year.
(f)  Categories of financial instruments at 31 December O Rt+tZA=+—8BmemITA%ER

2018 2017
—EB-N\F —F—+tF
HK$7000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Financial assets: SREE
Financial assets measured RS A DI BR Y
at amortised cost SREE 619,107 -
Financial assets measured at FVTOCI  ## A FEFFAE 2 mE Uk a5 &Y
Equity investments fRIERE 27,187 -
Loans and receivables (including BERREWGIE(BERE R
cash and cash equivalents) ReEED) - 703,783
Available-for-sale financial assets AP ESREE - 11,958
Financial liabilities: SREE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 3R $ERK AN BEHN S BL B (& 290,968 286,382
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B ZE —ZF—N\F+_-A=+—HIFF/F

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated
statement of financial position approximate their respective
fair values.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The following
disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair value hierarchy
that categorises into three levels the inputs to valuation
technigues used to measure fair value:

Level 1inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the Group
can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers
out of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

AEBERGS

BTN P8 &

BEMEBABBENREERESA
R HERE

RNFERTSE2EEZHARFERES
FREPHEEBEMBSEINERAEM
X ZER - REBRBATAFESE
RRBEELFEFNE  HEANGE
RFENEERTNBABRSR=ZE

E

ERI-LN SR
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EIBBAEH
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =—F—\F+=A=+—HI-FE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. RFEFE(E)
(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 December: @ M+TZA=1t—"HAFESHREE
R R

Fair value measurements using: Total
ATFEFEFMANER : st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2018

F1E F2fE BIE —B-N\F
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FEx FEx FET FEx

Recurring fair value EEMHAFENE

measurements:
Investment properties  REYE
Commercial units [SEX: A
— Hong Kong (note 19)  — & (K13£19) - 30,000 - 30,000
Financial assets THEE
Equity investments at R AFEF AHM
FVTOCI (note 24) 2 W3S B RS R
B& (K1:F24)
— Equity securities listed — A& L2
in Hong Kong N 27,187 - - 27,187
27,187 30,000 - 57,187
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z—F—N\F+A=+—HI-FE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. AFEREE)
(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 December: @ M+TZA=1t—"HAFESHREE
(Continued) e - (8)
Fair value measurements using: Total
N EFTEFMANSZR @Et
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2017
BB F2E FIE T—LtF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THT TR TAT
Recurring fair value EENATEFE:
measurements:
Property, plant and V% BERRE
equipment and URIBREYHE
Investment properties
Commercial units [EEXAM
— Hong Kong - &8
(note 18 & 19) (Hiz£18.%19) - 59,000 - 59,000
Financial assets cREE
Available-for-sale ARHESREE
financial assets (note 24) (K3t 24)
— Equity securities - REALETZ
listed in Hong Kong R A7 5 11,958 - - 11,958

11,958 59,000 - 70,958
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =—F—\F+=A=+—HI-FE

7.  FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. AVEFEE)

(b) Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group and ) FEEAEER_ZT—-—N\F+=A

valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value
measurements at 31 December 2018:

The Group’s financial controller is responsible for the fair
value measurements of assets and liabilities required for
financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair value
measurements. The financial controller reports directly to
the Board of Directors for these fair value measurements.
Discussions of valuation processes and results are held
between the financial controller and the Board of Directors
at least twice a year.

For level 2 fair value measurements, the Group will
normally engage external valuation experts with the
recognised professional qualifications and recent
experience to perform the valuations.

Level 2 fair value measurements

Valuation technique Inputs
fHER TS WAER

Commercial units located Market comparable Market prices
in Hong Kong approach
R BE BRI R ENL MH BT A TS EE

During the two years, there were no changes in valuation
technigues used.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A M BmRM

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z—F—N\F+A=+—HI-FE

8. REVENUE 8. WA
Disaggregation of revenue WA 5 Hr
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by RFEERFTEEMRXRBIEE SO
major products or service line for the year is as follows: FPELHWADFIAAT -

2018
—E-N\F

HK$°000
FET

Revenue from contracts with customers EBE B FHREXERFE 155

—E—+F

HK$'000
TR

B

within the scope of HKFRS 15 BHERANEFESHKRA
Disaggregated by major products or BEXEERIRBIEE DT
service lines
— Sales of goods —HEEm 720,313 655,015
— Provision of catering service — REBEMRIRT 14,871 6,617
735,184 661,632
Revenue from other sources R B H AR AU
Factoring interest income HERBEF BUA - 484
Internet financial services income BB SR ERUA - 92
735,184 662,208
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR I A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =—F—\F+=A=+—HI-FE

8. REVENUE (Continued) 8.  WA(&)
The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods and REBMPE T B E RS K EE 5%
services and at a point in time in the following major product KR E M ARG E A UE

lines and geographical regions:

Marketing and
Electronic distribution of
manufacturing communications Securities and other
services products assets investment Total

ETRERY EEROHBAER RIRHMEERE st

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-N\F ZZ2—tF ZB-N\F ZZ—+F ZE-\F ZT—+F ZZ-\F ZT—+F
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TEx TAxr TExr TR FRr  TEr  TExn  TEx

Primary geographical markets TEET R
— The People’s Republicof ~ — AR HAIE

China (the “PRC") ([E])

(including Hong Kong) (BERE) 105,177 83,024 - - 68,573 14,511 173,750 97,535
— The United States of - ZNZEaRE

America (the “US.A.") ([%E ) 118,123 126,452 36,775 64,092 - - 154,898 190,544
— Switzerland -t 196,631 133,096 - - - - 196,631 133,096
— France — 5B 44,327 39,173 - - - - 44,327 39,173
— Poland - KE 4,619 7,431 - - - - 4,619 7,431
— United Kingdom - HEH 25,740 26,684 - - - - 25,740 26,684
— Others - Ei 153,270 195,443 6,954 7,025 - - 160,224 202,468
Segment revenue AERA 647,887 611,303 43729 71117 68573 14511 760,189 696,931
Intersegment revenue DERERA
—The USA. -%B (25,005)  (34,723) - - - - (25,005)  (34,723)
Revenue from external REMEEFIA

customers 622,882 576,580 43,729 71,117 68,573 14,511 735,184 662,208

Timing of revenue recognition W AR~ k%

Products transferred at EmnE-EHERER
a point in time 622,882 576,580 43,729 71,117 68,573 14,511 735,184 662,208
Products and services BRSPS R E M R

transferred over time - - - - - - - _

Total Bt 622,882 576,580 43,729 71,117 68,573 14511 735,184 662,208

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 using the cumulative AEBECHBRFTNEREFEXNER
effect transition method. Under this method, the comparative BAREYEMEAERF55 o RIFUFE
information is not restated and was prepared in accordance with WESH|ILEER  MBESEESTE
HKAS 18 and HKAS 11. BIZE18 M B B G ERENHRER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

/\‘/T\

B MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B ZE —ZF—N\F+_-A=+—HIFF/F

The Group has three operating segments as follows:

EMS — Electronic manufacturing services

Distribution of —
Communications
Products

Marketing and distribution of
communications products

Securities and other assets
investment

Securities and Other —
Assets Investment

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business units
that offer different products and services. They are managed
separately because each business requires different technology
and marketing strategies.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as those described in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements. Segment profits or losses do not include interest
income on loans to other parties, gain on disposal of a subsidiary,
interest on loans from independent third party/parties and
unallocated expenses. Segment assets do not include
unallocated bank and cash balances, unallocated prepayments,
deposits, other receivables and other assets, loans to other
parties and deferred tax assets. Segment liabilities do not include
borrowings, unallocated accruals and other payables and
deferred tax liabilities. Segment non-current assets do not
include deferred tax assets.

The Group accounts for intersegment sales and transfers as if the
sales or transfers were to third parties, i.e. at current market
prices.

AREB=_HZEDEWT :

ETRERS — ETRERH

NEBAER — EHROHBAER

ErkEfl - BHEREMEERE
BERE

ARG B ey RS o #B A T A R E an KR

R RREEREN - KD EBBILE
2 RERSEBSTETE MR & E
SHIREE o

85 BRI EUR R A Y B EE N
4T ENRR o HEH;ERL T EIEM
HMATERZFBWA ~ HE—FHH
BRRIZWE  KREBIE=AZER
MEARKDERAE - DEEEL B
BARADBERITRIB &R - RO RHERN
MIEEE - HEKRIEREME
E MEMATERAREEREE
E-pHEaBETIEEEE  KHOEE
REAKEMENREBRELCHIES
Eo D HWIERBEEL T RIFZEERIR

AEB
AR W E=

?JTJFH_{ETE’\*E F'ﬁ iﬁﬁ KR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR I A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =—F—\F+=A=+—HI-FE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. DEEE ()
(a) Information about reportable segment profit or loss, assets (@ FH iﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁiﬁ?ﬁ'ﬁi)@ﬂé BER
and liabilities: BENER

Distribution of  Securities and
Communications Other Assets

EMS Products Investment Total
ErHE DB EHRHEAM

FR#% Em BERE At
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TER TER TER TER

Year ended 31 December HE-ZE-N\&

2018 +ZA=1+—-HILEE
Revenue from external RENKREPHA

customers 622,882 43,729 68,573 735,184
Intersegment revenue AEBEBA 25,005 - - 25,005
Segment profit/(loss) AEEF/ (B8 36,330 1,281 (54,440) (16,829)
Interest revenue FISHA 404 2 33 439
Interest expense FEHAE (60) (286) (1,873) (2,219)
Depreciation ne (15,278) (5) (2,205) (17,488)
Other material non-cash HEMERFRSER :

items:

Net gain on disposal HEMBLAZ

of subsidiaries W55 1,947 - - 1,947
Waive of license rights RN T#E
payable (note 10) (He10) - 1,857 - 1,857

Additions to segment AEIEREEEILA

non-current assets 30,653 - 10,486 41,139

As at 31 December 2018 R-B-N\E
+=A=+-H

Segment assets DEEE 375,674 27,703 465,166 868,543
Segment liabilities EEE 229,985 28,612 84,002 342,599
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR I A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z—F—N\F+A=+—HI-FE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. NEER(E)
BRARE D BEMHEE -
BENER : (&)

(@) Information about reportable segment profit or loss, assets @ BEM

and liabilities: (Continued)

Securities and

Other Assets
Investment Total

78 EH REAM

Distribution of
Communications

EMS Products
EFHE

Year ended

31 December 2017

Revenue from external
customers

Intersegment revenue

Segment profit/(loss)

Interest revenue

Interest expense

Depreciation

Other material non-cash
items:

Fair value gain on
investment
properties (note 10)

Gain on bargain purchase
from business
combination (note 10)

Impairment loss on
available-for-sale
financial assets

Loss on disposal of
available-for-sale
financial assets

Impairment loss on
receivables for
factoring business

(Loss)/gain on disposal of

subsidiaries
Additions to segment
non-current assets

As at 31 December 2017

Segment assets
Segment liabilities

BE-_Z2—-+F

TZA=t-RLEE
REMREFKA

AEEBA

AEEF|/(B8)

MEBA

MERX

wE

HthEARE
1A :
REWEZATE

Wz (Histi0)

REXHAHEE
WiE et
(Hiio)

HRHETHEEL
WEBR

HER R E
TREEZER

RRBARHL
FelsiE
WEBR

HENBLARZ
(B#R),/ e

DEFRBDEELR

R-E—t&

+=A=+-8
AR

DEARE

R
HK$'000
TET

576,580
34,723
13,792

898

(14,942)

(19,217)

4,765

469,422
240,970

Em BERE st
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
TET THT TAT

71,117 14,511 662,208
- - 34,723
(1,271) (95,301) (82,780)
14 29 941
(633) (736) (1,369)
47 (786) (15,775)
- 2,157 2,157
- 2,354 2,354
- (28,145) (28,145)
- (20,339) (20,339)
- (15) (15
- 4,388 (14,829)
= 47,899 52,664
30,501 365,581 865,504
32,630 31,697 305,297
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR I A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =—F—\F+=A=+—HI-FE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. DIER(E)
(b) Reconciliations of segment revenue and profit or loss: (b) D EPURARE M SRS IR AR -
2017
—ZE-—N\EF — T F
HK$7000 HK$'000
THxT FHIT
Revenue KA
Total revenue of reportable segments #4455 UL A 4258 760,189 696,931
Elimination of intersegment revenue 9 ZRE Uk A K 54 (25,005) (34,723)
Consolidated revenue A WA 735,184 662,208
2018 2017
—E-N\F —EF—+F
HK$°000 HK$ 000
THBxT FHIT
Profit or loss AR e R
Total loss of reportable segments wEDBEERE (16,829) (82,780)
Intersegment elimination 7 EREHE 5 (291) 851
Unallocated amounts: KoL
Interest income on loans to mEMATEZRZ
other parties M BHA 8,166 3,630
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FBARz W= 700 -
Imputed interest on non-interest KE—REBREES
bearing loans from a substantial BRZHERE
shareholder - (10,288)
Interest on loans from independent KEBYE=HNERFE
third party/parties (2,433) (1,392)
Other unallocated head office and BRI ER KL
corporate expenses NI (33,768) (31,432)
Consolidated loss before tax BREiRIAR & BB (44,455) (121,411)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR B ER M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z—F—N\F+A=+—HI-FE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. NEER(E)

(c) Reconciliations of segment assets and liabilities: (00 DEEENMBERYER:

2017
—E-N\F —EFE—tF
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FERT FAT
Assets =3
Total assets of reportable segments  $REHEPEELL(E 868,543 865,504
Elimination of intersegment assets B E E (23,453) (25,805)
Elimination of unrealised profits R IR 4 5 (1,613) (1,321)
Unallocated amounts: ROBLERE -
Bank and cash balances RITRIBSER 39 3
Prepayments, deposits, other TERTFRIE -~ e~ Ep
receivables and other assets BN EMEE 12,629 28,545
Loans to other parties mEAMALTER 72,779 91,630
Deferred tax assets RERIRE = 1,938 2,032
Consolidated total assets TEEERA 930,862 960,588
2018 2017
=E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Liabilities =R
Total liabilities of reportable segments &S Ep & ELEE 342,599 305,297
Elimination of intersegment liabilities 2 ZhfE & &K 54 (23,453) (25,805)
Unallocated amounts: ROBLERE -
Accruals and other payables TEIRE A R E A FE T RIE 8,884 2,896
Borrowings TER= 20,000 20,000
Deferred tax liabilities EEFHIBAEE - 4,198
Consolidated total liabilities IrABERE 348,030 306,586
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR I A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =—F—\F+=A=+—HI-FE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. DIER(E)
(d) Geographical information: (d) HEER :
The Group’s revenue from external customers by location AEBE R BINRE FIRER M
of operations and information about its non-current assets El U RARFrE b & 55 2 FE
by location are detailed below: MEVEEMBERFMIT
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FHT F&T
Revenue 'ON
The PRC (including Hong Kong) FE(BEEE) 173,750 97,535
The U.S.A. EJE 129,893 155,821
Switzerland st 196,631 133,096
France JEE 44,327 39,173
Poland Vit o 4,619 7,431
United Kingdom T 25,740 26,684
Others Efb 160,224 202,468
Consolidated total RE KRR 735,184 662,208
2018 2017
—E—N\&E —F—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#&T F&TT
Non-current assets FREEE
The PRC (including Hong Kong) FE(BIEEE) 179,556 110,954
The U.S.A. ESE - 5
Consolidated total RE4AER 179,556 110,959
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A M BmRM

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z—F—N\F+A=+—HI-FE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9.

(e) Revenue from major customers:

DEVERL ()
(&) REXZEFPHA:

An analysis of revenue from major customers which
account for 10 percent or more of the Group’s revenue is as
follows:

EMS segment
Customer A
Customer B

B RERE D
BEA
=FB

RAREBRAI0%HA FHTFER
FUWADHTT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR FET
306,677 200,020
110,492 102,487

10. OTHER INCOME

10. Embilg A

2018 2017

—E-NF —F—tF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHT F&T

Bank interest income HRITHFLEWA 170 246

Bank fixed deposit interest income #R17 T HATF SRR B A 269 695

Consultancy fee income EEEEON 2,473 -

Commission income HEKA - 1,137

Exchange gains PE 5 s 5,668 1,838
Fair value gain on investment WEYE 2 AN FEWE

properties (note 19) (Kis£19) - 2,157
Interest income on loans to employees MiEE REMATER

and other parties FEHA 8,196 3,659
Tooling income AU A - 372
Gain on bargain purchase from business KB ¥E & FaBUE 2R

combination (note 39(b)) (KtaE39(b)) - 2,354
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - WE MEE 2 W

plant and equipment 88 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEKB QRS

(2018: note 39(i) & (), (ZZ—N\F : MEE390) &) -

2017: note 39(c) & (&) ZE—F : f{FE390) & (o) 2,699 4,402
Government subsidy NEgEE=4:)) = 93
Sales of scrap materials SHERER 12 286
Reversal of impairment losses on FEUE 2 IR SOR B s 18 [El

trade receivables 3,164 -
Waive of license rights payable FRETEFE S SREA R 1,857 =
Others HAith 2,504 2,285

27,100 19,524
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BmRM

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =—F—\F+=A=+—HI-FE

i« BINANCE COSTS 1.

Imputed interest on non-interest bearing KB —ZFEZRFREER

2018
—E-N\F

HK$°000
FET

2017
—ET—+F
HK$'000
FH&7T

loans from a substantial shareholder ZIHEF B - 10,288
Interest on loans from independent KEBLE=F2EFFE
third party/parties 2,433 1,392
Interest on loans from a related company @B —E/E QR 2 E A& 1,873 736
Other interest expenses HEapF BT 346 633
4,652 13,049
2. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 2. FIERIEX

Income tax has been recognised in profit or loss as follows:

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BIEARIIE — H B FIER

PISHERBREHERNT

2018
—E-N\F

HK$’000
FET

2017
—EF—tF
HK$'000
F&TT

Provision for the year FEREE 3,330 5,302
Current tax — Overseas BIHATR T8 — 8 oh

Provision for the year FEEE 6,114 804

Under-provision in prior years BEFEBRENT - 93

6,114 897

Deferred tax (note 35) EEFLIE (B 7% 35) (4,599) 3,699

4,845 9,898
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B MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B ZE —ZF—N\F+_-A=+—HIFF/F

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at a rate of 16.5%
(2017:16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

On 21 March 2018, the Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill
2017, which introduces a two-tiered profits tax regime, was
substantially enacted. Under the two-tiered profits tax regime,
the first HK$2 million of assessable profits of qualifying
corporations will be taxed at 8.25% with effect from the year
assessment 2018/2019. Assessable profits above HK$2 million
will continue to be subject to the tax rate of 16.5%.

PRC Enterprises Income Tax has been provided at a rate of 25%
(2017: 25%).

Tax charge on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated
at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates, based on existing legislation, interpretation and
practices in respect thereof.

HE-Z-N\F+ZA=1T—HLHF
B - AEERBAEFERB SN - &
16.5% (—ZE—+4F 1 16.5%) T KHER
RSB -

RZE—\F=Z=A=Z+—H 5| AWk
%Hﬂ/eﬁﬁﬁ@o 7%%%%(%%) (“7?}%)
EpEZ)
HE é\éﬁhﬁ%ﬂ@éz,ooo,ooo%m
FERBUR A2 8. 25% T R F » B =
TN/ ZE-NTIREERER - 1B
82,000,000 7 7T #) & 2R B ) % 4 48
1216.5% BB R EGHL -
B AR 25% M R AT S R B
(ZZF—+HF : 25%)

ﬁﬁiﬂiﬁzﬁr‘i R MM IR E A TR A

BEREMERREAMRE - RIEEH
iﬁﬁ&% - REREEFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR I A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =—F—\F+=A=+—HI-FE

12.  INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 2. FERFES(E)

PRGBS R TR AT B IR RIA B B IS
B R FRTE 2 BEMESRRNT

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the
product of loss before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong Profits
Tax rate is as follows:

166

2018 2017
—EB-N\F —F—tF
HK$7000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Loss before tax BT &R (44,455) (121,411)
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate BEBNEBBE165%
of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) (ZF—+F :165%)
FTEZRIA (6,726) (20,033)
Tax effect of income that is not taxable — B/ERHIUA BT 2 (9,403) (2,410)
Tax effect of expenses that are TR ERANR BT 2
not deductible 8,341 21,359
Tax effect of temporary differences RERATREZEENT G E
not recognised 29 421
Tax effect of tax concession EERENB KT E (2,501) (4,10D
Under-provision in prior years BEFERENT - 93
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses B RBTRERTEEED
not previously recognised Mg E (528) (545)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERMIBEIEN R 2 12,854 19,096
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries M{B R B &E=BHFE 3,208 (3,973)
Others Efh (429) 9
Income tax expense Frig®if > 4,845 9,898

China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited EEZFEE X2 E=EHE AT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
4= AR

sRe MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z—F—N\F+A=+—HI-FE

13.

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

The Group’s loss for the year is stated after charging/(crediting)

the followings:

Auditor’s remuneration
— audit services
— other services

Business entertainment
Cost of goods sold (Note (1))
Cost of inventories sold
Allowance on inventories
Reversal of allowance on inventories
(Note (i)

Depreciation
Legal and professional fees
Other income:
Fair value gain on investment
properties (note 19)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
(2018: note 39(i) & (j),
2017: note 39(c) & (e)
Gain on bargain purchase from
business combination (note 39(b))
Reversal of impairment losses on
trade receivables
Other operating expenses:
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries
(2018: note 39(k),
2017: note 39(d), (), (9), (h))

Loss on disposal of available-for-sale
financial assets

Impairment loss on available-for-sale
financial assets

Impairment losses for loans to other
parties, net

Impairment losses for trade
receivables, net

Research and development
expenditure (Note (i)

Operating lease charges
Land and building

3. FEEE

TRIEFIIAT

AEBFEBEENR GIA)RTE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZT—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
BRI &
— BIZRTE 1,600 1,408
— b RS 210 216
1,810 1,624
SR 5,339 15,692
EERA (M)
BEFERA 555,386 509,748
GFERE 10,409 6,728
GFERERR
(Bt i) (12,828) (18,997)
552,967 497,479
e 17,488 15,775
FEREXER 12,584 8,896
HUA -
HEMENFERE
(H1z£19) - (2,157)
HERB AR Z W
(ZZ—N\F : BIEE390) & ()
T —F - fEE390) R (e) (2,699) (4,402)
REEBEHZEENE 2 Wa
(Bt 39(b)) - (2,354)
M E SR FUR AR B
(3,164) -
Hig & -
HEKBRRERE
(ZZ—=N\F : B39
ZE—+F - fEE393)
@~ 1) 52 19,231
PETHEESHEEZEHR
- 20,339
At EeEE 2 RERSE
- 28,145
REMATERZHESBFE
4,982 =
W E SRFRESEBFE
148 2,827
M EFAES
(Btaz Gin)) 19,863 24,228
RETHEER
T RET 43,841 22,205
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BTSSR P 7t

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =—F—\F+=A=+—HI-FE

15

LOSS FOR THE YEAR (Continued)

Notes:

0]

@)

(i

During the year ended 31 December 2018, cost of goods sold includes
approximately HK$122,670,000 (2017: HK$108,060,000) relating to employee
benefits expense and depreciation, amounts of which are also included in the
respective total amounts disclosed separately above and note 14 for each of
these types of expenses.

The Group makes allowance on inventories under respective aged criteria in
different segments. The reversal of such allowance represents the amount of
inventories subsequently used in production or sold.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, research and development
expenditure includes approximately HK$19,761,000 (2017: HK$23,293,000)
relating to employee benefits expense, amounts of which are set out in note 14
to the consolidated financial statements.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

FEEEE)
Bt :
() BE-B-NEF-ASt—BILEE SR

@D

(D)

m@%ﬁﬁéﬁé?ﬁlﬁi&?ﬁ%mzz 670,000
BT (=T —H4% 1 108060,000/87)  %EE
B A LR E4EREES BRSNS
B o

AEBEHERDS B ERNORRENNFEER
B o BREARDEARANEERLENTFES
5.

HE-T—)\F+-A=+—HILEFE WEK
ﬁﬁiﬁ@%ﬁﬁ@;hﬂﬁimmmww%
TL(ZF—+4F ¢ 2329300087T) * ZELEH
WERA BTSRRI 14

B E@RIF

2018
—E-N\F

2017
—+tF
HK$000
T

HK$°000
FHET

Employee benefits expense EERMAX
(including directors’ emoluments): (BIEEEME)
Salaries, bonuses and allowances %ﬁ% © JEAT KoEEh 242,436 209,012
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R {REF| TSR 13,667 12,727
256,103 221,739
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z—F—N\F+A=+—HI-FE

14,

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (Continued) 4. RERAMNAZ(E)
Five highest paid individuals: hAE&m#FHAL:
The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year AEE AEBREZRHFALHRE
included none (2017: none) directors whose emoluments are EE(ZZE—EF:2R) Een
reflected in the analysis presented in note 15(a). The emoluments Fh@AOMFREI - BTHRA(ZE
of the remaining five (2017: five) individuals are set out below: —+tF  ER) R ATHBEEY 0
T
2018 2017
—®-N\F T+
HK$°000 HK$'000
THxT Tt
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e A MR 32,541 24,618
Retirement benefit scheme contributions ERIEFIE 21 2k 338 247
32,879 24,865
The emoluments fell within the following band: HeBR THEE :

Number of individuals
A

2018 2017
—E-N\F =

HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7T % 4,000,000 /8 7T - 2
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001/ 7T & 4,500,000 7 7T - 1
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001/ 7T % 5,000,000 8 7T 2 -
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 7T % 5,500,000 # 7T 1 1
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,500,001 7T % 6,000,000 % 7T 1 -
HK$8,000,001 to HK$8,500,000 8,000,001 7T £ 8,500,000 /& 7T - 1
HK$12,500,001 to HK$13,000,000 12,500,008 7.2 13,000,000 8 7T 1 -

5 5
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =—F—\F+=A=+—HI-FE

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 5. EEREMEER
(a) Directors’ emoluments (@) EEE
The remuneration of every director is set out below: ZEEFHMEIIOT

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
REAES (BRAFARAENEAAER) HEARBE A REKHEHH
Emoluments
paid or
receivable in
respect of
director’s
other services
in connection
Remunerations with the
Employer’s paid or management
(Note])  contribution receivable in of the
Estimated toa respect of affairs of the
money retirement accepting Company or
Discretionary value of benefit office Housing its subsidiary
Salaries bonus other benefits scheme as director allowance  undertaking
RESER
EEANR
RHEKE
HER EEEK REIES ARME
fhatEH BAGE  BUBAR REERR
A ik BfgTeA EE #% RN EERE  EROFH
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000

TER TAR TAR TER TAR TAR TER TAR

Name of director BBy
Executive dlrectors HITEE
Mr.Gong Shaoxiang B %ELE

(Chairman) (£E) - 1,000 - - - - - - 1,000
Mr. Lee ChiHwa Joshua  ZBE% 4 - 1,800 400 - - - - - 2,200
Mr.Duan Chuanhong ~ BRJIILI %4 - 1,000 1,000 - - - - - 2,000
Mr. Shi Xinbiao SHIREE (i) - 1,000 - - - - - - 1,000

Non-executive director ~ FH7TEE

Mr. Cao Yuyun EMafE 2,000 - - - - - - - 2,000
Independent BUSHITEE

Non-executive directors
Mr. Bao Jingiao HeREE 480 - - - - - - - 480
Mr.Wong ChunHung  EEHELE 240 - - - - - - - 240
Mr. Leung Pok Man 2EEE 240 - - - - - - - 240
Total for 2018 e O 2,960 4,800 1,400 - - - - - 9,160

170 China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited ZEE@EE X EE AR A 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z—F—N\F+A=+—HI-FE

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Continued) 15, ZH4@H Mgz (48)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) @) EZEBHM(E)
The remuneration of every director is set out below: BESHWEIOT

Emoluments paid or ect of a i as a director,

whether of the Com| 0
7 \AIER) B e GoE)

Emoluments

Remunerations

contribution
toa
retirement
benefit

Salaries bonus scheme

Name of director BBy
Executive dlrectors HITEE
Mr.Gong Shaoxiang RS

(Chairman) (£E) - 1,000 167 - - - - - 1,167
Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua  ZE £ 4 - 1,800 200 - - - - - 2,000
Mr. Duan Chuanhong ~ BJIIT %4 - 583 - - - B - R 563
Mr. Shi Xinbiao SHIREE (i) - 210 - - - - - - 210

Non-executive director ~ FH7TEE

Mr. Cao Yuyun EMafE 2,000 - - - - - - - 2,000
Independent BUHHTEE
Non-executive directors

Mr. Bao Jingiao BEFEE 480 - 80 - - - - - 560
Mr.Wong ChunHung  E$EELE 240 - 40 - - - - - 280
Mr. Leung Pok Man REXEA 240 - 4 - - - - = 280
Mr. Chan Kin Sang B s s (i) 70 - - - - - - - 70
Total for 2017 “F-LFe 3,030 3,593 527 = = = - - 7,150
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —ZF

1i5)

BB RRN T

5\ ] = LR D

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
Notes:
(i) Estimated money value of other benefits include rent paid, share options,

insurance premium and club memberships.

(i) Appointed on 16 October 2017 and resigned on 31 January 2019.
(iii) Appointed on 18 October 2016 and resigned on 31 July 2017.
None of the directors waived any emoluments during the
year (2017: Nil).

(b) Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements
or contracts
No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the Company and the
director’s connected party had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

DIVIDENDS

No dividends have been paid or proposed during the year ended
31 December 2018, nor has any dividend been proposed since
the end of the reporting period (2017: Nil).
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(@

[ gs)
BHE—
*EH%%E/JE%EJZ%E/)E%HX/%

=550 (&)
Hiat -

0 EmEfmttarEEeio i
& BEE RRELEMES -

(i) RZB—+tF+ATRBEZERRZ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR I A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z—F—N\F+A=+—HI-FE

17. LOSS PER SHARE 7. HREIE
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share is based HREAREEEEE T AAGHE
on the following:

2018 2017
—E—-N\F —T—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FHIT
Loss BB
Loss attributable to owners of ARETESREAREIEZ
the Company, used in the basic loss NARHEE AELEE
per share calculation (57,984) (128,428)
(a) Basic loss per share (@) BTIRENEE
Number of shares — Basic B —E X

Weighted average number of ordinary ARt EGREAREIE 2
shares for the purpose of calculating  AN#E F 15 & i@ AL AR X

basic loss per share 5,945,311,400 5,120,763,455
(b) Diluted loss per share (b) ER#EEEIE
No diluted loss per share was presented as the Company HRARBEEZZ—\FE=_E
did not have any diluted potential ordinary shares for the —tF+_A=t+—HLFETE
years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017. FAEEETTBR  WIEZS

FREEEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR I A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =—F—\F+=A=+—HI-FE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. M - BE NG
Plant,
machinery, Furniture
Land and Leasehold moulds and and Motor
building improvements tools equipment vehicles Total
HENE BE #S.

T REF IR HBARIE HREREE bt st

HK$:000 HK$:000 HK$:000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$:000

TR TAT AT TAT THT THT

Cost or valuation RS EE

At 1 January 2017 RZE—tF—-A—AH 26,300 16,969 130,333 9,614 979 184,195

Additions BE - 212 4,546 1,249 - 6,007
Elimination of accumulated ~ Z5HTEE

depreciation (1,052) - - - - (1,052)

Gain on property revaluation  #)% Bz 3752 - - - - 3752
Acquisition of subsidiaries  EE N B AT

(note 39 (@) & (b)) (HzE39@) R b)) - 1,078 - 488 339 1,905
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR

(note 39 (c)-(9)) (H#390-() - (6D (1,179) (1,018) - (2,248)

Disposals HE - - (890) (14) - (904)

Exchange differences EREE - 1,150 5,085 288 26 6,549

At31December2017and  RZE—+t&+-A=+—H
=

1 January 2018 L-E-NF-A- 29,000 19,358 137,895 10,607 1,344 198,204
Additions BE - 11,369 27,487 2,283 - 41,139
Elimination of accumulated ~ 2EHHTE#E

depreciation (687) - - - - (687)
Gain on property revaluation #1¥ Bz 3,687 - - - - 3,687
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR

(note 39 (j) & (k) (W399 % %) (32,000) - - (117 - (32,117)
Disposals & - - (2,199) (569) - (2,768)
Written off kil - - (15,623) (50) - (15,673)
Exchange differences EREE - (800) (4,033) (243) (29) (5,105)
At 31 December 2018 R=E-\F+=-A=+-H - 29,927 143,527 11,911 1,315 186,680
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z—F—N\F+A=+—HI-FE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 18. W% - WEKk&E(E)

Plant,
machinery, Furniture
Land and Leasehold moulds and and Motor
building improvements tools equipment vehicles Total

REXE HE - #E-
THREF IR BERIE HKHERRE RE E
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TAT TAT TAT TAT % TAT

Accumulated depreciation  ZitiTE

At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—-F—H - 6,909 108,315 7,739 332 123,295
Charge for the year FEEHR 1,052 3973 9,238 1,138 374 15,775
Elimination on revaluation ~ Ef&# i (1,052) - - - - (1,052)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR

(note 39 (©)-(@)) (H#3900)-() - (26) (984) (646) - (1,656)
Disposals & - - (752) (13) - (765)
Exchange differences EREE - 548 3931 240 12 4731

At31December2017and  RZZ—+F+-A=+—H
H

1 January 2018 kB )\E-f— - 11,404 119,748 8,458 718 140,328
Charge for the year FEER 687 4,481 10,700 1,236 384 17,488
Elimination of accumulated BRI EEH

depreciation (687) - - - - (687)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWBRR

(note 39 (j) & (k) (Hrzt390) R k) - - - (116) - (116)
Disposals HeE - - (2,182) (270) - (2,452)
Written off ki - - (15,623) (50) - (15,673)
Exchange differences EHES - (588) (3,238) (269) 1" (4,112)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\&+ZA=+—-H - 15,297 109,405 8,989 1,085 134,776
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2018 R=E-\F+=-A=+-H - 14,630 34,122 2,922 230 51,904
At 31 Decernber 2017 RZF—+F+-A=1-H 29,000 7,954 18147 2149 626 57876
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR I A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =—F—\F+=A=+—HI-FE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 18. W BENKRE(E)
The Group’s land and building is analysed as follows: AEEBNIHREFHITOT
2018 2017
—E—NE&E —T—+F
HK$°000 HK$000
FHBxT FHEIT
In Hong Kong s>
Leasehold sk - 29,000
The Group’s land and building in Hong Kong were revalued at 31 REFBREFEBN T REFHB I FH
December 2017 on the open market value basis by reference to HEMEBKME HBREWEBR(FS)
market evidence of recent transactions for similar properties by BRARZEHUNERNTERZFHS
Colliers International (Hong Kong) Limited, an independent firm BEEZAETEREEN _T—tF+=
of chartered surveyors. It was disposed of on 1 August 2018 (note A=+—B&/# TR=_FE—N\FN\A
39(Kk)). —BHE (BIEE39K) ©
19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19. KEWHE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —EFE—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THxT FHEIT
At 1 January n—H—H 30,000 -
Additions BE - 27,843
Fair value gain (note 10) N EWE (BE10) - 2,157
At 31 December R+—A=+—8 30,000 30,000
Investment properties were revalued at 31 December 2018 and KEYMEREBIESFINEMEBAE
2017 on the open market value basis by reference to market —RKEBENHELEEEMBERAR
evidence of recent transactions for similar properties by Savills 2ERUDEMNAIBPRZTMEEBEZEA
Valuation and Professional Services Limited, an independent firm HMEEEN _—_E—-—NER-_ZF—+F
of chartered surveyors. +=—A=+—HEH-
For commercial properties and offices, the Group used market TEEVERBLAEMS  AEEKA
comparable approach. MiHA & LLEE o
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ARE SRR I A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z—F—N\F+A=+—HI-FE

20. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 20. TEfHEEFIE
The Group’s interests in prepaid land lease payments represent AEBEREMN T HHAERENERIETE
prepaid operating lease payments and their net book value are NEEHENREERTEE  E9F
analysed as follows: mr
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$000 HK$'000
FHBxT FHETT
At 1 January n—HA—H 2,641 3,047
Exchange differences EH =% (105) 201
Amortisation of prepaid land TEA L b FH & R IEEE 5
lease payments (624) (607)
At 31 December R+-_A=+—H 1,912 2,641
Current portion BIHAES 5 (624) (607)
Non-current portion JERNEREL 1,288 2,034
21. GOODWILL 21, EE
Catering
Services CGU
BHRERS
EEBN
HK$ 000
FHETT
Cost 5%
At 1 January 2017 RZZE—+F—HA—H -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 39(a)) W BE B B~ =) (M5t 39(a)) 18,814
At 31 December 2017, 1 January 2018 and RZE—+F+=HA=+—8"
31 December 2018 —E-N\F—-A—BK
—E-NE+-_A=+—H 18,814
Accumulated impairment losses iR EEE
At acquisition date, 31 December 2017, RUERS —FE—+E+=-A=+—8 -
1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018 —E-N\F—A—RBHEZZE—NF
=== -
Carrying amount BREE
At 31 December 2018 == === B = =g 18,814
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+=-A=+—H 18,814
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B SRR R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z —ZF— N\F+_-_A=+—HILF&E

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the CGUs that are expected to benefit from that
business combination.

The Group acquired 100% equity interest of Pride Review Limited
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to the “Pride Review
Group”) on 17 July 2017. The goodwill arising from the acquisition
is allocated to the Catering Services CGU.

The recoverable amounts of the Catering Services CGU has been
determined on the basis of their value in use calculations using
discounted cash flow method. The key assumptions for the
discounted cash flow method are those regarding the discount
rates, growth rates and budgeted gross margin and revenue
during the period. The Group estimates discount rates using pre-
tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the Catering Services
CGU. The growth rates are based on long-term average
economic growth rate of the geographical area in which the
businesses of the Catering Services CGU operates. Budgeted
gross margin and revenue are based on past practices and
expectations on market development.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most
recent financial budgets approved by the directors for the next
five years with the residual period using the growth rate of 3%.
This rate does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for
the relevant markets.

The rate used to discount the forecast cash flows from the
Group’s Catering Services CGU is 19.08%.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z—F—N\F+A=+—HI-FE

22.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

2. BREEE

License Customer
rights relationship
(note a) (note b) Total
ST EFER#%
(Kizta) (KiaEb) st
HK$ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
THIT T T
Cost 5%
At 1 January 2017, R=ZZ—+F—H—A8-

31 December 2017,
1 January 2018 and

—ET—+F+=-A=+—8"

—T-N\F-A—Hk

31 December 2018 —N\F+=—_A=+—H 32,458 13,707 46,165
Accumulated amortisation 2B RRERER

and impairment losses
At 1 January 2017, R-E—+F—H—H8"

31 December 2017, —T—+F+-_A=+—8"

1 January 2018 and —E2-NEF—A—BK

31 December 2018 —E-NF+=ZA=+—H 32,458 13,707 46,165
Carrying amount BRHEE
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NF+=—A=+—H - - -
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+=-A=+—H - - -
Notes: Wi
(a) License rights represent the right to use the “RCA” trademark in trading of a) B EER R INEAEEE TEEEERS

certain manufactured business phones in the U.S.A. and Canada. The license
rights expired on 31 December 2018 and the negotiation for extension of the
license rights is under progress.

B A [RCA] AR R - HRFEER-F
—NF+=A=T—BER - RERSFEES
EITRER o

(b) Customer relationship represents the future economic benefit to the Group )
arising from regular contact between individual customer and the business
entity before business combination. The amortising period of customer
relationship was 3-6 years.

EEBMEEEXRGEEMAIEATPREBERE
B AREELRREETNE - FPEE
MEHARIECF -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR I A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =—F—\F+=A=+—HI-FE

23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 23. RMBARINKRE

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018 are as RZEBE—N\FF+_A=+—HHEBERA
follows: BFEIRIT

Place of Percentage of ownership

incorporation/ interest/voting power/

establishment profit sharing

EEEaRER RERE/
HERANBEAE FEEK
Direct Indirect

i G

Name of subsidiary Issued and paid up capital Principal activities

WEARAM

AL B LB

EBRTRAZRE

Captain Ace Limited

Charm Year International Limited

AIEBIRARAR

China Khan Limited
ERBRAT

Fortune Cycle Investments Limited

Grant Global Limited

Powerled Limited

BEERLT

Power Trump Investments
Limited

Pride Review Limited

British Virgin Islands
("B.V.L")

RBEZES
([EBEXEE])

B.V.L.
RBRAES

BV
RBRAHS

BV
RBRAES

B.V.L.
RBRAES

BV
RBRAHS

Hong Kong
Bt

BV
RBRAHS

100 ordinary shares
of US$1 each

100 R RREE
[Etiok gl

100 ordinary shares
of US$1 each

100k SREE
[Etiok- a1

100 ordinary shares
of US$1 each

100 REREE
[Eotiok-F il

100 ordinary shares
of US$1 each

100 R SRR (E
1ETHERR

100 ordinary shares
of US$1 each

100k SREE
[EFtiok-£E1

100 ordinary shares
of US$1 each

100 RERAEE
[Etiok=F L3

Ordinary shares
of HK$100
10078 T EER

1 ordinary share
of US$1 each

1REREE
B0k FE L

China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited EEZFEE X2 E=EHE AT

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Inactive

TEEHG

Investment holding

REEKR

Investment holding

RERR

Investment holding

RERR

Inactive

EEXG

Investment holding

REEKR

Investment holding

RARR

Investment holding

REARR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR I A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z—F—N\F+A=+—HI-FE

23. RHIBARIRIKE (B8)

R-E-N\F+_A=+—HHEBRA
BVEIBIT - (88)

23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018 are as
follows: (Continued)

Place of Percentage of ownership
interest/voting power/
profit sharing

EhRERRERS RRE/

incorporation/

Name of subsidiary establishment Issued and paid up capital Principal activities

BRITRAZRA HERANEAH
Direct Indirect

BE 3

WEAREE TEMREX L,/ AR 2 FERK

Sheer Victory Limited B.V.I 100 ordinary shares 100% - Investment holding
RERAHES of US$1 each REER
100 R ERAEE
[EFtiok a1
ValueCatch Global Limited Cayman Islands 1 ordinary share 100% - Inactive
HEHRES of US$1 each T
1REREE
[Etiok-F il
ValueCatch Global Fund One Cayman Islands 1 ordinary share 100% - Inactive
Limited HEHE of US$1 each OmER
1REREE
[Etiok gl
ValueCatch Global Fund Cayman Islands 1 ordinary share 100% - Inactive
One CIP Limited RS of US$1 each TR
1REREE
[EFiok 251
Winning Global Holdings B.V.I. 100 ordinary shares 100% - Inactive
Limited KBRS of US$1 each L3
100G RREE
[Eptiok- gl
Ace Wealthy Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares - 100%  Provision of catering
B of HK$2 service
2ETHEBR RUE SRS
Chief Hero Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares - 100%  Provision of catering
FHEERDA B of HK$100 service
1008 TR L@k REBRIRT
China Healthcare Partners Limited Cayman Islands 1 ordinary share - 100%  Inactive
HEHE of US$1 each TREG
1REREE
[Etiok: gl
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ARE SRR I A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =—F—\F+=A=+—HI-FE

23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 23. RMTBARARE (&)

R-E-N\F+_A=+—HHEBRA
BVEIBIT - (88)

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018 are as
follows: (Continued)

Place of Percentage of ownership
incorporation/ interest/voting power/
Name of subsidiary establishment Issued and paid up capital profit sharing Principal activities
EtEERERER BRERE/
MEARERE SEMAR L/ PR i B BRITRAZRA HERANEAH TEXEK
Direct Indirect
B ik
Dayshine Global Investments Limited B.V.I. 1 ordinary share - 100%  Inactive
RERAHES of US$1 each TmER
1REREE
[EFtiok a1
Earn King Corporation Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share - 100%  Inactive
BEBRAF 0 of HK$1 BEER
Bemtiok=giil
Easy Time Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares - 100%  Provision of catering
SHRBRAT B of HK$100 service
1008 T EBR RUE SRS
Ever Billion Industrial Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share - 100%  Investment holding
BEEXERAF B of HK$1 REER
BTN EER
Excel Champion Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share - 100%  Inactive
ERERDA B of HK$1 BmEs
TBTRLBR
Idea Perfect Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share - 100%  Investment holding
EXRERERRA B of HK$1 REER
BTN ERR
Keenpro Investments Limited B.V.L. 1 ordinary share - 100%  Investment holding
BREEBRAR RERAHES of US$1 each REER
1RERER
[ETtiok a1
Nice Merit Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share - 100%  Investment holding
EFBRAT B of HK$1 REER
TATR L BR
Sheer Victory Company Hong Kong Ordinary share - 100%  Inactive
Limited 3 of HK$1 e
TBTRSBR
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ARE SRR I A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z—F—N\F+A=+—HI-FE

23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018 are as

follows: (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEAREE

Sino Achieve Limited

FEERAR

Space Wisdom Limited
BRBRAT

Telefield Asia Pacific Limited
FETKERATA

Telefield Holdings Limited

Telefield Limited
REBRB AR

Telefield Medical Devices Limited

PERESMARARF

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

TEMREX L,/ AR 2

Hong Kong
B

BV
RBRARS

Hong Kong
BB

BV
RBRAES

Hong Kong
Bt

Hong Kong
B

BFENT - (&)

Percentage of ownership
interest/voting power/
profit sharing

iR RERLS, "'}xEE/

Issued and paid up capital

HEBFED
Direct Indlrect
B ik

BETREZRE

23 RHBARMIE (K)
R-Z—N\F+-A=+—BHBAAF

Principal activities

FERK

Ordinary shares
of HK$5,000,000
5,000,000 8 78
et

1 ordinary share
of US$1 each

1REREE
[Etiok-F il

Ordinary share
of HK$1
1B TR SER

410,000 ordinary
shares of US$1 each

410,000 R BREE
[Etiok=F L3

Ordinary shares of
HK$20,000,000 and
non-voting deferred
shares of
HK$5,000,000

20,000,000 5L/
LAk R
5,000,000 7 7Y
ERZERERR

Ordinary shares
of HK$1,000
1,000 77T A Z Ak

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Investment holding
and trading
REERKES

Inactive

TEES

Inactive

TEXE

Investment holding

Investment holding,
electronic
manufacturing services
for telecommunications,
security, car electronics,
home appliances, other
consumer and industrial
electronic products

REER B
RE  REETEM:
& EiEER
TEEFEMN
EFRERS

Trading of personal care
products

EAERERE S
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =—F—\F+=A=+—HI-FE

23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 23. RHIBRARIMIEE (&)
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018 are as R-_E—N\F+_A=1+—BHWEART

follows: (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEAREE

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

TEMREX L,/ AR 2

BFENT - (&)

Percentage of ownership
interest/voting power/
profit sharing

EhRERRERS RRE/

Issued and paid up capital

BORMERA HERANEAH
Direct Indirect

BE 3

Principal activities

FERK

Telefield NA Inc. USA. Share capital - 100%  Trading of business
e of US$2,000,000 telephone system
F&782,000,0005 7T HESEZNES
Telefield Universal Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares - 100%  Investment holding and
RERKERDA B of HK$15,600,000 trading of
15,600,000 & 7T telecommunication
LBk products
REEBRK
THERES
Well Dragon Electronics Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$1 - 100% Inactive
BERTBRAA 5 1B TR SER amEs
Wise State Investment Ltd Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding
BHAREERAF 0 Bmtiokgil RAER
BNDESFERAR PRC Registered capital - 100%  Manufacture of
Guangzhou Telefield H of US$8,060,000 telecommunications
Limited * AR and other products
8,060,000%T BREMERN
gl
BENDEEFERAT PRC Registered capital - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Guangzhou Zhong Sui H of US$1,500,000 consumable electronic
Limited * HAMER products
1500,0003 7T HERTERR
BLEREE
BMELBHERERAT PRC Registered capital - 100%  Inactive
Guangzhou Zhuo Feng H of US$2,000,000 TEE
Plastics Co., Limited * HfER
2,000,000%7T
EREEZA ) ERAT PRC Registered capital of - 100% Inactive
Huashi Management H RMB300,000,000 UmER
Consultancy (Shenzhen) HfERARE
Limited * 300,000,000 7T
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z—F—N\F+A=+—HI-FE

23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 23. RHIBATRKE (B8)
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018 are as RZE—N\F+ZA=+—HWBRQF
follows: (Continued) BT - (8)
Place of Percentage of ownership
incorporation/ interest/voting power/
Name of subsidiary establishment Issued and paid up capital profit sharing Principal activities
EtEERERER BRERE/
MEARERE SEMAR L/ PR i B BETRAZRAE HERANEAH TEXEK
Direct Indirect
B k3
FERBEITR ORI PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Investment holding
BRRE FEl RMB500,000,000 REER
Healthcare Holdings AMERARE
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd * 500,000,000 7T
THERERERRE PRC Registered capital of - 51%  Trading and selling of
ERARAA(ER]) H RMB20,000,000 with medical equipments
Anhui Huayuan Guoyi Medical paid up capital of BHRHEEEER
Investment Management RMB5,000,000
Limited (“Guoyi”) * HERARE
20,000,0007T &
HRBAARE
5,000,0007T
* English names for identification purpose. * LRI B o
Except for Guoyi, all subsidiaries established in the PRC are BEIIEIN  FTAER BRI BE AT
wholly foreign-owned enterprises. B EINEBERSE -
As at 31 December 2018, the bank balances of the Group’s RZE—NF+-A=1+—8 KTEEBEH
subsidiaries in the PRC denominated in RMB and deposited with B AT ARKSERFERA S
banks in the PRC were amounted to approximately BRI TRIIR T TAS 8R40 27,663,000 8 7T
HK$27,663,000 (2017: HK$24,120,000). Conversion of RMB into (—ZF—+4 2412000038 7) - AR
foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange iR E S b BONE B IR IG5 N A
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and [E - SERMESERTEARE -

Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR I A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =—F—\F+=A=+—HI-FE

24. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FVTOCI (2017: AVAILABLE- 24, R AV EFT AEM 2 EK A IRE

FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS) RE(CZE—tF: IHHESR
BE)
2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—tF
HK$°000 HK$000
FEx T
Equity securities, at fair value RAZS - mAFE
Listed in Hong Kong REB L™ 27,187 11,958
27,187 11,958
Analysed as: DM
Current portion BIERER 5y 5,328 11,958
Non-current portion JERNERER 7> 21,859 -
27,187 11,958
The fair values of listed securities are based on current bid prices THEE ATFEIREBEREHA IR
at the end of the reporting period. All equity investments at TBABME « 2R A FESF A EAM
FVTOCI (2017: available-for-sale financial assets) are RIS (-5 —+ 4« at
denominated in HKD. WS EAEE ) B ATE TTEHE o
During the year, fair value changes in respect of the Group’s ER AECREM2EKSEIN A
equity investments recognised in other comprehensive income EBRESENATEESHLE A
amounted to HK$25,716,000. 25,716,000 7T ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR I A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z—F—N\F+A=+—HI-FE

25. INVENTORIES 25 ’rE

2018 2017

A —F—tF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FH&T FHIT

Food and beverages 8 469 334

Raw materials R4k 55,482 40,981

Work in progress F5K 20,912 16,782

Finished goods R G 27,169 19,748

Goods in transit EEE R 9,930 7,319

113,962 85,164

26. TRADE RECEIVABLES 26. EINE FERF

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHT T

Trade receivables FEUWE B AR 3K 156,205 119,633
Allowance for trade receivables JEURE 5 BR TR (444) (2,827)

155,761 116,806
The Group’s trading terms with customers are mainly on credit. AEFBEEFFEUEERFRNETE
The credit terms generally range from 30 to 120 days. Each E-ZEH RN TI0EROK > BF
customer has a maximum credit limit. For new customers, EPHEESEERE HEP—MRE
payment in advance is normally required. The Group seeks to TET IR o AN 5 B B 1A R IR B FE LR
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue PR IFERIRER - EF T HEM e E

balances are reviewed regularly by the directors. ek o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR I A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =—F—\F+=A=+—HI-FE

26. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 26. EWE SR (E)

BRERNREWE SRR (FOGEE)
BREROITAT -

The aging analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice
date, and net of allowance, is as follows:

2018 2017

—E_N\&E —E—+F

HK$°000 HK$’000

THET TFETT

0 to 90 days 0Z 90k 135,996 104,863
91 to 180 days 91E180 X 17,454 10,469
181 to 365 days 1812 365K 1,305 816
Over 365 days 365 KA 1,006 658
155,761 116,806

FEUE 5 BRSO B S BR B S0 T

Reconciliation of allowance for trade receivables:

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+tF

HK$°000 HK$000

FHBxT FHIT

At the beginning of year REH 2,827 5,197

Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 RIME B RE 2R

FIFMTE 774 -

At the beginning of year (restated) RE) (L&) 3,601 5,197

Impairment losses for the year FERERE 148 2,827
Bad debts written off biGich= (141) (5,197)

Reversal el (3,164) -

At the end of year RER 444 2,827

The individually impaired trade receivables relate to customers
that were in financial difficulties or were in default in payments
and the receivables are not expected to be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR I A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z—F—N\F+A=+—HI-FE

26. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 26. RUWE ZERFR(E)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are AEBEVESERCEREFEAUT
denominated in the following currencies: EHEETHE -

2018 2017

—E_N\&E —EF—F

HK$°000 HK$’000

T FHT

United States dollars (“USD”) Zrx(Erx)) 131,606 110,235

HKD BT 693 947

RMB AR 23,462 5,624

Total Bt 155,761 116,806

27. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 27, FEfIRUE - &€ - HMEKFIE K

OTHER ASSETS HEM&EE
2018 2017
—®-N\F T4
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FAT
Prepayments T 5RIE 4,651 12,347
Prepaid consultancy fee TEfT AR & 7,500 13,500
Prepaid lease payments FENHEERIA 624 607
Deposits e 8,145 4,770
Purchase deposits BEZE 49,533 16,527
Other assets — consumables Hih&EE — HfER 4,171 5,606
Other receivables H b fE W IR 10,415 2,373
85,039 55,730
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR I A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =—F—\F+=A=+—HI-FE

28. LOANS TO EMPLOYEES AND OTHER PARTIES 28. MEBMEMALTER
Loans to employees and other parties represent loans advanced MEERHEMATEREREE RHEM
to employees and other independent third parties detailed as BIYEZFBNNER  FBOT
follows:

Principal Accrued
balance at interest as at Balance at
31December 31 December ECL 31 December
Terms of loan 2018 2018 rate Allowance Total
RZB-\E RZB-N\f

t=A=t-H +=A=+-R et
LEN TS A&kl 2EHAE  REERE ]
Note HK$000 HK$000 % HK$000 HK$000
i3 TiEx TiEx % TiEx TiEx

Non-current portion

EE IR
Independent Unsecured, repayable within 0} 45,000 4,320 11.04% (4,523) 44,797 -
third party A two years and bears interest
BUE=FA of 12% p.a.
BER - BRRERNEER
REFIED%EE
Current portion
e 5
Employees Unsecured, repayable within one (ii) 2,649 - - - 2,649 2,188
EE year or on demand, bearing
interest of 9% or interest free
BER  AR—ERAREKE
B ERR%EEE
Individual A Unsecured, repayable within (i) 27,000 2,388 5.36% (1,406) 27,982 -
HAA one year and bears interest
of 12% p.a.
EER BR-FENERR
REFED%E B
Independent Unsecured, repayable within - - - - - 29,748
third party B one year and bears interest
BUE=HB of 8% p.a.
EER  BR-FERNERR
RERES%E L
Individual B Unsecured, repayable within - - - - - 30,945
fAAB one year and bears interest
of 10% p.a.
EBER BR-ENERR
REFIRI0%:TE.
Individual C Unsecured, repayable within - - - - - 30,937
fAAC one year and bears interest
of 10% p.a.
EER BER-ENERR
REFIZI0%:TE.
Individual D Unsecured, repayable within - - - - - 1,175
AAD one year and bears fixed
interest of RMB20,000
BER ERN-FREER
WEREIE 7.2 AR 20,000
Current portion 29,649 2,388 - (1,406) 30,631 94,993
W& HH
Total 74,649 6,708 (5,929) 75,428 94,993
@
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR I A

wiNE s

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z—F—N\F+A=+—HI-FE

28. LOANS TO EMPLOYEES AND OTHER PARTIES 28.

29.

(Continued)

Notes:

0]

@i

(i)

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK AND CASH 29.

Lifetime ECL is recognised as credit risk has increased significantly since initial

recognition.

ECL for employees’ loans are considered minimal.

12-month ECL is recognised.

BALANCES

)

(i

Pledged bank deposits represented deposits pledged to
bank to secure banking facilities such as corporate credit

card and general bank account services.

The followings are bank and cash balances details:

AEE MEMALTER(E)

et

@ 2 HRHREEFEEERAEERR - BVRER

REARBRIE N ©

(ih  EEEXNRBEEFERRSEN -

(i) BERREAEHEEESE-

EEMRITERNIRIT IR S HERR

() BEMRITEREERFREER
TRITAEBSRITRE (WAFNE
AR —RBITRPIRTE) -

(i RITMRSEHRFBOT

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+F

HK$°000 HK$ 000

FER FAT

Cash on hand EFRE 118 160

Cash in transit HRES 45 80

Fixed deposits TEEFR 11,625 120,125

Cash at bank RITH e 328,362 359,014
Cash and cash equivalents RiEERERERD
in the consolidated statement ReERASEEY

of cash flows 340,150 479,379

Cash in margin accounts of KRTRBEFP RS
brokerage firms 14,059 -
354,209 479,379
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =—F—\F+=A=+—HI-FE

29. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK AND CASH
BALANCES (Continued)

(iii)  The pledged bank deposits and bank and cash balances of
the Group are denominated in the following currencies:

29.

EEMIRITFERLIRIT IR S ER

(#8)

(iy AEEDEMRITEFRRBITRE
DRERTIRAT B EHE ¢

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—t5F

HK$°000 HK$000

FET FATT

usDh EI 55,574 149,673
HKD BT 262,365 307,011
RMB AR 28,196 24,452
Euro ("EUR") BT (TBT ) 74 92
Singapore dollars Nt 9,249 -
Others HAih 1 1
355,459 481,229

As at 31 December 2018, the bank balances of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the PRC denominated in RMB and deposited with
banks in the PRC were amounted to approximately
HK$27,663,000 (2017: HK$24,120,000). Conversion of RMB into
foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR I A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z—F—N\F+A=+—HI-FE

30. TRADE PAYABLES 30. FENTESERZ
The aging analysis of trade payables, based on invoice date, is as AEBZREZHHRTENELTEDER
follows: FIERER DITAAT -
2018 2017
—E_N\&E —EF—F
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#&T FHT
0 to 90 days 0FE 90X 70,149 73,028
91 to 180 days 91E180 X 2,619 568
181 to 365 days 181 & 365K 2,133 354
Over 365 days 365 KA 1,573 879
76,474 74,829
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are AEBENESERCEREFERAUT
denominated in the following currencies: BHEHE -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
usD ETT 7,860 9,749
HKD BT 26,471 24,890
RMB AR 41,596 40,190
EUR Eo 547 -
Total At 76,474 74,829
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ARE SRR I A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =—F—\F+=A=+—HI-FE

31. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 3. FRIRERANMEAES KA
2018 2017
—E—N\E&E T+
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FH&T FHIT
Accrued salaries TEIRE & 111,536 123,899
Accrued expenses TERRFAX 47,676 31,944
Accrued borrowing interests TEREEFIE 7,433 3,303
Customer deposits and receipts in advance B F 124 & F8 UGB 45,344 7,474
Other payables E R SRIE 3,474 2,549
215,463 169,169
32. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) A NON-CONTROLLING 32, U (FERT) —REB ARz —%
SHAREHOLDER OF A SUBSIDIARY, A RELATED RIS R - —REIEE AR FIE K
COMPANY AND LOAN TO A NON-CONTROLLING M — R B AR 2 — R IR AR
SHAREHOLDER OF A SUBSIDIARY B
()  The amounts due from/(to) a non-controlling shareholder 0 YR —HERBRRZ—%&
of a subsidiary and a related company, are unsecured, JEERRAR R R —EEEARFIER
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment. AR - R B AEETFEFTHR -
(i)  The loan to a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary (i Mm—TEMBARZ —ZIEIERIRE
which bears interest at 9% p.a., is unsecured and repayable BERIRENRI%T B - AERKE
on demand. MIZBENREER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z—F—N\F+A=+—HI-FE

33. BORROWINGS 33. E§
2017
—E-N\F —ET—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Loan from a related company (note () & —MEEEQ R ER (K3F ) 569 2,398
Loans from a related company (note (i) B —HEEELARER (BT D)) 19,698 20,741
Loan from an independent third party KE—BBIE=FER
(note (i) (B2 i) 20,000 20,000
40,267 43,139
Notes: MiaE -
0) The amount represented loan from a related company which is non-interest 0} ZeEARA—HEEATNES - BEELIE

bearing, unsecured and repayable on demand.

(i) The amounts represented loans from a related company which bear interest at
9% p.a., unsecured and repayable on 31 December 2019.

(i) The amount represented loan from an independent third party, which bears
interest at 12% p.a., secured by charges over the shares of the Company’s
subsidiaries (China Khan Limited and Telefield Holdings Limited) and repayable
within one year. At 31 December 2018, the aforementioned subsidiaries held
non-current assets of HK$44,173,000 (2017: HK$58,929,000) and current assets
of HK$339,915,000 (2017: HK$419,478,000).

Borrowings are arranged at fixed interest rates or non-interest
bearing thus expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.
Except for the loans from related companies which are
denominated in RMB, other loans are denominated in HKD.

The directors estimate the fair value of the Group’s borrowings
at 31 December 2018 and 2017 approximate to their carrying
amounts.

BREEER -

@) ZEBERRA—MBERRNER - HRFH X
%t E  BEFEARN T -AEFF+_A=1+—
AEE -

(i) ZEBARA—EBUE=—FNER  ZERK
FRIEDR%:HE - AARRAIMB AR (EBER
A 7] K Telefield Holdings Limited) #9 % {5 #8 20 &
REBER—FHNEE - R_T—\F+=A
=t+—8B FAKBEBRABAFRDEE
44,173,000 7T (== —+4F : 58,929,000/ 7T)
%R B & E33991500008 T( =T — L
419,478,000 7T) ©

1ﬁ§¥E.}E%IJ—|—E‘I—/LAjZ%/%\ ’ 1%21";%

EHAFEFERRR - BRAARETE
MRBER B ERIN - M ERAE T
B~

EEHFAKER T N\FR=

—tFtT-A=t—BZEEZA EFTE
HEERREERS
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ARE SRR I A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =—F—\F+=A=+—HI-FE

34, PRODUCT WARRANTY PROVISIONS 34. EmRARE

The movement in the Group’s product warranty provisions are AEBERRBBEEEHSTOT
analysed as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+t5F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHExT T
At 1 January ®n—H—H 3,336 3,800
Provisions used EBABE (3,336) (3,800)
Additional provisions EEONE 2,498 3,336
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8 2,498 3,336
The Group has committed to repurchase its products from or EETHHEBAE ThREEFPKERE
offer replacement of its products to certain distributors when o AEBEAERZS D HEEERE R
these distributors receive returned goods from unsatisfied IEHRER- - ZEERRABEBREE
ultimate consumers. Such kind of provision for product BRREKTEHBELARER  WTH
warranties are recognised based on past experience of level of ZHRE(@EA) -
repairs and returns, discounted to their present value as
appropriate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z—F—N\F+A=+—HI-FE

35. DEFERRED TAX 35 REFIE
Accelerated License
tax rights Land and
depreciation EVEDI buildings Others Total
MERBITE FrREEANR THRETF Hith #et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHT TAT FAT TAT
At 1 January 2017 RZZE—+F—H—H 10 2,167 (3,753) 3,660 2,064
Disposal of a subsidiary HEHBAT
(note 39(h)) (FisE39) - - - (86) (86)
Credit/(charge) to profit or loss ~ EE BT A
for the year e,/ (BR)
— origination and reversal of —EREREE
temporary difference K ol 10 (1,065) - (2,644) (3,699)
Charge to other comprehensive  FEEM 2 EUzsT
income for the year SIREHR - - (445) - (445)
At 31 December 2017 and RZZ—+%F
1 January 2018 +ZA=t-8K
—E-NF—F—H - 1,102 (4,198) 930 (2,166)
Credit/(charge) to profitor loss ~ FEEBH D5
for the year &,/ (BR)
— origination and reversal of -EREEEL
temporary differences Ko el - (236) 4,693 142 4,599
Charge to other comprehensive  EE H it 2 EUzEH
income for the year ly=%:3: - - (495) - (495)
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-N\5F
+=ZA=+-8 - 866 - 1,072 1,938
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BmRM

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =—F—\F+=A=+—HI-FE

35. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 35.

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
consolidated statement of financial position purposes:

EERIE (58)

AT R e ISR R IR IE B IR 45
BT

2018 2017

—B-N\F —E—+tF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FTER FAT

Deferred tax assets BERIBEE 1,938 2,032
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHIBAE - (4,198)
1,938 (2,166)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of approximately HK$13.1 million (2017: HK$19.5 million)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset
in relation to unused tax losses has been recognised due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in
unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately HK$2.2
million (2017: HK$2.8 million) that will expire before 2022. Other
tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A M BmRM

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z—F—N\F+A=+—HI-FE

36. SHARE CAPITAL

36. AN

2018 2017
“B-N\§ “EtF
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
R x| e G|
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET THL
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each FREE00E T EEMR
At the beginning and the end of the year MEFTIRER 1,500,000,000,000 1,500,000 1,500,000,000,000 1,500,000
Issued and fully paid: BRETRAR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each FIREE0.001 BT L A
At the beginning of the year REA 5,945,311,400 5,945 4,955,311,400 4,955
Shares issued upon subscription (note (i) R ABERITIMN (HE ) - - 990,000,000 990
At the end of the year RER 5,945,311,400 5,945 5,945,311,400 5,945

Note:

O] On 13 October 2017, the Company entered into subscription agreement with an
independent subscriber Keywan Global Limited in respect of a total of
990,000,000 new shares of the Company to be allotted and issued at HK$0.3
per new share. The subscription was completed on 1 November 2017.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maximise the return to the shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

et

) RZZE—tHF+A+=0 " ' KAREEBIREA
Keywan Global Limited 5t WA A B 1z B AR AR 1D
037 T B 1% il 8 & %47 & #£990,000,000 A%
RATRFROFT LRE R - REEHEEN=Z
—tF+—A—HEX -

AEEEREANBEEREEAKEN
FEKLZER N TRBBLEREES
R RIRREREADE - REEE
RS P —FEWENE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BmRM

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =—F—\F+=A=+—HI-FE

36. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The
Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to
it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the payment
of dividends, issue new shares, buy-back shares, raise new debts,
redeem existing debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as total debt divided by
adjusted capital. Total debt comprises borrowings (except for
bank overdrafts). Adjusted capital comprises all components of
equity (i.e. share capital, retained profits/accumulated losses and
other reserves) except for non-controlling interests.

During 2018, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged from
2017, was to maintain the debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at
reasonable level. The debt-to-adjusted capital ratios at 31
December 2018 and at 31 December 2017 were as follows:

30.

FENE=Y

AEBZARULIEETELRASR KK
BREEEARNES MEREENR
BRETEREAERBUFEHRAE - BT
MENHBEANGRE  AKEARHER
BRRIE - BITHR BERD - S5
& BEREGEEKHEEENRE -

AEERBEFHEHBRERA L RER
AR ZLRTRBEBHRIAEHEE
AEE - REGEEEE(RITEXR
5N o IRFBEARBIEAAERKD (A
BA  REER, R EEREAMEE)
(FRAERRE R FRIN)

RZE—N\F AEEZRBEHE_-F
—+FEWELY  AEEBHLEARE
R RBERFREIRKF c RZT—\F
+ZA=+—BERZZTE—tF+=A

=T EMESHERBRERLRNT

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

HK$°000 HK$'000

F#&xT FAT

Total debt 1R IETS 40,267 43,139
Adjusted capital LA 572,804 654,545
Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio B C AR E AR LR 7.0% 6.6%

The only externally imposed capital requirement for the Group
to maintain its listing status on the Main Board of Stock
Exchange is that it has to have a public float of at least 25% of
the shares. Based on the information that is publicly available to
the Group and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Group
has maintained sufficient public float throughout the year ended
31 December 2018 as required under the Listing Rules of the
Stock Exchange.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A M BmRM

wiINE] s

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z—F—N\F+A=+—HI-FE

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

37. ARRIZHBHARNE K e

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company @) ARBZEHEHRRE
2018
—E-N\EF
HK$’000
THET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FkRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEN&KE 9,654 380
Investments in subsidiaries R B A RIAIRE 23 57,851 57,854
Equity investments at FVTOCI BRFEFAREML
FEWEFRERE 21,859 -
89,364 58,234
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries AN NGIE /e 37(c) 73,712 7,973
Prepayments, deposits, other TEMNZIE - e B
receivables and other assets FEY T8 N Hfh B E 23,711 28,675
Loans to other parties A E A A EE 5K - 91,630
Available-for-sale financial assets ~ AJff{ HE S RIS E - 11,958
Equity investments at FVTOCI BOFESAEM
2ER A RIEEE 5,328 -
Pledged bank deposits EHEIRITFER 1,250 1,250
Bank and cash balances RITRIN B LR 255,585 254,611
Total current assets RBEEHE 359,586 396,097
Total assets EEHE 448,950 454,331
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Equity attributable to owners KRBVHEA NERERE
of the Company
Share capital R& 2R 5,945 5,945
Reserves & 37(b) 408,820 419,641
Total equity EREE 414,765 425,586
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals and other payables TEIR & A N E At B FIE 13,857 5,795
Amounts due to subsidiaries JET B R Rl FUA 37(0) 328 2,950
Borrowings P 20,000 20,000
Total current liabilities REAEAE 34,185 28,745
Total equity and liabilities EakEEBEE 448,950 454,331

Approved by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2019 and
are signed on its behalf by:

EEEeR—_F-NF=A=++tH
AL R FIIATHRBRSE -

Lee Chi Hwa Joshua
TEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =—F—\F+=A=+—HI-FE

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE 37. KRB ZHMBMRARKFEEE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued) (&)
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b)y ARFZREEE
Equity
Share Investment  Investments
premium Merger  Accumulated revaluation at FVTOCI Capital
account reserve losses reserve reserve  contribution
BAYE
FTARMEEE
RE  LaEmRE
RAEER EHfRE L BfifiE RERME EALE gt
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
BT T T ThEr TBx T BT
At 1 January 2017 WZE—+F-f—-H 307,740 3171 (57,170) (8,057) - 11,280 256,964
Total comprehensive income  £E 2 AR LS
for the year - - (141,390) 8,057 - - (133,333)
Shares issted upon RRERBIRA
subscription (note 36(7) (hrz#360) 296,010 - - - - - 296,010
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F
+-A=1+-8 603,750 3171 (198,560) - - 11,280 419,641
Adjustment on initial EREREAUBRS
application of —HKFRS9  %EBIF 9%MHE - - 27,198 - (28,145) - (947)
At 1 January 2018 W=E-NE-A-H 603,750 3,11 (171,362) - (28,145) 11,280 418,694

Total comprehensive income % 2 E WS £

for the year - - 15,842 - (25,716) - (9,874)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E
+-ZA=t-H 603,750 31 (155,520) - (53,861) 11,280 408,820
(¢)  The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, (0 UL (FERD KB AR FUE A EIK

b oo yEm

interest free and have no fixed terms of repayments. B REETENRS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B ZE —ZF—N\F+_-A=+—HIFF/F

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements
therein are presented in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

®

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

)

Share premium account

Share premium represents the amount of the excess
of issue price of the Company’s shares over its par
value.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares issued by
the Company in exchange for the nominal value of
the share capital of its subsidiaries arising from the
group reorganisation.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies set out in note 4(c)(iii) to
the consolidated financial statements.

Property revaluation reserve

The property revaluation reserve has been set up and
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies adopted for land and buildings in note 4(d)
to the consolidated financial statements.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of shares of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a group
reorganisation in 1997, over the nominal value of
shares of Telefield Holdings Limited issued in
exchange therefor.

&ﬁ{ﬂiﬁ”& SR NERE EEZ
FRANET -

(i) BOEER

f&% 17 @ B R R AR B D
BFTERAEEENSRE -

i) EHHREE
AEHRERRESEEAN
RAE BT W EE LR
HIBRRRAEE L Z5

(i) SMELREREE

SNEMRE B BIEREE I
EBHMBMEREENAB I
EER - ZREBREREY
TR 3= M 5E 4C0) (i) FrEk & &5
BR BRI o

(v) MEEMGREE

ZES TN R
0% M B 4 B 3 3
BRI & R
I -

) BARER

REBHMMARBBIER— N
NEFIREEBEAWE W
B R ARpEE RS Telefield
Holdings Limited B2 E:Z 5
AR 10 31T HY IR (0 1B 2 R BY
ERE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z —ZF— N\F+_-_A=+—HILF&E

(vi)

(vii)

Statutory reserve

The statutory reserve, which is non-distributable, is
appropriated from the profit after taxation of the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries under the applicable laws
and regulations in the PRC.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents gains/losses directly
reflect in equity resulted from change of equity
interests in subsidiaries without change of control.

(viii) Capital contribution

(ix)

x)

The amount represents the difference between
inception fair value and proceeds of non-interest
bearing loan from shareholder, which regarded as
capital contribution.

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of available-
for-sale financial assets held at the end of the
reporting period and is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policy in note 4(k) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Equity investments at FVTOCI reserve

The equity investments at FVTOCI (2017: Available-
for-sale financial assets) reserve comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of equity
investments at FVTOCI (2017: Available-for-sale
financial assets) held at the end of the reporting
period and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy in note 4(k) to the consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A M BmRM

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z—F—N\F+A=+—HI-FE

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 39, #AIRERERMT
FLOWS
(a) Acquisition of subsidiaries — Pride Review Group (@) UWEEHIB AR — Pride Review £ 8

On 14 July 2017, the Group entered into sale and purchase
agreement to acquire 100% equity interest in the Pride
Review Group, which was engaged in provision of catering
service from an independent third party at a total
consideration of HK$30,000,000. The acquisition was
completed on 17 July 2017. The acquisition is for the
purpose of widening the source of income of the Group
and risk diversification.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
Pride Review Group acquired as at the date of acquisition
are as follows:

RZZE—tF+EA+ME A5H
BBV E=HEIN BB AR
Pride Review 5 B 2 2 & e #g - &
NERHEEZERRLE BRE
30,000,000 7L - WHIEEHEE R =
T—+tFLA+EARRK - KWES
B BREAREBENRARIRL D
BRE R o

AU EE B B P Uk B 2 Pride Review
SEzABNEERBEZATE
o

HK$'000
TAET

Net assets acquired: g % & = 5 58
Property, plant and equipment W - BB MR 1,564
Inventories FE 277
Trade receivables JEWE SER TR 3,230
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERFRIE -« e R EMAEKGE 2,413
Current tax assets BIEARIE B = 77
Bank and cash balances RITRIRE 45k 5,739
Trade payables B E SRR (56)
Accruals and other payables TEIRE A M AR FIE (530)
Current tax liabilities BNEAFIE B & (1,528)
11,186
Goodwill (note 21) BEE(HE21) 18,814
30,000
Satisfied by: #ERAR
Cash consideration HERE 30,000
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: W EERIRE R FE
Cash consideration paid BENBEeRE (30,000)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired i 2R ¢ RIREEEY 5,789
(24,261)
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The fair value of trade receivables approximate their
carrying amounts. The gross amount due under the
contracts is HK$3,230,000, of which none is expected to
be uncollectable.

Acquisition-related costs of HK$218,000 have been
charged to administrative expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2017.

The goodwill arising on the acquisition is attributable to the
anticipated future operating synergies from the
combination.

The Pride Review Group contributed approximately
HK$6,617,000 and HK$228,000 to the Group’s revenue
and profit for the year respectively for the period between
the date of acquisition and 31 December 2017.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January 2017,
the Group’s revenue and loss for the year ended 31
December 2017 would have been approximately
HK$670,004,000 and HK$131,749,000 respectively. The
proforma information is for illustrative purposes only and is
not necessarily an indication of the revenue and results of
operations of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1 January
2017, nor is intended to be a projection of future results.
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BWESEFRNAFEREREE
HE REGNOINAZEBBNR
32300008 7T - EHME S EE
AN o

Uk B #8 B8 BX 2K 218,000 78 7T & #E &L
T—+F+_A=F+—HIF
J*Zi?ma SRNTTEE IR -

R BEREMEL ZHERE AN
B A FFE LR RRE LS 1R M

RRBEEARRE-_T—+F
+ZA=-+—H8 - Pride Review &
EAAREE 2 FEWA RN A
& 81 496,617,000 7% 7T &% 228,000 78
TE o

WEEBEER _E—+tF—A—H
B AEEBHEZZT—tF
TZA=T—HIEFERARERE
15 5 Bl 47 A&670,004,000 7% T &
131,749,000 & 7T © ;= ERHE M
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z—F—N\F+A=+—HI-FE

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS (Continued)

()

Acquisition of a subsidiary — Guoyi

On 18 July 2017, the Group entered into sale and purchase
agreement to acquire 51% of equity interest in Guoyi which
was engaged in trading and selling of medical equipments
from Anhui Huayuan Pharmaceutical Company Limited
(“Anhui Huayuan”), a company which was indirectly
wholly-owned by a substantial shareholder of the
Company, at a total consideration of RMB1. The acquisition
was completed on 4 August 2017. The acquisition is for the
purpose of shifting the Group’s business focus on medical
and healthcare industry in the PRC.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
Guoyi acquired as at the date of acquisition are as follows:

39.

=
AR

(o))

AR RERME(E)

WEEK B AR — Bt

RZT—tFLA+N\R  XEE
FIVEEWMERABARARA—REE
BREZE2ERENARLHER
BERNDARAR (T ZHER] I
BUREBERBEILHENRA
B1az 51% g - BRE/SARE
T WBEREER _FT—LFNA
MEZER - WEFEBEAKE
MEBEHERTENBRRET
=

U B HIRT R 2 Bl G 2 ] R
BENMABBEZAFHENT :

HK$'000
THETT

Net assets acquired: il B R 58
Property, plant and equipment VI E R 341
Inventories rE 21
Trade receivables FEUE R 15,276
Prepayment, deposits and other receivables TERRIE - R REMEWRGRIA 6,659
Amount due from a related company FEM —FEIREE A R FIA 1,059
Loan to a non-controlling shareholder M — A IR AR E K 116
Bank and cash balances IRITRIR &4 3,466
Accruals and other payables TEIRE & E A R SRIE (1,520)
Borrowings BE (20,081)
Current tax payables FEATBIEATR IR (721
4,616
Non-controlling interests JEFE AR AE = (2,262)
2,354
Gain on bargain purchase from business REEBEHZEWE 2 W
combination (note 10) (KfaF10) (2,354)
Satisfied by: #ERAR
Cash consideration BeRE -
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: WHEEERRSHRAFRE
Cash consideration paid BERERE 7
Cash and cash equivalents acquired g Re KRS EEY 3,466
3,466
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The fair value of trade receivables, amount due from a
related party and loan to a non-controlling shareholder
approximate their carrying amounts. The gross amounts
due under the contracts is HK$16,451,000, of which none is
expected to be uncollectable.

Acquisition-related costs of approximately HK$225,000
have been charged to administrative expenses in the
consolidated statement profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2017.

The Group recognised a gain on bargain purchase of
HK$2,354,000 in the business combination. The gain is
included in other income.

The gain on bargain purchase is mainly attributable to the
immediate exit opportunity offered to Anhui Huayuan.

Guoyi contributed approximately HK$7,157,000 and
HK$2,557,000 to the Group’s revenue and loss for the year
respectively for period between the date of acquisition and
31 December 2017.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January 2017,
the Group’s revenue and loss for the year ended 31
December 2017 would have been approximately
HK$677,520,000 and HK$124,440,000 respectively. The
proforma information is for illustrative purposes only and is
not necessarily an indication of the revenue and results of
operations of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1 January
2017, nor is intended to be a projection of future results.
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(=2 —+tF+-_A=+—H1t
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z—F—N\F+A=+—HI-FE

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 39, &ZAaRensExM:aT (48)

FLOWS (Continued)

(c) Disposal of Pacific Time Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries: (©)
China Finance Service Limited, ZEKRERECRINABR AR,
ERXBIEEERECRYDBR AR and FYHEREEFLE
®EESEEAB R A Al(colectively, the “Pacific Time

Group™)

On 7 April 2017, the Company entered into a sales and
purchase agreement, pursuant to which the Company
agreed to sell the entire issued share capital of Pacific Time [ =
Holdings Limited and the shareholder’s loan to Golden

H € Pacific Time Holdings Limited
NEMBAGR: ZEEL/REER
AE > ELKMERECORIDBRA
A~ ERBIREZERE ORI BR
RNE ORI FEESAEREES
EI2 AR A A (4 H [ Pacific Time
58]

RZZE—tFWALR  AREIE
AT —HEEHS Bt ARQA
# Pacific Time Holdings

Limited W BT B B 21T R A KRR

Record Limited, a company indirectly wholly-owned by a ERPETHARAR—BETERR

substantial shareholder of the Company, at a total
consideration of HK$25,000,000. The disposal was
completed on 11 April 2017. Net liabilities at the date of

disposal were as follows:

M2 & %A ® 2D 7 Golden
Record Limited* K B A&
25,000,000 7T - HESFHEE K=
T+ FNMAB+—HZERK - RHEE
Az BEFENT -

HK$'000
TAET

Property, plant and equipment
Bank and cash balances
Receivables for factoring business

ME - BEMERE 70
R1TRIR & A ER 13,142
EERBUBE 2 U UR 22,105

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERFRIE -« e R EMAEKGE 827
Accruals and other payables TEIRE A R E M B IE (15,459)
Amount due to the Company AR ATIFUA (25,023)
Net liabilities disposed of BHREEEFE (4,338)
Release of foreign currency translation reserve 2B & 5 & 73)
Sales loan HEER 25,023
20,612
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 10) HEMRB ARz W (AaE10) 4,388
Total consideration REBE 25,000
Consideration satisfied by cash URE&ENHRE 25,000
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: AHEEEANRESRA T
Cash consideration received BWEERE 25,000
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of EHERERIREEEY (13,142)
11,858
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39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 39, &ZAaRenExMT(48)
FLOWS (Continued)

(d) Disposal of Bracciano Limited and its subsidiaries: Modern (d) H & Bracciano Limited X E i B A
Channel Limited and Telefield Medical Imaging Limited A B BERARI R EEER G
(collectively, the “Bracciano Group”) BRR AR (## [Bracciano & )
On 23 June 2017, the Group disposed of its equity interests RZE—+FNAZ+=8" K&
in the Bracciano Group to Noble Treasure Holdings Limited #% H 7 Bracciano £ B My #E 75 B
at a total consideration of HK$500,001. Net assets at the ETHEZERBRAR  BREA
date of disposal were as follows: 500,00 T RHEBHZEE

FEWT

HK$'000

FHIT

Property, plant and equipment W - BB MEE 286
Inventories FE 209
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables — FEfIFUIE - 324 K E il 18 224
Bank and cash balances IRITRIR &4 4,785
Accrual and other payables TEIRE A M A IR (389)
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEFE 5115
Non-controlling interests P 10,104
15,219
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMNBAFNEE (14,719)
Total consideration RE®LEE 500
Consideration satisfied by cash URSEMHRE 500

Net cash outflow arising on disposal: AHEEANRS R EFE -

Cash consideration received BUWEREeRE 500
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of BEHERERIRESEEY (4,785)
(4,285)
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39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS (Continued)

(e) Disposal of Aiko Products Limited and its subsidiary: Aiko
Beauty (Shenzhen) Limited (“Aiko Group”)

On 28 December 2017, the Group disposed of its 100%
equity interests in Aiko Group to a former manager in EMS
segment Mr. Kwong Wai Kit Tony at a total consideration
of HK$2,000,000. Net assets at the date of disposal were
as follows:

EXMERBRARREKERQ
CERMBEECRIDBRAF
e TR E )

R-Z—tF+_A-+N\H &K
FEFENEEER 25
ETEFRERB D MATELR
Kwong Wai Kit Tony %t 4 - 42K (&
7$2,000,0008 7T - WHEERH 2
BEFENAT :

~~
PO

HK$'000
THET

Property, plant and equipment W - BE R&E 196
Inventories FE 593
Trade receivables EE Z IR 32
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables AN FIE -« e R EMERFUE 870
Bank and cash balances IRITMIR S KRR 1,112
Current tax assets BUERRI 1B & = 617
Trade payables ERE SRR 20)
Accruals and other payables TERBRAMEMENFUA (1,058)
Net assets disposed of BHEEEFE 2,342
Release of foreign currency translation reserve  fRRRIE 3 (356)
1,986
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 10) HEMB AR M (A1) 14
Total consideration RERE 2,000
Consideration satisfied by cash AR &EMRE 2,000
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: AHEEEXNRESRAFRE
Cash consideration received BWEESRE 2,000
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of BHERE KBS EEY (1,112)
888
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR I A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =—F—\F+=A=+—HI-FE

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 39. #&8WBeRsRMT(8)
FLOWS (Continued)

(f)  Disposal of a subsidiary — Able Trend Technology Limited H HE—FHBAR — XBERFEE
(“Able Trend”) AT ([448])
On 30 December 2017, the Group disposed of its 85% R-EBE—+F+=-_A=+H " K&
equity interest in Able Trend to Noble Treasure Holdings [ 15 A 453 A 85% FE 25 HH & F 1)
Limited at a total consideration HK$1. Net assets at the EERAR AR BREEVETT -
date of disposal were as follows: REEHRZEEFAENT
HK$ 000
FETT
Property, plant and equipment WE - BB &EE 2
Inventories T8 277
Trade receivables FEUNE 5 EBR X 6
Bank and cash balances IRITRIRE 45k 775
Accruals and other payables TEIRE & B E T SRR (955)
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE 105
Non-controlling interests of a subsidiary —EMB AR EE R g 1,107
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHH B A REE (1,212)
Total consideration REBRE -
Consideration satisfied by cash LR e &N 0RE -
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: AT EEERIRS R F5E -
Cash consideration received BWEERE -
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of BHEReMREEED (775)
(775)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z—F—N\F+A=+—HI-FE

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH  39. #4814 n

FLOWS (Continued)

(g) Disposal of a subsidiary — Sota Acoustics Limited (“Sota™) (90 HE—HWEBAR —H%ESELS

BRAR (T )
R-F—
EiEEREHREN 2 HRERLE T
ERERBRLAR - ERERVETT °

On 30 December 2017, the Group disposed of its 100%
equity interests in Sota to Noble Treasure Holdings Limited
at a total consideration HK$1. Net assets at the date of

disposal were as follows:

HK$'000
TAET

Sy

BRiE |

tF+-A=1TH X%

RERMZEEFENT

Property, plant and equipment WE - BB &EE 38
Inventories TE 142
Trade receivables FEUNE 5 EBR X 579
Bank and cash balances IRITRIRE 45k 94
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables AR FRIE -« e R EMMEKGE 31
Accruals and other payables TEIRE A M A FOE 370)
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEFE 514
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHH B A REE (514)
Total consideration REBRE -
Consideration satisfied by cash LR e &N 0RE -
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: EHEEA RS IEEE
Cash consideration received BUWIRER(E -
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of BHEReMREEED 94)
94)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR I A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =—F—\F+=A=+—HI-FE

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 39, &ZAaRenExMT(48)
FLOWS (Continued)

(h) Disposal of a group of subsidiaries: B. Kettner Products (hy HE—HEMERR  HEZ2I8Mt
Hong Kong Limited and its subsidiary Telefield Sales LLC MERERARNLEENWB A F
(“B. Kettner Group”) Telefield Sales LLC ([ 228/l |)
On 30 December 2017, the Group disposed of its 100% RZZE—+tF+-_A=+H &
equity interests in B. Kettner Group to Noble Treasure EEBENEIMERR 2 I
Holdings Limited at a total consideration HK$1. Net assets HEETHEZERBRAF - 81
at the date of disposal were as follows: BAEEL - REEHEBZEEF

(ERUNNE

HK$'000

FHIT

Deferred tax assets (note 36) BETRIBE = (M7t 36) 86
Inventories FE 3,896
Trade receivables JEWE SER K 772
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables AR FRIE -« e R EMMEKGE 757
Bank and cash balances IRITRIRE 45 320
Trade payables e E SRR 29)
Accruals and other payables TEIRE & E A R SRIE (3,016)
Net assets disposed of BHEEEFE 2,786
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAREE (2,786)
Total consideration RE®EE -
Consideration satisfied by cash IR &R E -

Net cash outflow arising from disposal: EHEELIES AL F5E -

Cash consideration received BWEReRE -
Cash and cash equivalent disposed of BEHERENREEEY (320)
(320)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z—F—N\F+A=+—HI-FE

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH  39. #Z&eBens RME(8)
FLOWS (Continued)

\_‘

(i)  Disposal of Navigator Holdings Limited and its subsidiary () HE Navigator Holdings Limited M E
Dol-Fin Asset Management Limited (“Navigator Group”) B ARAKEEEREEEEGREA
7] ([Navigator £3 )
On 31 March 2018, the Company disposed of its 100% RIE—N\F=A=1+—8" 4&2R
equity interests in Navigator Group at a consideration of 7] # Navigator £ B 7 & & # %
HK$700,000 to an independent third party. Net assets at ETFBUE=F " REAE700,000
the date of disposal were as follows: B e REERBPZEEFEWD
™
HK$'000
FATT
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEFE -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 10) HEWB R Rz Uk (AfaE10) 700
Total consideration satisfied by cash IR & &N ARE 700
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: AEEEEMRESRAFERE
Cash consideration received BUWIRERE 700
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of EHERS MRS EEY -
700
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR I A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =—F—\F+=A=+—HI-FE

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 39, &ZAaRenExMT(48)
FLOWS (Continued)

(j)) Disposal of Gabrio International Limited and its subsidiary ()  H & Gabrio International Limited &
Telefield Lifestyle Limited (“Gabrio Group”) EMB AR ELERIE AR A
([ Gabrio =& |)
On 10 August 2018, the Group entered into a sales and R-ZZBE—-NENA+TH KNEBRE
purchase agreement, pursuant to which the Group agreed AT mEEWmE Bt AEH
to sell its 100% equity interests in Gabrio Group and the B E# GabrioEE 2 2 Bz R
shareholder’s loan to Mr. Liu Chi Cheung at a consideration REFHE FLiu Chi Cheungt 4 -
HK$7.8. Net liabilities at the date of disposal were as REAEISEB T - RELEHEH A
follows: EFREMT ¢
HK$'000
FHTT
Property, plant and equipment W - B MR 1
Trade receivables FEUWE 5 AR K 419
Bank and cash balances IRITRIR &5 2,304
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables — FEfT3IE - #&e R E i EUGRIE 10
Trade payables eI E SRR (320)
Accruals and other payables TEIRE & B E T SRR (6,436)
Amount due to the Group R AREBEFUR (10,479)
Net liabilities disposed of BHEAEFE (14,501)
Non-controlling interests IR = 2,023
Sales loan HEER 10,479
(1,999)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 10) HEMRB ARz W (AaE10) 1,999
Total consideration RERE -
Consideration satisfied by cash AR &EMRE -
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: A EEERIRE R F5E
Cash consideration received BWEEeRE -
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of BEHERSNRESEEYD (2,304)
(2,304)

216 China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited EEZFEE X E=E B R A7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A M BmRM

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z—F—N\F+A=+—HI-FE

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH  39. #RA & RERME(E)
FLOWS (Continued)
(k) Disposal of a subsidiary — Circuit Development Limited (k) & Circuit Development Limited
(“Circuit”) ([ Circuit])

On 1 August 2018, the Group entered into a sales and

RZE-NFNA—R KAEEZE

purchase agreement, pursuant to which the Group agreed AIT—EBWHE Bt AEH

to sell its 100% equity interests in Circuit and the
shareholder’s loan to Dragon Fortune International Limited
at a consideration HK$32,000,000. Net assets at the date

of disposal were as follows:

RIEBCircuit z 2SS MREE
FEETFRELERERAT - R{E
£32,000,0008 7T - REEBHEZ

ARFEMT -

HK$'000
TETT

Investment property "EME 32,000
Bank and cash balances IRITRIRE 45 50
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables — FEfIFUIE - 324 K E fh fEl 1B 2
Amount due to the Group B RSB FUB (6,898)
Net assets disposed of BHEEEFE 25,154
Sales loan SHEEX 6,898
32,052
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary (note 10) HEKB AR ZEE (FaE10) (52)
Total consideration RIE®EE 32,000
Consideration satisfied by cash IR &ENHRE 32,000
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: AREEENRESRAFEE
Cash consideration received 2UWIRERE 32,000
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of BEHRERERIRESEEY (C)
31,950
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BmRM

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =—F—\F+=A=+—HI-FE

5 HOTES [0 IHE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH ~ 39.

FLOWS (Continued)

(I)  Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing

g

%
&

BREMEBRME (E)

=

h BEIDHELZAEYR

AEBERBEEMEE 2 BEN
2% pRASIIFRSED O
FHIINTR - HREERDELENA
B AAZAEEBELKRNAS
nE  RAKENEARSRER
PORARERHIRERE -

activities.
Borrowings Borrowings
Egod BE
2018 2017
—B-N\F 2
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 January w—H—H 43,139 79,712
Changes from financing cash flows  BEREREEH) (1,780) (68,416)
Imputed interest on non-interest KE—ZEERRESR
bearing loans from a substantial BRzHEFE
shareholder - 10,288
Acquisition of a subsidiary UG g — BT B A &)
(note 39(b)) (H1aE39b)) - 20,081
Exchange difference E N =% (1,092) 1,204
At 31 December Rt+—B=+—H 40,267 43,139
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

/\‘/T\

B MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B ZE —ZF—N\F+_-A=+—HIFF/F

@

(i)

As at 31 December 2017 and 2018, the Group had an
outstanding guarantee (“the Guarantee”) to one of the
suppliers of an overseas subsidiary (“Disposed Subsidiary”),
which was disposed on 7 October 2015, for payment in
relation to a sum of US$2.6 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$20.3 million) representing a trade
balance under dispute between the Disposed Subsidiary
and the supplier. The supplier subsequently sold the trade
balance to a third party.

During 2017, the Disposed Subsidiary had agreed with the
third party for a final settlement by instalment of
US$650,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$5.1 million).
In this regard, as at 31 December 2018, the Group had an
outstanding guarantee of the sum limited to US$650,000
subject to the full payment of the final settlement effected
by the Disposed Subsidiary.

The Disposed Subsidiary had issued counter guarantee to
the Company to indemnify the Company for any 10ss in
relation to the Guarantee.

During the Year, a lawsuit was lodged against a subsidiary
of the Company, Guangzhou Telefield Limited. The plaintiff
seeks compensation of approximately RMB1 million. Having
sought legal advices, the directors are of the view that the
above compensation shall be disclosed as contingent
liabilities.

Apart from the above, the Group and the Company did not have
any significant contingent liabilities.

@

@i

B b XX Fratsh -

RZE—+tFEZFT—-—N\F+H
=+—H XrEEHER=ZT—H
FTHALAHEZHIINEEBR A
((BEREMBARD 2HEp—&1#
ERERERER(ZERD - HE
78 X 12,600,000 3% 7T (F & R 4
20,300,000 7T ) 2 A - L E
ﬁ%ﬁi%@ﬁiéﬁ%ﬁﬁ&ﬁz%%%ﬁ
SR o BEREEREHEZS
BTE=F -

RZZT—+F BHENBEAR

%5 = FaEN RS MR %,ﬁﬂﬁm
650,000 3 7T (18 & 7 495,100,000
B BmE  RZE—NF
+T-A=+—H xEEBEEHE
B ER S LR /6500003
T BT EHENBAREREE
SRR MBRIAENE

EHEMBLAREMARRELR
R AR BERZEMBRAER
NERHBERRE

RAFE - AR A B R 5 EM
EP%*L?'E ﬁﬁﬁ T%ﬁ?mﬁuﬁ*’\o
8% 8 49 A R %1,000,000
TC e f iar/\/iifii,%fé BEERB
HIRRERIEARARERE

7

r

REBE RARRTFILEE

AERSAREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR I A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =—F—\F+=A=+—HI-FE

4], CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 41, BAEYE
The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the reporting REERFE RN EARFEEDT
period are as follows:

2018 2017
—E_N\&E —TE—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THxT FHIT
Plant and machinery B T
Contracted but not vet incurred BRTHERESE 320 8,182
42. LEASE COMMITMENTS 42. THEHE
At 31 December 2018, the total future minimum lease payments RZE—N\F+-_A=+—8 " BET
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows: AR ERE BN ARFERER
TEAEREMNT -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —EF—tF
HK$°000 HK$000
FHET T
Within one year —FR 40,718 26,643
In the second to fifth years inclusive BE_FEEZERF
(ERMTFREEA) 48,965 24,260
After five years REL 728 709
90,411 51,612
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the KEHERBEASERETELRE
Group for certain of its staff quarters, factories and offices. s BEEBAZTEMNNAS  £FEF
Leases are negotiated for terms ranged from one to seven years EEMNBEBNT—=2tF - HE& N
and rentals are fixed over the lease terms and do not include NEETE W HEEXAESD -

contingent rentals.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z—F—N\F+A=+—HI-FE

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to those related party transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had the following transactions with its related parties
during the year:

HEFE

loans from a substantial shareholder
— Power Port Holdings Limited

Imputed interest on non-interest bearing KE— &L X ERFEEE

43,

— Power Port Holdings Limited -

Rz

SRS
BRSBTS R LT B R A B T
25 RAEBRI - ARERENEBES
BUTRS

Interest on loans from a related company KB —BH—ZTFTERETHER

owned by a substantial shareholder BE N R ERF S

Sale proceeds from disposal of Pacific M—EAR(GZARIA—%
Time Group to a company which is TERREEEEER)
indirectly wholly-owned by a substantial £ % Pacific Time £E &) &
shareholder (note 39(c)) F{S k38 (Bt 5% 39(c))

2018 2017
—=-NE —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHBxT T
10,288

1,873 736

- 25,000

The details of remuneration of key management personnel,
represents the emoluments of directors of the Company paid
during the year are set out in note 15(a).

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has available-for-sale
financial assets deposited with a brokerage firm, which is a
related company of the Group amounting to HK$11,958,000.

TREREXRENFH(NARREER
FRENOME) FBEERME@E)

RZTBE—+E+-A=+—H ~&H
RERIT(REBRNBERR) FA A

HESRIEEA1,9580008 T °
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

ODFMHEEE

The consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31 December

2018 and the consolidated assets, liabilities and equity of the Group as  HI4R &

at 31 December 2018 are those set out in the audited financial

statements.

The summary below does not form part of the audited financial

AEEBE—T-\F+_A=+—HLFE

XERASER_ZT-N\F+RA
=T ANRAEE  AERESENRER
BTSSR A

AT RO I MRS I B AR EB D

statements.
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
“E-N\E ZZT—+F ZZT-—RF —T-HF —ZT-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHT TAT FHT FAET
(restated)
(&)
RESULTS #i5
Revenue WA 735,184 662,208 748,749 1,008,561 1,032,957
Cost of sales HEMAK (562,695)  (497,793)  (598,835)  (796,467)  (807,480)
Gross profit EA 172,489 164,415 149,914 212,094 225,477
Other income HAbUg A 27,100 19,524 34,419 13,687 15,860
Selling and distribution expenses  $HE&E &2 T (29,260) (45,578) (49,943) (55,365) (65,900)
Administrative expenses THEHR (185,037) (151,934) (131,420) (76,573) (75,303)
Other operating expenses Hi =& H (25,095) (94,789) (74,637) (43,729) (35,965)
(Loss)/profit from operations B (FR) BT (39,803) (108,362) (71,667) 50,114 64,169
Finance costs BMEMA 14,652 (13,049) (4,297) (6,081) (7,456)
Share of loss of a joint venture DME—BEECEER - - - (117) (1,433)
(Loss)/profit before tax BRELAT (B518) %R (44,455)  (121,411) (75,964) 43,916 55,280
Income tax expense FEHAX (4,845) (9,898) (11,074) (5,549) (8,144)
(Loss)/profit for the year from @KL XK
continuing operation FE(FE)wH (49,300)  (131,309) (87,038) 38,367 47,136
Loss for the year from BRIEEEL
discontinued operations FEER - - - (79,432) (89,409)
Loss for the year FEEE (49,300) (131,309) (87,038) (41,065) (42,373)
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hFHHHER

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-N\F —E+F —TF —T—HF —TNOF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THT FTET FHEIT THET
(restated)
(&E5)
Attributable to: UTEHREN:
Owners of the Company YiNCIE Y=DN (57,984)  (128,428) (82,646) (1,844) 577
Non-controlling interests Eiuii g 8,684 (2,881) (4,392) (39,221) (42,850)
(49,300)  (131,309) (87,038) (41,065) (42,273)
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON- &7 - BERFERER
CONTROLLING INTERESTS
TOTAL ASSETS BELE 930,862 960,588 800,284 853,448 1,092,094
TOTAL LIABILITIES afEeE (348,030)  (306,586)  (336,647)  (305,446)  (740,547)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS  JEiZpikzs (10,028) 543 11,210 5,958 18,209
572,804 654,545 474,847 553,960 369,756
Note: The Group disposed of certain subsidiaries and associates during the year ended 31 Wiet . AEEREE_T-—AF+-_A=T—BILEFELES

December 2015. The results of the disposed subsidiaries and associates for the years
presented have been reclassified for separate disclosure as discontinued operations

above.

THIE AR REE AT - O HEMHEA R R E AN
EINEFENEFEDEFTAM  UNEXBURBEREL
IR S—F S
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